
 

 
1 

 

 
AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 

BOARD ROOM 
6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 

 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 852 166 573# 
 

PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1-2 ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ON JANUARY 18, 2023. IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE 

TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC 
HEALTH AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19.  

 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number 
provided above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the 

meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.  Thank you. 

 
 
 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


 

 
2 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 
 
 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 

1. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

 
NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 
 

 

A. MINUTES 
Approve minutes of the January 4 and January 18, 2023 Board Meetings. 
 

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the 
month of December 2022, in the amount of $26,961,777.56.  

 

C. RP-1 DEVICENET REPLACEMENT DESIGN CONSULTANT 
CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Award a design consultant contract for the RP-1 DeviceNet 
Replacement, Project No. EN23000, to Eramosa International Inc., 
for the not-to-exceed amount of $465,918; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes. 

 

D. ADOPTION OF THE 2023 – 2024 FEDERAL AND STATE LEGISLATIVE 
PRIORITIES & POLICY PRINCIPLES (Community & Leg) 

 Staff recommends that the Board adopt the 2023 – 2024 Legislative 
Priorities and Policy Principles. 

 

E. RP-1 HEADWORKS BAR SCREEN SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Award a design-build contract for the RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen 
System Improvements, Project No. EN23111, to GSE Construction 
Co., Inc. in the amount of $1,609,900; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes.  

 
 



 

 
3 

 

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO 

GENERAL MANAGER’S EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT AND APPROVAL 
OF PERFORMANCE AWARD 
It is recommended that the Board: 
 
1. Consider and approve a General Manager’s performance award in 

an amount not to exceed 10% of base salary; and  
 
2. Consider and approve the Restated Employment Agreement 

submitted herewith. 
 
B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-2, AMENDING THE 

AGENCY’S SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR ALL GROUPS 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2023-2-2, 
amending the Agency’s Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups. 
 

C. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-1, AUTHORIZING IEUA TO 
ENTER INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER 
WATERSMART: WATER RECYCLING AND DESALINATION 
PLANNING  
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2023-2-1, 
authorizing the General Manager to enter into a financial assistance 
agreement under the USBR’s WaterSMART: Water Recycling and 
Desalination Planning Grants Program for the Chino Basin Advanced 
Treated Recycled Water, Storage, and Production Project. 
 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 
UPDATES (POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

B. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY 
(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 

 

C. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 
(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 

 

D. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community 

& Leg) 
 

E. PLANNING AND RESOURCES DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE 
(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
F. LABORATORY SEMI-ANNUAL UPDATE (POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 



 

 
4 

G. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – FEBRUARY 2023 
(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
H. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/ 

POWERPOINT)  
 
 

4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
(WRITTEN)   
February 7, 2023 SAWPA Commission Meeting. The February 21, 2023 
SAWPA Commission meeting agenda was not available at time of posting.  
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
REPORT (WRITTEN) 
February 14, 2023 MWD Board meeting. 
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT  
The next Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee meeting is 
scheduled March 2, 2023.  

 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT (WRITTEN)  
January 26, 2023 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting. 
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT (WRITTEN)  
February 2, 2023 CDA Board meeting. 
 

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 
(WRITTEN)   
February 6, 2023 IERCA Board meeting. 

 

 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN) 
 

 

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

 

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS 
 
 

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 
 

 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Two Cases 
 

ADJOURN 



 

 
5 

Declaration of Posting 

 
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1A 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR WORKSHOP/MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Marco Tule, President 
Michael Camacho, Director 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer  
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Steven J. Elie, Vice President 

 
STAFF PRESENT 

Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 

 Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs 
    
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Director of Finance 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Maintenance 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant 
Linda Johnson, Records Management Supervisor 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Acting Director of Operations 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

President Tule called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 
Garzaro took roll call and established a quorum. Board Secretary/Office Manager Garzaro led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
 

1. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
There were no General Manager comments.  

 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no future requested agenda items from the Board of Directors. 

 
 

3. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS  
There were no Board of Directors comments. 
 
 

4.  CLOSED SESSION 
The Board recessed to Closed Session at 10:02 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(e)(3) CONFERENCE 
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

One Case 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54957 AND 54957.6 – 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

1. General Manager 
 
 

The meeting resumed at 10:22 a.m. and General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated 
that the Board took the following action on Closed Session item 4A.  
 

 
THE CLAIM FOR DAMAGES SUBMITTED BY 
MANUEL MORENO WAS REJECTED BY THE 
BOARD, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Hall, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: Elie 

 
 
General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche noted that Item 4B was not discussed. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

ADJOURNMENT 
President Tule adjourned the meeting at 10:23 a.m.  

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 15, 2023 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Marco Tule, President 
Steven J. Elie, Vice President  
Michael Camacho, Director 
 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 

Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Adham Almasri, P.E., Principal Engineer 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Kevin Asprer, Associate Engineer 
Josh Biesiada, Senior Project Manager  
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Jana Crawford, Administrative Assistant II 
Lucia Diaz, Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Dan Dyer, Operations Supervisor 
Chris Garcia, Environmental Resources Planner II 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Elizabeth Hurst, Chino Basin Program Manager 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 
Jacqueline Lopez, Administrative Assistant II 
Jason Marseilles, Manager of Engineering 
Ed Makowski, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II 
Liza Munoz, Senior Engineer 
Dominic Palencia, Internal Auditor 
Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 
Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs 
Sandra Salazar, Associate Engineer 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

Vicky Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer 
Steve Smith, Acting Groundwater Recharge Supervisor 
James Spears, Senior Engineer 
Travis Sprague, P.E., Principal Engineer  
Megan Trott, Associate Engineer 
Ryan Ward, Assistant Engineer 
Brian Wilson, Principal Engineer 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Acting Director of Operations & Maintenance 

    
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Deborah Berry, Controller 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Andrea Carruthers, Communications Officer 
Pierre Cayatte, Senior Engineer 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Director of Finance  
Stephanie Chancellor,  
Nelson Delgado, Senior Compost Operations & Maintenance Technician 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Maintenance 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Jon Florio, Deputy Manager of Maintenance 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant 
Linda Johnson, Records Management Supervisor 
Lisa Mejri, Government Affairs Intern 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Cheyanne Reseck, Administrative Assistant II 
Michael Smith, Maintenance Planner 
Yvonne Taylor, Administrative Assistant II 
Ashley Womack, Grants & Government Affairs Officer 

   
OTHERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
Marty Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm 

 
  
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Tule called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 
Garzaro took roll call and established a quorum.    
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
The following staff member from t Information Technology was introduced: 
 

• Jana Crawford, Administrative Assistant II, hired January 9, 2023, Information 
Technology 

 
The following staff member from Internal Audit was introduced: 
 

• Dominic Palencia, Internal Auditor, hired January 16, 2023, Internal Audit 
 
The following staff members from Operations & Maintenance were hired and recognized: 
 

• Daniel Dyer, Operations Supervisor, promoted January 8, 2023, Operations 

• Edward Makowski, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II, reclassified 
November 13, 2022, Operations 

• Michael Rodriguez, Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, promoted 
December 25, 2022, Operations 

• Nelson Delgado, Senior Compost Operations & Maintenance Technician, 
promoted December 25, 2022, Organics Management 

• Thomas Chok, Electrical & Instrumentation Technician II, hired January 16, 2023, 
Maintenance 

• Franklin Hernandez, Electrical & Instrumentation Technician II, hired January 16, 
2023, Maintenance 

 
The following staff member from  Planning & Resources t was introduced: 
 

• Jacqueline Lopez, Administrative Assistant II, hired January 16, 2023, Planning & 
Resources  

 
The following staff member from Policy & Inter-Agency Relations was introduced: 
 

• Christopher Garcia, Environmental Resources Planner II, hired January 8, 2023, 
Policy & Inter-Agency Relations 

 
The Board of Directors welcomed Ms. Crawford, Mr. Palencia, Mr. Chok, Mr. Hernandez,             
Ms. Lopez, and Mr. Garcia to the IEUA team. The Board of Directors congratulated Mr. Dyer,     
Mr. Makowski, Mr. Rodriguez, and Mr. Delgado on their promotions and reclassifications. 
 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

A. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1-3, ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh provided the staff presentation. 
 

 President Tule opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, President 
Tule closed the public hearing. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

4 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR ELIE, THE BOARD ADOPTED 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1-3, ADOPTING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
CODE, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

      
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: Hall 

 
 

2. CONSENT ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES 
 
B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1-2, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 

DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES FOR CONDUCTING 
MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 

C. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)   
 

D. RP-1 AND RP-4 GENERATOR CONTROL RETROFITS CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin) 
 
E. PRESERVE LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin) 
 
F. BRINE SEWER SYSTEM (BSS) AND REGIONAL SEWER SYSTEM (RSS) 

MANHOLE UPGRADES FY 22/23 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
 

G. MEANS CONSULTING CONTRACT AMENDMENT (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 

H. CENTRIFUGE SERVICE CONTRACT AMENDMENT (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
I. GROUNDWATER RECHARGE MASTER SERVICE CONTRACT AWARDS 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
J. RP-4 PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II CONSULTANT CONTRACT AWARD 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
K. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1-1, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY-WIDE 

ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/24 (Community & Leg) 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

5 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 2A 
THROUGH 2K, WERE APPROVED AS 
RECOMMENDED BELOW, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: Hall 
 

o Approved the minutes of the December 7 and December 21, 2022 Board Meetings.  
 

o Adopted Resolution No. 2023-1-2, making certain findings and determinations 
regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference. 

 
o Approved the total disbursements for the month of November 2022, in the amount 

of $28,825,460.19. 
 

o Approved the construction contract change order for the RP-1 and RP-4 
Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, to Big Sky Electric, for an additional 
amount of $158,000, increasing the contract amount to $333,100 (90%); 
approved a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $200,000 to the 
RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, increasing the budget 
from $240,000 to $440,000 in the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) 
Fund; and authorized the General Manager to execute the change order and total 
project budget increase, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Awarded a construction contract for the Preserve Lift Station Improvements, 

Project No. EN23066, to Tharsos Inc., for the amount of $781,000; approved a 
total project budget and FY 22/23 project budget augmentation in the amount of 
$595,000 to Project No. EN23066 increasing the budget from $455,000 to 
$1,050,000 in the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund; and 
authorized the General Manager to execute the construction contract and budget 
augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Awarded a construction contract for the BSS Manhole Upgrades FY 22/23 and 

RSS Manhole Upgrades FY 22/23, Project Nos. EN23014 and EN23015, to 
Norstar Plumbing and Engineering in the amount of $413,000; and authorized the 
General Manager to execute the contract; subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Approved a contract amendment for professional consulting services to Means 

Consulting, LLC in the amount of $262,488, increasing the contract from 
$239,514 to a not-to-exceed amount of $502,002; and authorized the General 
Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to non-substantive 
changes. 

 
o Approved a contract amendment for the centrifuge services with Sentrimax 

Centrifuge Inc. for three, one-year extensions in the amount of $510,000, 
increasing the contract from $90,000 to a not-to-exceed amount of $600,000; and 
authorized the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to 
non-substantive changes.  



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

6 

 
o Approved contract awards for the Groundwater Recharge Master Service 

Contracts to Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc. (Contract No. 4600003196), Hal 
Hays Construction, Inc. (Contract No. 46000003198), and Mike Bubalo 
Construction Co., Inc. (Contract No. 4600003197), for Groundwater Recharge 
Master Services for a not-to-exceed amount of $1,000,000; and authorized the 
General Manager to execute the master service contracts, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

 
o Awarded a consultant contract for the RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II, 

Project No. EN20057, to Carollo Engineers Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of 
$1,084,943; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject 
to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Adopted Resolution No. 2023-1-1, authorizing the Agency-wide organizational 

memberships and affiliations for Fiscal Year 2023/23; and authorized the General 
Manager to approve all Agency-wide membership fees that are $10,000 or less.  

 
   
3. ACTION ITEMS 

 
A. NORTH SYSTEM NORTH TRUNK (NSNT) SEWER SIPHON REPLACEMENT 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin)   
Director Hofer announced his abstention on item 3A and left the room during 
discussion of the item.  
 
Associate Engineer Megan Trott provided the staff presentation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, AWARDED A 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE NSNT 
SEWER SIPHON REPLACEMENT, PROJECT NO. 
EN20064, TO FERREIRA CONSTRUCTION CO., 
FOR THE AMOUNT OF $2,686,640; APPROVED A 
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET AUGMENTATION IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $1,387,853 TO THE NSNT 
SEWER SIPHON REPLACEMENT, PROJECT NO. 
EN20064, INCREASING THE BUDGET FROM 
$3,112,147 TO $4,500,000 IN THE NON-
RECLAIMABLE WASTEWATER (10500) FUND; 
AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
AND BUDGET AUGMENTATION, SUBJECT TO 
NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, AS 
RECOMMENDED, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: Hall 
 

Abstain: Hofer 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

7 

 
 
 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. ANNUAL REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS REPORT –               
FY 2021/22 (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT)  
Environmental Resources Planner II Chris Garcia provided the staff presentation. 
 

B. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – JANUARY 2023 (POWERPOINT) 
Principal Engineer Brian Wilson and Senior Associate Engineer Vicky Salazar 
provided the staff presentation. 
 

C. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT UPDATES 
Manager of Engineering & Construction Management Jason Marseilles provided an 
update on the following projects: CCWRF 12kv Backup Generator Control Circuit 
Improvements; Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades; and RP-1 & RP-4 Generator 
Control Panel Retrofit Modernization. 

 
The following items were received and filed by the Board:  

 
D. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY (WRITTEN)  

 
E. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 

(WRITTEN)  
 
F. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN)  
 
G. OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE 

(POWERPOINT) 
 
H. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT)  

 
 

5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh reported that at the January 17 Commission 
meeting, the Commission approved the updated SAWPA Reserve Policy; authorized 
the rotation of officers in accordance with the historical rotation and appointed        
Bruce Whitaker as Commission Chair, Mike Gardner as Vice Chair, and T. Milford 
Harrison as Secretary-Treasurer; and adopted a resolution recognizing                   
James D. Herberg for his contributions and dedication to public service as General 
Manager of the Orange County Sanitation District.  
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REPORT 
General Manager Deshmukh reported that at the January 9 Special Board Meeting, 
the MWD Board received an update on the status of the Colorado River. Storage in 
Lake Powell and Lake Mead remains very low, and negotiations are underway among 
the basin states and the Department of the Interior to find immediate and long-term 
ways to reduce demand. It is expected that by the end of this year, the parties will 
either have agreed to a pathway forward or talks could result in litigation.  
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

8 

Even if the State Water Project system improves significantly, the entire MWD system 
is expected to stay in allocation conditions due to the status of the Colorado River. The 
Board did authorize $100 million towards the purchase of spot transfers if needed.  
 
General Manager Deshmukh reported that MWD’s board awarded a contract to 
construct a bypass pipeline at the Wadsworth Pumping Plant as part of the water 
supply reliability improvements in the Rialto Pipeline service area. This contract is one 
component of a $50 million project to connect our region to Diamond Valley Lake by 
2024 and bring drought relief. 
 
General Manager Deshmukh also reported that Director Camacho, who is Vice Chair 
at MWD, received a ten-year service pin and handed the gavel to incoming MWD Chair 
Ortega.  
 
Director Camacho noted that Director Randy Record received a twenty-year service 
pin and two new Directors were sworn in to the MWD Board.  
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
There was nothing to report. 
 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 
There was nothing to report. 
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 
President Tule reported that at the January 5 Board meeting, the CDA Board approved 
the Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2021/22 and a construction contract award 
for the WELL II-1 Improvements Project. 

 
F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 

There was nothing to report. 
 
 

6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
General Manager Deshmukh reported that last week, the Agency held its inaugural New 
Hire Tour as part of the New Splash employee onboarding experience. 27 new staff 
participated in the tour which included stops at Carbon Canyon, RP-1, IERCF, and the 
Chino Desalter. General Manager Deshmukh stated he hoped that this Tour, which will be 
held quarterly, will help the Agency’s new staff understand how their work fits into the 
bigger picture while simultaneously creating a networking opportunity with their peers.   
 
General Manager Deshmukh provided a water supply update, noting that the current 
storm in Northern California is the last of five storms projected through the end of 
January.  These storms provided precipitation levels of nearly 160% of average to date 
and snow/water content levels of roughly 200%. Storage levels continue to improve in 
the key SWP reservoirs of Lake Oroville and San Luis Reservoir. Lake Oroville is at 
104% of its historical average and recently passed the storage level on this date in 2022. 
San Luis Reservoir is still below normal levels at 66% of average for this date but should 
begin to fill quickly now that regulatory releases are complete. Further, MWD did allocate 
additional Water Surplus and Drought Management supplies to IEUA under the 
Emergency Water Conservation Plan, but we do not expect any significant increases 
until the SWP allocation passes 15%. 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

9 

The Agency did receive an indication from MWD that the SWP allocation may increase 
ahead of the normal February timeline, but increases are expected to be modest given 
reservoir levels and a general cautiousness given the way the water year unfolded last 
year. Finally, as Director Camacho noted, we still expect some type of shortage 
allocation from Metropolitan in 2023. 
 
General Manager Deshmukh noted that Director Hall had requested the Human Health 
and Safety Water numbers at a previous Board meeting. He reported that the human 
health and safety water for June 1 through December 31, 2022, was 147,117 acre-feet 
(AF) while IEUA’s share was 19,230 AF. For January 1 through June 30, 2023, that is set 
for 144,315 AF while IEUA’s allotment is 3,206 AF.  
 
General Manager Deshmukh added that IEUA’s Groundwater Recharge team conducted 
field inspections and monitoring of basin level readings throughout the recent storms. 
Overall stormwater capture is estimated at 5,100 AF which converts to 1.6 billion gallons 
of water in the region. 
 
 

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Director Hofer asked about the deadline for the negotiations on the Colorado River and 
what agencies are involved in the ongoing litigation. Director Hofer requested how much 
water flowed  down to the Santa Ana River during this last storm.  

 

 
8. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 

Vice President Elie stated that he attended the IEUA End of the Year Celebration on 
December 21. 

 
President Tule stated that he also attended the IEUA End of the Year Celebration on  
December 21. 

 
 
9. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 11:04 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) – CONFERENCE 
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

1. Workers’ Compensation Claim Nos. IEUC-000495; 4A2208YJ8LZ-0001 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Three Cases 
 

C. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54957 AND 54957.6 – 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

1. General Manager 
 

The meeting resumed at 12:20 p.m. and General Counsel Marty Cihigoyenetche stated 
that the Board discussed Item 9B with the following reportable action:  

 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO. THE BOARD ACCEPTED 
AN OFFER OF COMPROMISE FROM LANE 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

10 

SECURITY PAVING REGARDING COSTS TO 
REPAIR A RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE BREAK 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $225,000, BY THE 
FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: Hall 
 

Abstain: None 
 

 
General Counsel Cihigoyenetche stated the Board also discussed Item 9C with no 
reportable action. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
President Tule adjourned the meeting at 12:22 p.m.  

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 15, 2023 



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1B 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of December 2022 were $26,961,777.56. Disbursement
activity included check payments of $778,382.26 to vendors and $16,024.18 for worker's
compensation related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) of $14,556,931.41 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $8,166,098.32. The total
payroll was $3,438,525.86 for employees and $5,815.53 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of December 2022 in the amount of
$26,961,777.56.

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On January 18, 2023 the Board of Directors approved the November 2022 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $28,825,460.19.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23037



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 778,382.26
2B Workers' Comp Checks $ 16,024.18
2C Vendor ACHs $ 14,556,931.41
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 8,166,098.32
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 5,815.53
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 3,438,525.86

Total Disbursements $26,961,777.56

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

MWD $ 6,151,128.32 October 2022 Water Purchases

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 5,827,912.18 Professional Svc’s for EN17110 – RP-4 Process 
Improvements; EN19043- RP-1 Centrifuge Foul Air Line.

COUNTY SANITATION 
DISTRICTS OF LOS 
ANGELES COUNTY

$ 1,536,761.00 2nd QTR Wastewater Treatment Surcharge

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 991,656.14 P/R 124, 24, 125, 25; Dir 12 Taxes

SO CALIF EDISON $ 765,323.68 9/19/22 – 12/22/22 Electricity

PERS $ 747,194.02 12/22 Health Ins; P/R 24, 25

BEST CONTRACTING 
SERVICES INC $ 568,704.81 Professional Svc’s for FM21005.01 – Structural Agency Wide 

Roofing Phase III





































































































































































 
6

IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1C 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

 RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement Design Consultant Contract Award

Through the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Enterprise System Project and
consistent with the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) SCADA Master Plan, the control
systems at each IEUA treatment plant have been migrated to the standardized software platform,
Rockwell PlantPAx, except at the Regional Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1) in which DeviceNet is
the communication protocol that is currently used. The RP-1 SCADA Migration construction
phase will start in Spring 2023, and new technology installed as part of this project will not
support DeviceNet. Additionally, DeviceNet is being discontinued by Rockwell, and better
protocols, such as Ethernet, are available. The purpose of this project is to develop a design to
replace all devices that are using DeviceNet throughout RP-1. These devices include VFD
drives, DeviceNet starter auxiliaries, and Electronic Overload Relays located in Motor Control
Centers.

On October 12, 2022, IEUA issued a request for proposals to design consultants listed on
PlanetBids. On November 30, 2022, IEUA received two proposals. The IEUA evaluation panel
determined that the most qualified consultant was Eramosa International Inc., with a design fee
of $465,918.

1. Award a design consultant contract for the RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement, Project No.
EN23000, to Eramosa International Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of $465,918; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN23000/RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement

None.

1000 127108 10800 590000 EN23000

02/08/23Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of
Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure
that systems are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainability
managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the
environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

None.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation 
Attachment 2 - Contract (Click to Download)

Not Applicable

23024

https://www.dropbox.com/s/al228vmatt479kp/PENDING_FEBRUARY_BOARD_APPROVAL_%E2%80%93_ERAMOSA_INT.pdf?dl=0


 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement
Design Consultant Contract Award

Project No. EN23000

Pierre Cayatte, P.E.

Senior Engineer 

February 2023



Project Location: Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1

2



Project Background

• DeviceNet is a communication protocol 
— Interconnects lower-level devices with higher-level 

devices
— Such as sensors and flowmeters with  

Programmable Logic Controllers (PLCs)
• DeviceNet is used throughout RP-1
• RP-1 SCADA Migration project will transition from 

DeviceNet to new technology
• Replace all devices that are using DeviceNet

— Approximately 250 devices

3



Design Services Scope of Work

• Evaluate the age and quality of existing Motor Control Center (MCCs) 
—Determine if the MCCs need to be replaced or only their overloads relays 

• Evaluate, recommend and provide complete design
• Evaluate, verify, and update Process Control Narratives (PCNs) 

—Adapt to current conditions for each DeviceNet device that will be upgraded.
• Provide recommendations for programming services for all DeviceNet device 

upgrades

4



Consultant Selection

• On November 30, 2022, IEUA received two proposals
• All proposals were carefully reviewed by a committee review panel
• Qualifications Based Selection: 

—Project team qualifications, creative alternatives, consulting related experience, 
project schedule, man-hour distribution 

Consultant Proposal Fee

Eramosa International, Inc. $465,918
GHD, Inc. Not Opened

5



Project Budget and Schedule

6

Description Estimated Cost

Design Services $732,228
Design Services (Action) $465,918
IEUA Project Management (10%) $266,310
Construction Services $332,888

Engineering Services During Construction (8%) $213,048
IEUA Construction Services (4.5%) $119,840
Construction $2,663,100
Construction Contract Estimate $2,421,000
Project Contingency (10%) $242,100
Total Project Cost: $3,728,216

Current Total Project Budget: $4,100,000

Project Milestone Date

Design 
Consultant Design Contract Award February 2023
Design Completion November 2023

Construction 
Construction Contract Award February 2024
Construction Completion September 2025

6



• Award a design contract for the RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement, 
Project No. EN23000, to Eramosa International, Inc. in the 
amount of $465,918; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject 
to non-substantive changes.

Staff’s Recommendation

7

The RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management 
objective that IEUA will ensure the regional sewer system and treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 

sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1D 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

 February 15, 2023
 

Adoption of the 2023 - 2024 Federal and State Legislative Priorities & Policy
Principles

Each year, the IEUA Board of Directors adopts Federal and State Legislative Priorities and
Policy Principles for the upcoming year. The External & Government Affairs Department
conducted a thorough review of the existing Legislative Policy Principles and has revamped the
priorities and principles for the 2023-2024 legislative session to ensure that this document
addresses current issues and opportunities, as well as provides flexibility to address a myriad of
administrative, regulatory, and legislative activity. It is recommended that moving forward, this
document align with the two-year State legislative session and Congressional terms.

The adoption of the Legislative Priorities and Policy Principles allows staff to be more efficient
and effective when taking positions on legislation, regulatory actions, and funding opportunities.
This document is designed to provide staff with the necessary guidelines in order to make
recommendations if actions need to be taken quickly, as well as making position
recommendations to the Community and Legislative Affairs Committee and the Board of
Directors.

Adopt the 2023-2024 Legislative Priorities and Policy Principles.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

02/08/23Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Approving the Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles is in line with IEUA's Business Goal of 
advocating for development of policies, legislation, and regulations that benefit the region.

On January 19, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted the 2022 Legislative Policy Principles.

Attachment 1 - 2023-2024 IEUA Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles

Not Applicable

23022



 2 0 2 3 - 2 0 2 4

L e g i s l a t i v e  P r i o r i t i e s 
&  P o l i c y  P r i n c i p l e s



IEUA serves approximately 935,000 residents over 242 

square miles in western San Bernardino County.  

1



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Mission,  Values,  and Introduction 04

Water Supply & Storage 
Water Use Efficiency & Shortage Response 

Principle of Water Supply Reliabil ity
05

Energy Supply and Reliability 
Composting

Principle of Water-Energy Nexus 
07

Water Quality 
Accessibility 
Public & Environmental Health 

Principle of Clean and Safe Drinking Water

09

Administrative Processes 
Financial 
Local Control 
Human Resources/Employment
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, Access, and Transparency

Principle of Responsive and Responsible Finance, 
Administration,  and Operations

11

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 2



Regional Plant (RP)-5 in Chino, CA treats up to 15 million gallons of wastewater 

per day, equivalent to 22 Olympic-sized swimming pools. 

3



Mission 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) is committed to meeting the needs of the 
region by providing essential services in a regionally planned and cost-effective 
manner while safeguarding public health, promoting economic development, and 
protecting the environment. 

Key Areas of Service 
1. Securing and supplying imported water. 

2. Collecting and treating wastewater.

3. Producing high-quality renewable products such as recycled water, compost, 
and energy.

4. Promoting sustainable use of groundwater and development of local water 
supplies.

1. Applying ethical, fiscally responsible, transparent, and environmentally sustainable 
principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

2. Working with integrity as one team, while celebrating the region's diversity. 

3. Staying in the forefront of the industry through education, innovation, efficiency, 
and creativity. 

Leading the way. Planning for the future. Protecting the resources of the communities 
we serve. The Inland Empire Utilities Agency is committed to: 

Values 

Introduction/Overview 
IEUA has adopted Legislative Priorities and Policy Principles to provide a foundation 
for a highly productive advocacy program that will effectively influence legislation, 
regulations, and funding in alignment with IEUA's mission and values. The IEUA External 
and Government Affairs Department, as the lead coordinating with all sectors within the 
Agency, uses the following four principles as a basis for taking positions on legislation, 
regulations, and funding opportunities. 

1. Principle of Water Supply Reliability 

2. Principle of Water-Energy Nexus 

3. Principle of Clean and Safe Drinking Water 

4. Principle of  Responsive and Responsible Finance, Administration, and Operations 

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 4



Principle of Water
Supply Reliability 

Maintain and protect the reliability and cost-effectiveness 
of local and imported sources of water. Advocate for 
groundwater storage, recovery, and management, brackish 
desalination, wastewater treatment, recycled water, and 
conservation as effective and efficient drought response 
efforts. 

Policy Goal 

5



1. Support local water supply, storage, and recovery projects that ensure future 
reliability, increase local flexibility, reduce reliance on imported water and 
oppose efforts that constrain these opportunities. 

2. Support administrative and legislative actions that promote resiliency, improved 
operability of IEUA and regional systems, and respond to and plan for drought 
conditions while maintaining the necessary environmental protections. 

3. Support administrative, legislative, and funding opportunities to ensure the 
reliability of imported water supplies including, but not limited to, conveyance 
and storage projects, salinity control measures, and cleanup for contaminated 
sites.

4. Support funding opportunities for local water supply development and water 
quality improvement projects benefiting IEUA's Region, IEUA customer agencies, 
the Chino Basin, and the Santa Ana Watershed. 

5. Support funding for drought relief and adaptive water management 
opportunities in California that promote sustainability and reliability. 

6. Support administrative and legislative actions that facilitate the adoption of 
practical uniform water recycling criteria and expanded application for direct 
and indirect potable reuse. 

Water Supply & Storage 

Water Use Efficiency & Shortage Response

1. Support a definition of "efficient use of water" that includes local hydrologic 
conditions and protects trees and healthy soils that also minimizes the impacts 
on wastewater flows and treatment operations. 

2. Support conservation actions and efforts during declared water shortage 
emergencies that reduce outdoor use of potable water while protecting trees 
and healthy soils. 

3. Support administrative and legislative actions that recognize local hydrologic 
conditions and local/regional efforts in meeting statutory Urban Water Use 
Objectives or other water-use efficiency goals. 

4. Support funding opportunities and incentive programs that promote water-use 
efficiency and permanent water-use restrictions including, but not limited to 
turf transformation, tax exemptions, and technical assistance. 

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 6



RP-4  & Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) in Rancho Cucamonga, CA -  1 megawatt 

Wind Turbine generates 1,500 MWh per year,  equivalent to powering 130 homes per year.

Principle of 
Water-Energy Nexus 

Policy Goal
Promote science-based, environmentally sustainable 
practices that respond to climate change, ensure 
water resilience, and promote emissions reductions 
and renewable energy. 

Energy Supply and Reliability 
1. Support diverse energy supply options and oppose constraints on 

energy supply development. 

2. Support actions and investments in renewable energy to reduce 
reliance on grid power, increase energy reliability, and reduce overall 
energy costs. 

3. Support voluntary investment in wildfire system hardening and 
efforts to insulate IEUA from Public Safety Power Shutoffs. 

4. Support actions that would increase the value of Renewable Energy 
Credits (RECs) generated and sold by wastewater treatment agencies 
that utilize on-site renewable energy. 

5. Support legislation, regulations, and administrative policies that 
ensure that power costs reflect the cost of energy procurement, 
infrastructure, and maintenance. 

6. Support projects and funding for renewable energy resources and 
peak energy management that provide direct benefits for water 
resource sustainability. 

7



Right: Install water champ disconnect at RP-5. 

Left: RP-1 Plant

Composting
1. Support legislation, regulations, and funding that promote compost 

as a use for, but not limited to, erosion control to protect water 
resources, water-use efficiency, fire-ravaged land remediation, and 
healthy soils.

2. Support administrative and legislative approaches for connecting 
carbon sequestration with healthy soils and the use of compost.

3. Support regulations that restrict the use of uncomposted and 
contaminated organics in commercial compost products.

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 8



Principle of Clean and 
Safe Drinking Water

To preserve the delivery of safe and reliable water for all Californians 
in an affordable, economical, and transparent manner.

Policy Goal

1. Support reasonable and scientifically significant administrative 
and legislative actions that promote and/or improve source 
water quality and regulate constituents of emerging concern 
that consider factors such as stakeholder input, feasibility, 
laboratory capacity, analytical methods, and implementation 
costs. 

2. Support legislative and administrative approaches promoting 
“polluter pays” principles, extending responsibility for 
contamination to chemical manufacturers and promoting 
consumer product responsibility.

3. Support actions and investments to help public water systems 
defray the costs of monitoring and/or remediation of per- and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances and ensure drinking water and 
wastewater facilities are not held liable for the cleanup of 
contamination.

4. Support administrative and legislative action to identify and 
promote the use of salt-less water softening technology.  
Oppose any efforts to endorse salt-based technologies.

Water Quality 

9



Accessibility 
1. Support alternative efforts to a sustainable approach to ensure every 

Californian has access to safe, clean, and reliable water.

2. Support sensible, long-term solutions that assist underrepresented 
communities with increased access to safe and affordable drinking water.

Public & Environmental Health 
1. Support funding opportunities for septic-to-sewer conversion projects. 

2. Support modernization of the Endangered Species Act that allows for the 
best available science, adaptive management, and flexible implementation 
to be used. 

3. Support legislation and administrative actions to secure funding for public 
water systems and laboratories to defray costs associated with declared 
federal, state, or local emergencies.

4. Support administrative and legislative actions for environmental 
compliance (e.g., air, water, hazardous materials, and waste) that provide 
for regulatory compliance flexibility, promote consistency, and reduce 
regulatory redundancy.

Quality Control Analyst performing Sufactants testing, a methane blue color reaction to detect the 

existence of anionic substances in water that may cause water corrosion or contamination. 

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 1 0



Principle of Responsive 
and Responsible Finance, 
Administration, and Operations 

Preserve ethical and transparent principles that maintain and support 
responsive fiscal responsibility, local control, employee engagement 
and retention, and diversity and accessibility. 

Policy Goal 

IEUA's four largest facilities have a total 18,000 solar panels that generate 

3.5 megawatts of energy, enough to power 650 homes.  
1 1



Administrative Processes
1. Support efforts that align with IEUA’s commitment to applying the highest 

standards of fiscal responsibility, integrity, ethical, and transparent business 
practices and principles. 

2. Support streamlining of federal, state, and regional permitting; environmental 
review (including, but not limited to, CEQA and NEPA); regulatory and reporting 
mandates; and other duplicative, burdensome, or cumbersome processes. 

3. Support cooperative efforts between public agencies and regulators in the 
development of state and federal policies and regulatory requirements. 

4. Support legislative and regulatory efforts that minimize cost impacts of new or 
expanded regulations and discourage measures that impose an undue burden 
on ratepayers.

5. Support legislation and administrative actions that would provide funding or 
reimbursement for enhanced chemical and physical security and cybersecurity 
for water, wastewater, biosolid, and power infrastructure.

6. Support administrative and legislative actions and funding for research and 
partnerships benefiting water, recycled water, wastewater, composting, and 
energy management.

Top Left: RP-1 Polymer Pump Repair

Bottom Left: RP-1 Z- Chlorine Calibration

Top Right: Managers' Unit  All -Hands Meeting  

Bottom Right: Bleach Tank Installation

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 1 2



Financial

1. Support measures to reduce costs, risks, and burdensome administrative 
processes, and streamline approvals of financing IEUA and regional projects.

2. Support reauthorization, extension, and/or expansion of federal and 
state funding for essential water, sewer, recycled water, and energy 
infrastructure.

3. Support efforts to reinstate public agency advanced bond refunding.

4. Support legislation establishing an approach that proactively validates 
that an agency’s rate-setting process conforms with all legal requirements, 
thereby minimizing uncertainty.

5. Support measures and efforts that protect local revenue sources and 
reserve funds and that maintain tax-exempt status for municipal debt. 

6. Support the development of general obligation bonds or other funding 
streams that provide flexibility to local entities to leverage funds within 
other states, federal, or local resources. 

7. Oppose policies and efforts that would jeopardize IEUA’s bond rating and 
standing in the municipal bond market. 

8. Support legislation and administrative actions to achieve tax-exempt 
status for water treatment chemicals and ensure access to water 
treatment chemicals.

9. Support actions and investments that promote prevention, preparedness, 
response, and recovery of emergencies to enhance IEUA and community 
resilience and ensure effective response and recovery capabilities.

Local Control

1. Support customer agency and regional legislative positions that align with 
IEUA’s legislative priorities and policy principles.

2. Support measures that encourage decision-making at the local level.

3. Oppose efforts to impose a public goods charge or other burdensome fees.

1 3



Human Resources/Employment 

1. Support measures and funding opportunities that promote efforts to advance 
workplace diversity, equity, and inclusion. 

2. Support legislation that encourages collective bargaining.

3. Support legislation that increases local control and limits additional financial 
burdens related to labor relations and collective bargaining that can be 
appropriately negotiated at the bargaining table.

4. Support funding for local government efforts to establish workforce 
engagement, succession planning, mentoring programs, and 
apprenticeships and education programs.

5. Support legislation that streamlines the Workers’ Compensation system 
and makes it easier for employers, employees, and healthcare providers to 
navigate.

6. Support reform measures that provide sustainable and secure public 
pensions and other post-retirement benefits to ensure responsive, 
recruitment retention and affordable public services.

7. Support measures that help local governments with their unfunded liability. 

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, Access, 
and Transparency 

1. Support investments and a distribution of funding that ensures a fair 
and equitable financing process for the public and includes provisions to 
ensure diversity in the process and equity for financially distressed and 
underrepresented populations.

2. Support legislation that allows for greater access to public meetings to the 
public. 

3. Support measures that encourage the streamlining of processes to respond 
to public records requests. 

4. Support measures that allow for access to meaningful data which balance 
the cost of public resources to implement. 

5. Support measures that protect and advance local governance and 
transparency. 

2023-2024 Legislative Priorities & Policy Principles 1 4



Connect with us: 

@IEUAwater

Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs
Phone:  (909) 247-8374
E-Mail:  apiguee@ieua.org
Location: 6075 Kimball Ave, Chino, CA 91708
Website:  ieua.org

 RP-5 in Chino,  CA -  The water stays in the chlorine contact basin for 1.5 hours. Following 

this treatment process, a portion of the water is utilized for recycled water.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1E 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System Improvements Design-Build Contract Award

Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1) uses four bar screens with a spacing of 5/8-inch to
remove material and debris in the influent headworks process. Staff has observed more issues
downstream such as mixers seizing and pumps plugging, resulting in process interruptions,
equipment downtime, and additional maintenance costs. This project will install IEUA's new
standard multi-rake bar screens which have a 3/8-inch spacing that are estimated to increase the
capture rate more than 40% which will reduce operating and maintenance costs.

On August 24, 2022, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) pre-qualified four design-build
teams to bid on the project. The design-build team will prepare and complete design drawings,
specifications, process control narratives, construction, commissioning, startup, testing, and
training for the new bar screens.

On November 3, 2022, IEUA issued an invitation for bids to the four pre-qualified design-build
teams. On December 20, 2022, IEUA received four construction bids. GSE Construction Co.,
Inc. was deemed the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, with a bid price of $1,609,900.
The engineer's estimate was $1,700,000.

1. Award a design-build contract for the RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System Improvements,
Project No. EN23111, to GSE Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $1,609,900; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN23111/RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System Improvements

None.

1000 10800 590000 127109 EN23111

02/08/23Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System Improvements Project is consistent with IEUA’s
Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water
Quality objectives that IEUA will ensure that Agency systems are planned, constructed and
managed to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory
requirements.

On November 16, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Standardization and Single Source
Procurement of Duperon Bar Screens in the amount of $1,800,232.

CEQA identifies certain categories of projects as exempt from more detailed environmental
review because these categories are deemed to have no potential for significant impact on the
environment. The project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption Class 2 as defined in Section
15302 of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Design-Build Contract

Categorical Exemption

23025



 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System Improvements 
Design-Build Contract Award

Project No. EN23111

Sandra Salazar, P.E.

Senior Associate Engineer 

February 2023



2

Project Location: Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1)
Ontario, CA

Headworks



3

The Project

• Existing bar screens 
—Large screen spacing (5/8-inch)
—Low capture rate
—Plugging of downstream pumps
—Downstream process interruptions

• Scope of Work
—Prepare design drawings and specifications
—Install four new multi-rake bar screens 
—Demolish fiberglass bar screen enclosure
—Integrate new equipment to SCADA

RP-1 Existing Influent Bar Screens RP-1 Sludge Grinder

Duperon Bar Screens

Sample 3D Model



4

Contractor Selection

Design-Build Team Bid Amount

GSE Construction/MKN Associates $1,609,900
J.R. Filanc Construction $1,695,165
Garney Pacific/Water Systems Consulting $2,223,780
Innovative Construction Solutions/N2W Engineering $2,265,000

Engineer’s Estimate: $1,700,000

On December 20, 2022, four bids were received:



5

Project Budget and Schedule

Project Milestones Dates

Construction
Design-Build Contract Award February 2023

Design Completion December 2023

Construction Completion June 2024

Description Estimated Cost

Design Services $75,000
Pre-Design & Solicitation (actuals) $75,000

Construction Services                                                                               $330,000
Engineering Services During Construction (~10%) $165,000

IEUA Construction Services(~10%) $165,000

Construction $3,410,132
Design-Build Contract (this action) $1,609,900

Pre-purchased 4 Duperon Bar Screens $1,800,232

Total Project Cost: $3,815,132
Current Budget: $3,900,000



6

Staff’s Recommendations

• Award a design-build contract for the RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen 
System Improvements, Project No. EN23111, to GSE Construction 
Co., Inc. in the amount of $1,609,900; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes.

The RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System Improvements Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater 
Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will ensure that Agency systems are 
planned, constructed and managed to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.



 

 

Attachment 2 



 

4600003231 

RP-1 HEADWORKS BAR SCREENS SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT 

 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this 15 day of _February, 2023, by 
and between _GSE Construction Company Inc. , hereinafter referred to as 
"DESIGN BUILD ENTITY," and The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal 
Water District, located in San Bernardino County, California, hereinafter referred 
to as "IEUA". 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made 
and exchanged, IEUA and the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY agree as follows: 

 
A. DESIGN BUILD ENTITY agrees to perform and complete in a 

workmanlike manner, all Work required under these Bid Documents FOR 
IFB-JV-22-011, Project EN23111, RP-1 Headworks Bar Screens 
System Improvements, in accordance with the Bid Documents, and  to 
furnish at their own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and 
services necessary, except such materials, equipment, and services as 
may be stipulated in said Bid Documents to be furnished by IEUA, and to 
do everything required by this Contract and the said Bid Documents. 

 
B. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, 

furnishing and removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and 
equipment, and doing everything required by this Contract and said Bid 
Documents; also for all loss and damage arising out of the nature of the 
Work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any 
unforeseen difficulties which may arise during the prosecution of the Work 
until its acceptance by IEUA, and for all risks of every description 
connected with the Work; also for all expenses resulting from the 
suspension or discontinuance of Work, except as in the said Bid 
Documents are expressly stipulated to be borne by IEUA; and for 
completing the Work in accordance with the requirements of said Bid 
Documents, IEUA will pay and said DESIGN BUILD ENTITY shall receive, 
in full compensation therefore, the price(s) set forth in this Contract. 

 
C. That IEUA will pay the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY progress payments and 

the final payment, in accordance with the provisions of the Contract 
Documents, with warrants drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as 
required, at the prices bid in the Bidding and Contract Requirements, 
Section C - BID FORMS and accepted by IEUA, and set forth in this 
below. 

 
Total Bid Price: $1,609,900 Dollars and 00 Cents. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B834D8CA-AFD2-445D-8749-8686712D7F9C



 

If this is not a lump sum bid and the Contract Price is dependent upon the 
quantities constructed, IEUA will pay and said DESIGN BUILD ENTITY 
shall receive, in full compensation for the Work the prices named in the 
Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section C - BID FORMS.  

 
D. IEUA hereby employs the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY to perform the Work 

according to the terms of this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), 
and agrees to pay the same at the time, in the manner, and upon the 
conditions stipulated in the said Bid Documents; and the said parties for 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein 
contained. 

 
E. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information 

Required of Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, DESIGN BUILD 
ENTITY’s License Declaration, Specifications, Drawings, all General 
Conditions, Special Conditions and all Project Requirements, and all 
Addenda issued by IEUA with respect to the foregoing prior to the opening 
of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part of this Contract, as if 
fully set forth. 

 
F. The DESIGN BUILD ENTITY agrees to commence Work under this 

Contract on or before the date to be specified in a written "Notice To 
Proceed" and to complete said Work to the satisfaction of IEUA five 
hundred (500) calendar days after Award of the Contract. All Work shall 
be completed before final payment is made. 

 
G. Time is of the essence on this Contract. 

 
H. DESIGN BUILD ENTITY agrees that in case the Work is not completed 

before or upon the expiration of the Contract Time, damage will be 
sustained by IEUA, and that it is and will be impracticable to determine the 
actual damage which IEUA will sustain in the event and by reason of such 
delay, and it is therefore agreed that the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY shall 
pay to IEUA the amounts as set forth in General Conditions, Section C – 
CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT for each day of delay, which shall be the 
period between the expiration of the Contract Time and the date of final 
acceptance by IEUA, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty.  It is 
further agreed that the amount stipulated for liquidated damages per day 
of delay is a reasonable estimate of the damages that would be sustained 
by IEUA, and the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY agrees to pay such liquidated 
damages as herein provided.  In case the liquidated damages are not 
paid, the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY agrees that IEUA may deduct the 
amount thereof from any money due or that may become due to the 
DESIGN BUILD ENTITY by progress payments or otherwise under the 
Contract, or if said amount is not sufficient, recover the total amount. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B834D8CA-AFD2-445D-8749-8686712D7F9C



 

 
I. In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the 

DESIGN BUILD ENTITY fails to complete the Work within the time agreed 
upon, IEUA may also deduct from any sums due or to become due to the 
DESIGN BUILD ENTITY, penalties and fines for violations of applicable 
local, state, and federal law. 

 
J. That the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY shall carry Workers' Compensation 

Insurance and require all subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation 
Insurance as required by the California Labor Code. 

 
K. That the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY shall have furnished, prior to execution 

of the Contract, two bonds approved by IEUA, one in the amount of one 
hundred (100) percent of the Contract Price, to guarantee the faithful 
performance of the Work, and one in the amount of one hundred (100) 
percent of the Contract Price to guarantee payment of all claims for labor 
and materials furnished. 

 
L. The DESIGN BUILD ENTITY hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify 

and hold IEUA and its employees, Engineers, agents, officers, directors, 
servants and volunteers free and harmless from any and all liability, 
claims, judgments, costs and demands, including demands arising from 
injuries or death of persons (including employees of IEUA and the 
DESIGN BUILD ENTITY) and damage to property, arising directly or 
indirectly out of the obligation herein undertaken or out of the 
operations conducted by the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY, its employees 
agents, representatives or subcontractors under or in connection with 
this Contract to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
The DESIGN BUILD ENTITY further agrees to investigate, handle, 
respond to, provide defense for and defend any such claims, demands 
or suit at the sole expense of the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The DESIGN BUILD ENTITY and the General 
Manager of Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, 
have caused the names of said parties to be affixed hereto, each in 
duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

 
M. The DESIGN BUILD ENTITY, by signing the contract does swear under 

penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappeasable finding of 
contempt of court by a Federal court has been issued against the DESIGN 
BUILD ENTITY within the immediately preceding two year period because 
of the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY’s failure to comply with an order of a 
Federal court which orders the DESIGN BUILD ENTITY to comply with an 
order of the National Labor Relations Board (Public Contract Code 
10296). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B834D8CA-AFD2-445D-8749-8686712D7F9C



 

 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency*,   DESIGN BUILD ENTITY 
San Bernardino County, California.     
 
By __________________________    By _______________________ 
          Shivaji Deshmukh        Dennis Gutierrez 

General Manager                           
      
                   President         

        Title 
 
* A Municipal Water District 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B834D8CA-AFD2-445D-8749-8686712D7F9C



ACTION 
ITEM 

2A



Budget Impact 



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

23040



Page 1 of 10 

RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 
THIS RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, effective as of February 15, 

2023, is by and between INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY a Municipal Water District 
organized and operating pursuant to California Water Code Section 71000 et seq. (“Employer”), 
and SHIVAJI DESHMUKH an individual (“Employee”).  Employer and Employee agree to the 
following terms and conditions of employment: 

 
WHEREAS, The Parties have previously entered into a First Amended Employment 

Agreement effective May 22, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 16, 2022, the Parties agreed to extend the term of the First 

Amended Employment Agreement to June 30, 2027; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain changes to the Employment Agreement are deemed necessary to bring 

that agreement into conformity with other executive management employment agreements currently 
in effect at the Agency (Employer); 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1.  Period of Employment. 

 
(a) Basic Term.  Commencing on February 15, 2023 and continuing until June 30, 2027, ( the 

“Term   Date”), Employer shall employ Employee as the General Manager.  The Term Date 
may be extended under Section 1 (b), unless the employment is terminated sooner in 
accordance with Section 5 below.   As used herein, the phrase "Employment Term” shall 
refer to the entire period of employment of Employee by Employer hereunder, whether 
for the periods mentioned above or whether extended or earlier terminated as hereinafter 
provided. 

 
(b) Renewal.   This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for an additional one (1) year 

period on the Term Date and on each anniversary thereof, unless one party gives to the 
other advance written notice of non-renewal at least sixty (60) days prior to such date.  
Either party may elect not to renew this Agreement with or without cause, in which case 
this Section 1 (b) shall govern Employee’s termination and not Section 5 [except for 
Employee’s termination obligations set forth in Section 5(g), which shall remain in effect). 

 
2.  Duties and Responsibilities. 

 
(a) Position.  Employee shall serve as the General Manager for the Employer.  In that capacity, 

Employee shall perform all services, acts, and functions necessary and proper to lawfully 
manage and conduct the business of Employer in accordance with all legal requirements 
and the policies, procedures, rules, and regulations established by Employer’s Board of 
Directors (“the Board”), and subject to the direction, prior consent, and subsequent 
ratification of the Board.  Employee’s duties shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
supervising Employer’s personnel and financial matters, attending meetings of the Board 
and its Committees, supervising the administration of all operations of Employer, subject 



Page 2 of 10 

to policies set by the Board, and managing and conducting all the business of Employer. 
In addition, Employee shall report directly to the Board and shall perform any special 
duties assigned or delegated to him by the Board. 

 
(b) Availability and Work Schedule.  In order that nothing interfere with the performance of 

Employee’s duties under this Agreement or create any conflicts of interest during his 
employment, Employee shall devote his full energies, interest, abilities, and productive time 
to the satisfactory performance of this Agreement and shall not engage in any other activities 
except as otherwise approved by the Board.  During the Employment Term, Employee shall 
perform all services required by this Agreement at Employer’s headquarters during 
Employer’s regular business hours, unless Employee’s presence at other locations or during 
different times is necessary to fully and completely perform the duties of the position 
assumed by Employee.  
 

(c) Prohibited Activities.  Except upon the prior written consent and express approval of the 
Board, Employee (during the Employment Term) shall not (i) borrow on behalf of 
Employer any amount of money during any fiscal year; (ii) spend or obligate Employer’s 
funds in amounts in excess of the sums budgeted for expenditure by the Board; (iii) accept 
any other employment; (iv) engage directly or indirectly in any other business, commercial, 
civil, or professional activity, whether or not pursued for pecuniary advantage, that is or 
may be competitive with Employer, that might create a conflict  of interest  with 
Employer, or that otherwise might interfere with the business of Employer or any Affiliate 
of Employer;  or  (v)  accept  any  position  with  an  outside  agency  without  prior 
approval  of  the  Board.   An “Affiliate” shall mean  any person or entity that directly or 
indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Employer. 

 
(d) Representations.   Employee represents and warrants (i) that he is fully qualified and 

competent to perform the responsibilities for which he is being hired pursuant to the terms 
of this Agreement; and (ii) that Employee's execution of this Agreement, his employment 
with Employer, and the performance of his proposed duties under this Agreement shall not 
violate any obligation he may have to any former  employer  (or  other  person  or  entity),  
including  any  obligations  with respect to proprietary or confidential information of any 
person or entity. 

 
3. Compensation. 

 
(a) Base Salary. Employer shall pay Employee a Base Salary at the rate of $340,000.00   per   year   

during   the   Employment   Term   in   accordance   with Employer's duly established practices. 
For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Base Salary” shall be defined as Employee’s 
annual gross compensation, exclusive of the cost of any insurance or other benefits made 
available to Employee. Base Salary shall be payable to Employee in installments consistent 
with Employer’s regular pay period cycles and subject to appropriate withholdings.  Employer 
may, but is not obligated to, increase Employee’s Base Salary as deemed appropriate by the 
Board in the exercise of its sole discretion upon completion of its annual review of Employee's 
job performance. 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 

(b) Cost of Living Adjustment. Employee shall be entitled to cost of living increases 
commensurate with those cost of living increases extended to other executive management 
employees. 
 

(c) Performance Award.  During the Employment Term, Employer, in the exercise of its 
discretion, may also pay Employee a  Performance Award in addition to Base Salary for 
successful completion of goals and objectives established by the Board.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term "Performance Award” shall be defined as meritorious compensation, 
subject to appropriate withholdings, not included in the calculation of Base Salary. The 
maximum amount of any Performance Award that Employee may receive under this 
Agreement shall be ten percent (10%) of Base Salary.  
 

(d) Automobile Allowance.  During the Employment Term, Employer shall provide Employee 
an automobile allowance of $700.00 per month for use of Employee's personal vehicle on 
Employer's business.  The automobile allowance includes full compensation for all costs, 
depreciation, operation, maintenance and repairs, insurance, gasoline, tires and oil, and all 
other incidental expenses associated with the operation of Employee’s personal automobile 
on Employer’s business. 

 
(e) Benefits.  During the Employment Term, Employee shall be entitled to receive those benefits 

provided by Employer to its executive management employees in accordance with 
Employer’s standard policies.  As Employee becomes eligible therefor, Employee shall have 
the right to participate in and to receive benefits from all present and future benefit plans 
specified in Employer's policies and generally made available to similarly situated employees 
of Employer. Medical benefits shall be made available to Employee and his dependents in an 
amount equal to the cost of the most generous family coverage premium available through 
the Public Employment Retirement System (PERS). Employer will pay the monthly premium 
on the medical and dental benefit provided by Employer to Employee. Employee may exercise 
the option to accept 100% of the value of the health benefits described herein as cash in lieu 
of coverage, however, Employee must provide Employer with proof of health coverage 
through an alternative provider. Commencing on the month following retirement, whereupon 
Employee receives a retirement allowance from PERS, Employer shall provide Employee and 
his dependents medical, dental and vision, and other Employer provided insurance coverage, 
to the extent that it is provided to other executive management employees. Employee also 
shall be entitled to any benefits or compensation tied to termination as described in Section 5 
below. All compensation and comparable payments to be paid to Employee under this 
Agreement shall be less withholdings required by law. 

 
(f) Supplemental Insurance.  Employee shall receive term life insurance coverage from 

Employer 1x employee’s annual salary up to $300,000 during the Employment Term.  
Employee shall cooperate with Employer if Employer seeks to obtain “ key employee” 
insurance coverage on Employee for the benefit of Employer. 
 

(g) Vacation.  Subject to paragraph 4b of this Agreement, Employee shall be entitled to one 
hundred sixty (160) hours of vacation time each employment anniversary year during the 
Employment Term without loss of compensation, eighty (80) hours of which shall be credited 
to Employee’s account immediately upon execution of this Agreement and the remainder of 
which shall accrue in the same manner as otherwise applicable to executive management 
employees of Employer.  Upon termination of employment, Employee shall be entitled to 



Page 4 of 10 

payment of all accrued but unused vacation leave at the rate of compensation in effect at the 
time of termination in conformance with Employer's then-current policy. 

 
(h) Sick Leave.  Subject to paragraph 4b of this Agreement, Employee shall be entitled to accrue 

sick leave each year during the Employment Term without loss of compensation, in an amount 
commensurate with executive management employees. Upon termination of employment, 
Employee shall be entitled to payment of all accrued but unused sick leave at the rate of 
compensation in effect at the time of termination in conformance with Employer’s then-
current policy including, but not limited to, policies limiting the accrual of sick leave.  

 
(i) Executive Leave.   Subject to paragraph 4b of this Agreement, Employee shall be entitled to 

eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year  during the Employment Term without 
loss of compensation, all of which shall be credited to Employee's account immediately 
upon execution and a g a i n  on the first day of July of each year during the Employment 
Term. Executive leave shall accrue in the same manner as otherwise applicable to executive 
management employees of Employer.    
 

(j) Professional Development.  Employer shall pay for travel and subsistence expenses of 
Employee for professional and office meetings, conferences, workshops and occasions 
adequate to continue the professional development of Employee and to adequately pursue 
necessary official functions for Employer. All such expenditures shall be in conformity with 
the applicable policies and procedures of Employer.  
 

(k) General Expenditures.  Employer recognizes that certain expenses of non-personal and job 
affiliated nature are incurred by Employee in conjunction with his responsibilities hereunder 
and shall reimburse or pay said general expenses in accordance with existing Employer policy 
for other executive management employees 
 

(l) Deferred Compensation. Beginning with the pay period starting on February 19, 2023, and 
during the Employment Term (or if earlier, through the date Employee’s employment with 
Employer terminates), Employer shall contribute $576.92 per pay period to Employee’s 
account under Employer’s 457(b) deferred compensation plan. If Employee’s employment 
terminates during a pay period, the Employer contribution for that pay period will be pro-
rated accordingly. Additionally, the contributions will be pre-tax except to the extent (i) 
Employee directs the contribution be made as a Roth contribution (an option that applies only 
if permitted under the 457(b) plan’s terms), or (ii) the tax laws mandate that the contribution 
be made as a Roth contribution. Employee acknowledges and understands that any Roth 
contributions made by the Employer to Employee’s 457(b) account will be after-tax and, as 
such, subject to applicable tax withholdings.  Finally, Employer contributions will be made 
only to the extent permitted under the contribution limits imposed by the tax laws.  

 
4.  Other Terms and Conditions of Employment. 

 
(a) Automobile Insurance.  Employee shall, at his sole expense, acquire and maintain in effect 

always during the term of this Agreement automobile insurance, in a form acceptable to the 
Board, covering all motor vehicles operated by Employee while on Employer’s business 
and providing liability limits for bodily injury and property damage of not less than 
$500,000, and uninsured and underinsured motorist coverage of at least $500,000, 



Page 5 of 10 

combined single limit per occurrence. Employer and its officers, directors, and employees 
shall be expressly covered as additional insureds on all insurance required under this 
Agreement, and endorsements evidencing such coverage shall be provided to the Board. On 
June 30 of each year Employee shall provide the Board with certificate(s) of insurance which 
reflect(s) the coverages required under this Agreement, in a form acceptable to the Board, 
and signed by the insurer(s) or an authorized representative. The said certificate(s)shall 
contain a stipulation that none of the coverages required under this Agreement will be 
canceled, modified, non-renewed, or suffer any changes in conditions except after at 
least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board.  All insurers providing the 
coverages required under this Paragraph shall be admitted, domestic carriers with all 
evidences of coverages countersigned by authorized representatives properly licensed in the 
State of California.  Said insurers must also possess at least an "A: XIII" policyholder's 
rating in accordance with the current Best's Key Rating Guide or equivalent. 

 
(b) Employer Reservation.  Employer shall fix any such other terms and conditions of 

employment, as it may determine from time to time, relating to the performance of 
Employee, provided such terms and conditions are not inconsistent with or in conflict 
with the provisions of this Agreement or applicable law.  Except as herein provided, all 
other requirements of the ordinances, resolutions, and regulations and rules of Employer 
relating to vacation and sick leave, retirement and pension system contributions, holidays, 
and other fringe benefits and working conditions, as they now exist or hereafter may be 
amended, also shall apply to Employee as they would to other employees of Employer, in 
addition to said benefits enumerated specifically herein. 

 
(c) Evaluation of Performance. Employer shall evaluate the performance of Employee not less 

than every twelve months, or more often at the Employer 's discretion. Such written and/or 
oral evaluations shall be used as a basis for determining in the exercise of the Employer's sole 
discretion any adjustments to compensation and/or benefits to which Employee may be 
entitled. 
 

(d) Personnel Manual.  Subject to paragraph 4b of this Agreement, all provisions, terms and 
conditions of the Executive Management Employees Personnel Manual not in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement shall apply. To the extent such a conflict occurs, this Agreement 
shall be controlling. 
 

(e) Classification.  The position of General Manager shall be deemed a separate classification of 
employee.  

 
5.  Termination of Employment. 

 
(a) By Death.  The Employment Term shall terminate automatically upon the death of Employee.   

Employer shall pay to Employee's beneficiaries or estate as appropriate any compensation 
then due and owing, including payment for accrued, unused paid time off, if any.  Thereafter, 
all obligations of Employer under this Agreement shall cease.   Nothing in this section shall 
affect any entitlement or Employee's heirs to the benefits of any life insurance plan or other 
applicable benefits. 

 
 



Page 6 of 10 

(b) By Disability.  If because of any physical or mental incapacity, Employee has been or will 
be prevented from properly performing his duties under this Agreement for more than six 
(6) consecutive months, then to the extent permitted by law, the Board may terminate the 
Employment Term, pursuant to Section 5(c), below, upon two (2) weeks advance written 
notice. Employer shall pay Employee all compensation to which he is entitled up through 
the last business day of the notice period and a lump sum cash payment equal to three (3) 
months base salary; thereafter, all obligations of Employer under this Agreement shall 
cease.  Nothing in this Section shall affect Employee's rights under any applicable Employer 
disability plan. 
 

(c) By Employer for Cause.   At any time, and without prior notice, the Employer may 
terminate Employee for cause (as defined below). Employer shall pay Employee all 
compensation then due and owing for the period prior to termination, thereafter all of 
Employer’s obligations under this Agreement shall cease. "Cause" shall include, but not be 
limited to, unsatisfactory performance, misconduct, moral turpitude, failure to follow 
policies or procedures, material breach of this Agreement, excessive absenteeism, unlawful 
conduct on or off the Employer’s premises or during working or non-working time (which 
may affect the Employee’s relationship to his job and/or the Employer's reputation or good 
will in the community), layoff pursuant to a bona fide reduction in force, and to the extent 
permitted by law, unavailability for work due to disability for more than six (6) consecutive 
months. 

 
(d) By Employer Not for Cause.  Notwithstanding paragraph 5 (c), Employee is deemed an “at 

will” employee and the Board may dismiss Employee without cause by a majority vote 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in or arising from any statements, 
policies, or practices of Employer relating to the employment, discipline, or termination of 
its employees. If such termination occurs, Employer shall pay Employee all compensation 
then due and owing for the period prior to termination, plus a lump sum cash payment equal 
to three (6) months Employee’s base salary and thereafter all of Employer’s obligations 
under this Agreement shall cease. 

 
(e) By Employee Not for Cause.   At any time, Employee may terminate his employment for any 

reason, with or without cause, by providing Employer ninety (90) days advance written 
notice. The Board shall have the option in its complete discretion to make Employee's 
termination effective at any time prior to the end of such notice period, provided Employer 
pays Employee all compensation due and owing through the last day worked, plus an 
amount equal to the base salary Employee would have earned through the balance of the 
notice period, not to exceed ninety (90) days; thereafter, all of Employer's obligations under 
this Agreement shall cease. 

 
(f) By Employee for Good Reason.  At any time, Employee may terminate his employment 

for  good reason (as defined below) by giving ninety (90) days advance written notice to 
Employer.  “ Good Reason” shall be any material breach of this Agreement by Employer 
that remains uncured at the end of the above notice period.  The Board shall have the 
option in its complete discretion to make Employee's termination effective at any time 
prior to the end of the above notice period, provided Employer pays Employee all 
compensation due and owing through the last day worked and through the balance of the 
notice period not to exceed ninety (90) days.   If Good Reason is found to exist pursuant 



Page 7 of 10 

to Section 7 of this Agreement, the maximum amount that Employer shall be liable to 
Employee therefore shall be a monetary sum equal to Employee's base salary prorated over 
the remaining balance of the unexpired Employment Term, or over a period of six (6) 
months, whichever is less, which shall be in lieu of any damages under this Agreement for 
any alleged breach.  Thereafter, all of Employer’s obligations under this Agreement shall 
cease. 
 

(g) Termination Obligations.  Employee agrees that all property, including without limitation 
all equipment, tangible Proprietary Information (as defined below), documents, records, 
notes, contracts, and computer-generated materials furnished to or prepared by Employee 
incident to his employment belongs to Employer and shall be returned promptly to Employer 
upon termination of Employee’s employment. Employee’s obligations under  this 
subsection shall survive the termination of his employment and the expiration of this 
Agreement. 

 
(h) Proprietary Information.  "Proprietary Information” is all information and any idea pertaining 

in any manner to the business of Employer (or any Affiliate), its employees, agents, 
contractors, or consultants, which was produced by any employee of Employer during his 
employment or otherwise produced or acquired by or on behalf of Employer. Proprietary 
Information shall include without limitation, trade secrets, protocol ideas, inventions, 
processes, formulas, data, know-how, software and other computer   programs, copyrightable 
material, plans, strategies, customer lists and information, financial reports, and the contents 
of documents protected from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, 
Government Code Section 6250 et seq., or other provisions of applicable law.  All 
Proprietary Information not generally known outside of Employer’s organization, and all 
Proprietary Information so known only through improper means, shall be deemed 
"Confidential Information.” During his employment by Employer, Employee shall use 
Proprietary Information and shall disclose Confidential Information only for the benefit of 
Employer and as is necessary to perform his job responsibilities   under this Agreement. 
Following any termination of employment, Employee shall not use any Proprietary 
Information and shall not disclose any Confidential Information except with the express 
written consent of Employer.   

 
6.  Arbitration. 

 
(a) Arbitrable Claims.  All disputes between Employee (his attorneys, successors, and assigns) 

and Employer (its Affiliates, shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, 
successors, attorneys, and assigns) of any kind whatsoever, including without limitation all 
disputes relating in any manner to the employment or termination of employee and all 
disputes arising under this Agreement (“Arbitrable Claims”), shall be resolved by 
arbitration.  All persons and entities specified in the preceding sentence (other than 
Employer and Employee) shall be considered third-party beneficiaries of the rights and 
obligations created by this Section.   Arbitrable Claims shall include but are not limited to 
contract (express or implied) and tort claims of all kinds, as well as all claims based on any 
federal, state, or local law, statute, or regulation, excepting only claims under applicable 
worker’s compensation law and unemployment insurance claims.  Arbitration shall be final 
and binding upon the parties and shall be the exclusive remedy for all Arbitrable Claims. THE 
PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHTS THEY MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY 



Page 8 of 10 

REGARDING ARBITRABLE CLAIMS. 
 

(b) Procedure.  Arbitration of Arbitrable Claims shall be in accordance with the Employment 
Dispute Resolution Rules of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA Employment 
Rules") which can be found at https://www.adr.org except as provided otherwise in this 
Agreement.  In any arbitration, the burden of proof shall be allocated as provided by 
applicable law.   Either party may bring an action in court to compel arbitration under 
this Agreement and to enforce an arbitration award.   Otherwise, neither party shall initiate 
or prosecute any lawsuit or administrative action in any way related to any Arbitrable Claim. 
All arbitration hearings under this Agreement shall be conducted in San Bernardino County, 
California.    The Federal Arbitration Act shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of 
this Section 6. The fees of the arbitrator shall be borne by Employer. 
 

(c) Confidentiality.  All proceedings and all documents prepared about any arbitrable claim 
shall be confidential and unless otherwise required by law, the subject matter thereof 
shall not be disclosed to  any person other than the parties to the proceedings, their counsel, 
witnesses, and experts, the arbitrator and if involved, the court and court staff. 

 
(d) Continuing Obligations.  The rights and obligations of Employee and Employer set forth in 

Section 6 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of Employee's employment and the 
expiration of the Employment Term. 

 
7. Notices.   
 

Any notice under this Agreement must be in writing and shall be effective upon delivery by 
hand, upon facsimile transmission to the number provided below (if one is provided), or three 
(3) business days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or 
registered and addressed to Employer at the address below or to Employee at the last known 
address maintained in Employee's personnel file.  Employee shall be obligated to notify 
Employer in writing of any change in his address.  Notice of change of address shall be 
effective only when done in accordance with this Section. 

 
Employer's Notice Address: 

Board of Directors 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
P.O. Box 9020 
Chino Hills, CA 91709 

 
8.  Action by Employer.   
 
 All actions required or permitted to be taken under this Agreement by Employer, including 

without limitation, exercise of discretion, consents, waivers, and amendments to this 
Agreement, shall be made and authorized only by the Board of Directors.   The failure 
of Employer to insist on strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants, or conditions 
of this Agreement by Employee shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant, or 
condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any one time 
or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other 
times. 

https://www.adr.org/


Page 9 of 10 

 
9.   Integration.   
 
 This Agreement is intended to be the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of 

Employee’s employment by Employer.  This Agreement supersedes all other prior and 
contemporaneous agreements and statements, whether written or oral, express or implied, 
pertaining in any manner to the employment of Employee by Employer, and it may not be 
contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous statement or agreements.  To 
the extent that the practices, policies, or procedures of Employer now or in the future, 
apply to Employee and are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control. 

 
10. Amendments.   

 
This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by each 
of the parties hereto.  Failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not constitute 
a waiver of such right. 
 

11.  Assignment.   
 
 Neither party shall assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement.  
 

12.      Severability.    
 
 If a court or arbitrator holds any provision of this Agreement to be invalid, unenforceable, 

or void, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
13. Attorneys’ Fees.    
 

In any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding brought to enforce or interpret the 
terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs. 

 
 14.  Governing Law.   
 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State 
of California.  

 
15. Interpretation.     
 
 This Agreement shall be construed according to its fair meaning and any uncertainty or 

ambiguity contained herein shall not be interpreted against the party responsible for 
drafting this Agreement. The captions or sections and subsections of this Agreement are 
for reference only and are not to be construed in any way as a part of this Agreement.  

\\\ 
\\\ 
\\\ 
\\\ 



Page 10 of 10 

16. Employee Acknowledgement.   
 
 Employee acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to consult legal counsel regarding 

this Agreement, that he has read and understands this Agreement, that he is fully aware of 
its legal effect, and that he has entered into it freely and voluntarily and based on his own 
judgment and not on any representations or promises other than those contained in this 
Agreement.  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their respective officers as of the date first written above. 

 

        EMPLOYER: 
 
            

By:_____________________________
        MARCO TULE, President 

       Board of Directors 
               Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 JASMIN A. HALL, Secretary 
 Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
 
        EMPLOYEE: 
 
              

By:_____________________________ 
                 Shivaji Deshmukh 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 
\\\ 
 



ACTION
ITEM

2B



Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-2-2, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/
Matrix for All Groups

California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5 establishes the requirement for California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) agencies to have a current, duly approved & adopted 
pay schedule by the agency’s governing body. CalPERS employers may only report payrates, 
for purposes of calculating retirement benefits, that meet the definition of a Publicly Available 
Salary Schedule. Maintenance of the Agency’s salary schedule falls under the responsibility of 
the HR Department, which includes presenting a revised comprehensive salary resolution to the 
Board of Directors as changes occur. The last salary schedule/matrix update for all the groups 
was approved by the Board on December 21, 2022.

There are compensation changes to the General Manager classification, amending rate of pay 
which coincides with an amendment to the employment contract of the General Manager 
effective February 15, 2023. In accordance with the employment contract, the amended salary 
shall be effective February 15, 2023.

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-2-2, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups

Funding is appropriated in the FY 21/22 and 22/23 biennial budget.

Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Workplace Environment: IEUA is committed to providing a dynamic work environment with a 
highly skilled and dedicated workforce. 

On December 21, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-12-3, Amending
the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups.

Attachment A - Resolution No. 2023-2-2, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for
all groups and Exhibit 1

Not Applicable

23039



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE AMENDMENT OF THE AGENCY’S 
SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX 

WHEREAS, the Agency has a compensation change as a result of an amendment to the 
employment contract for the General Manager, and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to update the salary and classification information 
to comply with the California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5, and  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* does 
hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Agency’s salary schedule/matrix is hereby adopted and set forth in 
Exhibit “1” this resolution. 

SECTION 2: The salary information contained in Exhibit “1” shall be effective as of 
February 15, 2023.  

ADOPTED the 15th day of February 2023. 

________________________________   
Marco Tule 
President of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 

*A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2023-2-2 
Page 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF ) SS 
SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2023-2-2, was adopted at a regular 

Board Meeting on February 15, 2023, of said Agency by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

___________________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 

*A Municipal Water District



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Accountant I 173 UN Exempt 1 $32.2520 $2,580.16 $5,590.35 $67,084
2 $33.0582 $2,644.66 $5,730.10 $68,761
3 $33.8851 $2,710.81 $5,873.43 $70,481
4 $34.7318 $2,778.55 $6,020.20 $72,242
5 $35.5996 $2,847.97 $6,170.61 $74,047
6 $36.4904 $2,919.24 $6,325.02 $75,900
7 $37.4020 $2,992.16 $6,483.02 $77,796
8 $38.3375 $3,067.00 $6,645.17 $79,742
9 $39.2962 $3,143.70 $6,811.35 $81,736

Accountant II 175 PR Exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950
2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799
3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693
4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636
5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627
6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667
7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759
8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903
9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Accounting Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Accounting Technician I 170 GU Non‐exempt 1 $27.8606 $2,228.85 $4,829.18 $57,950
2 $28.5577 $2,284.62 $4,950.01 $59,400
3 $29.2717 $2,341.74 $5,073.77 $60,885
4 $30.0029 $2,400.24 $5,200.52 $62,406
5 $30.7534 $2,460.28 $5,330.61 $63,967
6 $31.5222 $2,521.78 $5,463.86 $65,566
7 $32.3101 $2,584.81 $5,600.43 $67,205
8 $33.1178 $2,649.43 $5,740.44 $68,885
9 $33.9457 $2,715.66 $5,883.93 $70,607

Accounting Technician II 173 GU Non‐exempt 1 $32.2520 $2,580.16 $5,590.35 $67,084
2 $33.0582 $2,644.66 $5,730.10 $68,761
3 $33.8851 $2,710.81 $5,873.43 $70,481
4 $34.7318 $2,778.55 $6,020.20 $72,242
5 $35.5996 $2,847.97 $6,170.61 $74,047
6 $36.4904 $2,919.24 $6,325.02 $75,900
7 $37.4020 $2,992.16 $6,483.02 $77,796
8 $38.3375 $3,067.00 $6,645.17 $79,742
9 $39.2962 $3,143.70 $6,811.35 $81,736

Administrative Assistant I 171 GU Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

Page 1 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Administrative Assistant I 171 GU Non‐exempt 2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369
3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928
4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526
5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166
6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844
7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566
8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329
9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Administrative Assistant I (confidential) 171 UN Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848
2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369
3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928
4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526
5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166
6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844
7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566
8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329
9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Administrative Assistant II 174 PR Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Administrative Assistant II (confidential) 174 UN Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Assistant Engineer 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Assistant General Manager 197 EX Exempt 1 $103.9875 $8,319.00 $18,024.50 $216,294
2 $106.5875 $8,527.00 $18,475.17 $221,702

Page 2 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Assistant General Manager 197 EX Exempt 3 $109.2520 $8,740.16 $18,937.02 $227,244
4 $111.9837 $8,958.70 $19,410.52 $232,926
5 $114.7827 $9,182.62 $19,895.68 $238,748
6 $117.6529 $9,412.24 $20,393.19 $244,718
7 $120.5938 $9,647.51 $20,902.94 $250,835
8 $123.6087 $9,888.70 $21,425.52 $257,106
9 $126.6991 $10,135.93 $21,961.19 $263,534

Associate Engineer 182 UN Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Biologist 181 LB Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Board Secretary/Office Manager 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Budget Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Business Systems Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

Page 3 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Business Systems Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Business Systems Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Business Systems Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

CAD Designer 178 UN Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937
4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Chemist 181 LB Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Chino Basin Program Manager 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426
2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913
3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486
4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

Page 4 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Chino Basin Program Manager 188 UN Exempt 5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901
6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748
7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693
8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735
9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Collection System Operator I 171 GU Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848
2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369
3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928
4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526
5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166
6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844
7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566
8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329
9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Collection System Operator II 175 GU Non‐exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950
2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799
3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693
4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636
5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627
6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667
7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759
8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903
9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Collection System Operator III 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Collection System Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Communications Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

Page 5 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Communications Officer 186 UN Exempt 6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Communications Officer (Y‐Rated; Hired Before 
1/23/2022) 206 UN Exempt 1 $85.2866 $6,822.93 $14,783.02 $177,396

Compost Facility Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Compost Operator 174 GU Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Compost Sales Representative 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Compost Worker 170 GU Non‐exempt 1 $27.8606 $2,228.85 $4,829.18 $57,950
2 $28.5577 $2,284.62 $4,950.01 $59,400
3 $29.2717 $2,341.74 $5,073.77 $60,885
4 $30.0029 $2,400.24 $5,200.52 $62,406
5 $30.7534 $2,460.28 $5,330.61 $63,967
6 $31.5222 $2,521.78 $5,463.86 $65,566
7 $32.3101 $2,584.81 $5,600.43 $67,205
8 $33.1178 $2,649.43 $5,740.44 $68,885
9 $33.9457 $2,715.66 $5,883.93 $70,607

Construction Project Inspector 180 UN Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

Page 6 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Construction Project Inspector 180 UN Non‐exempt 4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Contracts Administrator I 177 PR Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Contracts Administrator II 180 PR Exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Contracts and Procurement Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Control Systems Analyst I 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Control Systems Analyst II 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

Page 7 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Control Systems Analyst II 182 GU Non‐exempt 5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Controller 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Deputy General Manager 199 EX Exempt 1 $117.3779 $9,390.24 $20,345.52 $244,146
2 $120.3121 $9,624.97 $20,854.11 $250,249
3 $123.3207 $9,865.66 $21,375.60 $256,507
4 $126.4029 $10,112.24 $21,909.86 $262,918
5 $129.5635 $10,365.08 $22,457.68 $269,492
6 $132.8025 $10,624.20 $23,019.10 $276,229
7 $136.1226 $10,889.81 $23,594.59 $283,135
8 $139.5255 $11,162.04 $24,184.42 $290,213
9 $143.0135 $11,441.08 $24,789.01 $297,468

Deputy Manager of Maintenance 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426
2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913
3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486
4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147
5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901
6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748
7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693
8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735
9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Deputy Manager of Operations 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426
2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913
3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486
4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147
5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901
6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748
7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693
8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735
9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Director of Engineering 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190
2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096
3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123
4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276
5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557

Page 8 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Director of Engineering 195 UN Exempt 6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972
7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520
8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209
9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Director of External and Government Affairs 193 UN Exempt 1 $85.5500 $6,844.00 $14,828.67 $177,944
2 $87.6890 $7,015.12 $15,199.43 $182,393
3 $89.8813 $7,190.51 $15,579.44 $186,953
4 $92.1284 $7,370.28 $15,968.94 $191,627
5 $94.4318 $7,554.55 $16,368.20 $196,418
6 $96.7924 $7,743.40 $16,777.37 $201,328
7 $99.2121 $7,936.97 $17,196.77 $206,361
8 $101.6924 $8,135.40 $17,626.70 $211,520
9 $104.2347 $8,338.78 $18,067.36 $216,808

Director of Finance 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190
2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096
3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123
4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276
5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557
6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972
7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520
8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209
9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Director of Finance (Y‐Rated; Hired Before 
1/23/2022) 208 UN Exempt 1 $117.1515 $9,372.12 $20,306.26 $243,675

Director of Human Resources 194 UN Exempt 1 $89.8308 $7,186.47 $15,570.69 $186,848
2 $92.0760 $7,366.08 $15,959.84 $191,518
3 $94.3784 $7,550.28 $16,358.94 $196,307
4 $96.7371 $7,738.97 $16,767.77 $201,213
5 $99.1563 $7,932.51 $17,187.11 $206,245
6 $101.6347 $8,130.78 $17,616.69 $211,400
7 $104.1760 $8,334.08 $18,057.18 $216,686
8 $106.7799 $8,542.40 $18,508.54 $222,102
9 $109.4496 $8,755.97 $18,971.27 $227,655

Director of Information Technology 194 UN Exempt 1 $89.8308 $7,186.47 $15,570.69 $186,848
2 $92.0760 $7,366.08 $15,959.84 $191,518
3 $94.3784 $7,550.28 $16,358.94 $196,307
4 $96.7371 $7,738.97 $16,767.77 $201,213
5 $99.1563 $7,932.51 $17,187.11 $206,245
6 $101.6347 $8,130.78 $17,616.69 $211,400
7 $104.1760 $8,334.08 $18,057.18 $216,686
8 $106.7799 $8,542.40 $18,508.54 $222,102
9 $109.4496 $8,755.97 $18,971.27 $227,655

Director of Operations and Maintenance 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190
2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096
3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123

Page 9 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Director of Operations and Maintenance 195 UN Exempt 4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276
5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557
6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972
7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520
8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209
9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Director of Operations and Maintenance (Y‐
Rated; Hired Before 1/23/2022) 208 UN Exempt 1 $117.1515 $9,372.12 $20,306.26 $243,675

Director of Planning and Resources 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190
2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096
3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123
4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276
5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557
6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972
7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520
8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209
9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician I 176 GU Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645
2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587
3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575
4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616
5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706
6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849
7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045
8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296
9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician II 179 GU Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician III    181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

Page 10 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV 182 GU Non‐exempt 2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Employee and Labor Relations Advocate 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Engineering Services Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Engineering Services Specialist 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Engineering Services Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Engineering Technician 175 GU Non‐exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950
2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799

Page 11 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Engineering Technician 175 GU Non‐exempt 3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693
4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636
5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627
6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667
7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759
8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903
9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Environmental Resources Planner I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Environmental Resources Planner II 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Executive Assistant 178 UN Exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937
4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

External Affairs Analyst  180 UN Exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

External Affairs Specialist I 171 UN Exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848
2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369
3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

Page 12 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

External Affairs Specialist I 171 UN Exempt 4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526
5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166
6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844
7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566
8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329
9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

External Affairs Specialist II 177 UN Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Facilities Program Coordinator 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Facilities Program Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Facilities Specialist 177 PR Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Facilities Specialist ‐ Landscape 177 UN Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

Page 13 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Facilities Specialist ‐ Landscape 177 UN Exempt 5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Facilities Technician I 172 GU Non‐exempt 1 $30.7174 $2,457.40 $5,324.37 $63,892
2 $31.4856 $2,518.85 $5,457.51 $65,490
3 $32.2731 $2,581.85 $5,594.01 $67,128
4 $33.0799 $2,646.40 $5,733.87 $68,806
5 $33.9068 $2,712.55 $5,877.20 $70,526
6 $34.7544 $2,780.36 $6,024.12 $72,289
7 $35.6231 $2,849.85 $6,174.68 $74,096
8 $36.5140 $2,921.12 $6,329.10 $75,949
9 $37.4265 $2,994.12 $6,487.26 $77,847

Facilities Technician II 174 GU Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Facilities Technician III 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Financial Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Financial Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

Page 14 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Financial Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

205 EX Exempt 1 $163.4615 $13,076.92 $28,333.33 $340,000General Manager 

GIS Specialist 178 UN Exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937
4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Grants Administrator 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Grants and Government Affairs Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Groundwater Recharge Supervisor 187 SU Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793
2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112
3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515
4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003
5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577
6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242
7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998
8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848
9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Human Resources Analyst 181 UN Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

Page 15 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Human Resources Analyst 181 UN Exempt 5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Human Resources Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Human Resources Specialist 177 UN Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

HVAC Technician 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Industrial Engine Technician I 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Industrial Engine Technician II 181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

Page 16 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Industrial Engine Technician II 181 GU Non‐exempt 6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Information Security Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Information Systems Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Information Systems Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Intern 001 OTR Non‐exempt 1 $16.0000
2 $17.0000
3 $18.0000
4 $19.0000
5 $20.0000
6 $21.0000

Internal Auditor 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Page 17 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly AnnuallyClassification Title 

Inventory Resources Coordinator 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Laboratory Assistant 172 LB Non‐exempt 1 $30.7174 $2,457.40 $5,324.37 $63,892
2 $31.4856 $2,518.85 $5,457.51 $65,490
3 $32.2731 $2,581.85 $5,594.01 $67,128
4 $33.0799 $2,646.40 $5,733.87 $68,806
5 $33.9068 $2,712.55 $5,877.20 $70,526
6 $34.7544 $2,780.36 $6,024.12 $72,289
7 $35.6231 $2,849.85 $6,174.68 $74,096
8 $36.5140 $2,921.12 $6,329.10 $75,949
9 $37.4265 $2,994.12 $6,487.26 $77,847

Laboratory Scientist I 177 LB Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Laboratory Scientist II 179 LB Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Laboratory Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Page 18 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Maintenance Planner/Scheduler 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Maintenance Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Manager of Asset Management 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Compliance and Sustainability 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Contracts and Procurement 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Engineering 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473

Page 19 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Manager of Engineering 192 UN Exempt 2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710
3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052
4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503
5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066
6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743
7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536
8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450
9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Environmental Services 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Facilities and Water System 
Programs 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Human Resources 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Information Technology 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Internal Audit 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

Page 20 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Manager of Internal Audit 190 UN Exempt 2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Laboratories 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559
3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Maintenance 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473
2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710
3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052
4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503
5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066
6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743
7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536
8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450
9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Operations 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473
2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710
3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052
4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503
5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066
6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743
7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536
8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450
9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Regional Composting Authority 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473
2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710
3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052
4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503
5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066
6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743
7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536
8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450
9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Water Resources 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715
2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

Page 21 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Manager of Water Resources 190 UN Exempt 3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496
4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534
5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672
6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914
7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262
8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718
9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Materials Specialist 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Mechanic I 172 GU Non‐exempt 1 $30.7174 $2,457.40 $5,324.37 $63,892
2 $31.4856 $2,518.85 $5,457.51 $65,490
3 $32.2731 $2,581.85 $5,594.01 $67,128
4 $33.0799 $2,646.40 $5,733.87 $68,806
5 $33.9068 $2,712.55 $5,877.20 $70,526
6 $34.7544 $2,780.36 $6,024.12 $72,289
7 $35.6231 $2,849.85 $6,174.68 $74,096
8 $36.5140 $2,921.12 $6,329.10 $75,949
9 $37.4265 $2,994.12 $6,487.26 $77,847

Mechanic II 176 GU Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645
2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587
3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575
4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616
5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706
6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849
7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045
8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296
9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Mechanic III 179 GU Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Mechanic IV 181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

Page 22 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Mechanic IV 181 GU Non‐exempt 4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Network Administrator  183 PR Exempt 1 $52.5270 $4,202.16 $9,104.68 $109,256
2 $53.8395 $4,307.16 $9,332.18 $111,986
3 $55.1856 $4,414.85 $9,565.51 $114,786
4 $56.5654 $4,525.24 $9,804.69 $117,656
5 $57.9799 $4,638.40 $10,049.87 $120,598
6 $59.4289 $4,754.32 $10,301.03 $123,612
7 $60.9145 $4,873.16 $10,558.52 $126,702
8 $62.4375 $4,995.00 $10,822.50 $129,870
9 $63.9986 $5,119.89 $11,093.10 $133,117

Office Assistant 166 GU Non‐exempt 1 $22.9246 $1,833.97 $3,973.61 $47,683
2 $23.4981 $1,879.85 $4,073.01 $48,876
3 $24.0856 $1,926.85 $4,174.85 $50,098
4 $24.6875 $1,975.00 $4,279.17 $51,350
5 $25.3044 $2,024.36 $4,386.12 $52,633
6 $25.9375 $2,075.00 $4,495.84 $53,950
7 $26.5856 $2,126.85 $4,608.18 $55,298
8 $27.2500 $2,180.00 $4,723.34 $56,680
9 $27.9313 $2,234.51 $4,841.44 $58,097

Office Assistant (confidential) 166 UN Non‐exempt 1 $22.9246 $1,833.97 $3,973.61 $47,683
2 $23.4981 $1,879.85 $4,073.01 $48,876
3 $24.0856 $1,926.85 $4,174.85 $50,098
4 $24.6875 $1,975.00 $4,279.17 $51,350
5 $25.3044 $2,024.36 $4,386.12 $52,633
6 $25.9375 $2,075.00 $4,495.84 $53,950
7 $26.5856 $2,126.85 $4,608.18 $55,298
8 $27.2500 $2,180.00 $4,723.34 $56,680
9 $27.9313 $2,234.51 $4,841.44 $58,097

Operations and Maintenance Training 
Coordinator 183 UN Non‐exempt 1 $52.5270 $4,202.16 $9,104.68 $109,256

2 $53.8395 $4,307.16 $9,332.18 $111,986
3 $55.1856 $4,414.85 $9,565.51 $114,786
4 $56.5654 $4,525.24 $9,804.69 $117,656
5 $57.9799 $4,638.40 $10,049.87 $120,598
6 $59.4289 $4,754.32 $10,301.03 $123,612
7 $60.9145 $4,873.16 $10,558.52 $126,702
8 $62.4375 $4,995.00 $10,822.50 $129,870
9 $63.9986 $5,119.89 $11,093.10 $133,117

Operations Specialist 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

Page 23 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Operations Specialist 179 UN Exempt 4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Operations Supervisor 185 SU Non‐exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Pretreatment & Source Control Inspector I 174 GU Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Pretreatment & Source Control Inspector II 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529
2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569
3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657
4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799
5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994
6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243
7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549
8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913
9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Principal Accountant 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Principal Engineer 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426
2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913
3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486
4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

Page 24 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Principal Engineer 188 UN Exempt 5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901
6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748
7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693
8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735
9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Process Automation & Controls Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Procurement Specialist I 174 PR Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Procurement Specialist II1 175 PR Non‐exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950
2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799
3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693
4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636
5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627
6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667
7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759
8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903
9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Project Manager I 184 PR Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714
2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582
3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522
4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535
5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624
6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789
7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033
8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358
9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Project Manager II 185 PR Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

Page 25 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Project Manager II 185 PR Exempt 6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Records Management Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Records Specialist 173 GU Non‐exempt 1 $32.2520 $2,580.16 $5,590.35 $67,084
2 $33.0582 $2,644.66 $5,730.10 $68,761
3 $33.8851 $2,710.81 $5,873.43 $70,481
4 $34.7318 $2,778.55 $6,020.20 $72,242
5 $35.5996 $2,847.97 $6,170.61 $74,047
6 $36.4904 $2,919.24 $6,325.02 $75,900
7 $37.4020 $2,992.16 $6,483.02 $77,796
8 $38.3375 $3,067.00 $6,645.17 $79,742
9 $39.2962 $3,143.70 $6,811.35 $81,736

Recycled Water Distribution Operator 179 OP Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Risk Specialist 174 PR Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

RW/Groundwater Recharge Maintenance 
Technician 176 GU Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645

2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587
3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575
4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616
5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706

Page 26 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

RW/Groundwater Recharge Maintenance
Technician 

176 GU Non‐exempt 6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849
7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045
8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296
9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

RW/Groundwater Recharge Operations & 
Maintenance Specialist 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Safety Analyst 178 PR Exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937
4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Safety Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472
2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634
3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875
4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197
5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602
6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092
7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669
8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336
9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Senior Accountant 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886
2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134
3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437
4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798
5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217
6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698
7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241
8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847
9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Senior Associate Engineer 184 UN Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714
2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582
3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522
4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535
5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

Page 27 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Associate Engineer 184 UN Exempt 6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789
7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033
8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358
9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Senior Associate Engineer ‐ PE 185 UN Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Senior Compost Operations and Maintenance 
Technician 181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Construction Project Inspector 182 UN Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Engineer 187 PR Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793
2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112
3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515
4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003
5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577
6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242
7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998
8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848
9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Senior Environmental Resources Planner 184 UN Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714
2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582
3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522
4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535
5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

Page 28 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Environmental Resources Planner 184 UN Exempt 6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789
7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033
8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358
9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Senior External Affairs Specialist 180 UN Exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Senior Facilities Technician 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Senior Financial Analyst 183 PR Exempt 1 $52.5270 $4,202.16 $9,104.68 $109,256
2 $53.8395 $4,307.16 $9,332.18 $111,986
3 $55.1856 $4,414.85 $9,565.51 $114,786
4 $56.5654 $4,525.24 $9,804.69 $117,656
5 $57.9799 $4,638.40 $10,049.87 $120,598
6 $59.4289 $4,754.32 $10,301.03 $123,612
7 $60.9145 $4,873.16 $10,558.52 $126,702
8 $62.4375 $4,995.00 $10,822.50 $129,870
9 $63.9986 $5,119.89 $11,093.10 $133,117

Senior Information Systems Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Internal Auditor 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

Page 29 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Internal Auditor 182 PR Exempt 7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Inventory Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Management Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649
3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Operations Specialist 184 UN Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714
2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582
3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522
4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535
5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624
6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789
7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033
8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358
9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Senior Policy Advisor 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426
2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913
3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486
4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147
5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901
6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748
7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693
8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735
9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Senior Policy Advisor (Y‐Rated; Hired Before 
1/23/2022) 207 UN Exempt 1 $87.4193 $6,993.55 $15,152.70 $181,832

Senior Pretreatment & Source Control 
Inspector 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

Page 30 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Pretreatment & Source Control 
Inspector

180 GU Non‐exempt 4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Senior Project Manager 187 PR Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793
2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112
3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515
4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003
5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577
6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242
7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998
8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848
9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 181 OP Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Water Plant Operator 181 OP Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Water Resources Analyst 184 PR Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714
2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582
3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522
4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535
5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624
6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789
7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033
8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358
9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Source Control/Environmental Resources 
Supervisor 187 SU Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793

2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112

Page 31 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Source Control/Environmental Resources
Supervisor 

187 SU Exempt 3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515
4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003
5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577
6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242
7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998
8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848
9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Supervisor ‐ Environmental Compliance & 
Energy 188 SU Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913
3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486
4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147
5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901
6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748
7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693
8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735
9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Systems Administrator 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094
2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571
3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110
4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713
5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379
6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115
7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918
8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790
9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Technology Specialist I 178 GU Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937
4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Technology Specialist II 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Technology Specialist III 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049
2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

Page 32 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Technology Specialist III 182 GU Non‐exempt 3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316
4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048
5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850
6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720
7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664
8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681
9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Warehouse Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446
2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458
3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544
4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707
5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950
6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274
7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680
8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173
9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Warehouse Technician 171 GU Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848
2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369
3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928
4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526
5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166
6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844
7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566
8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329
9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I 174 OP Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II 176 OP Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645
2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587
3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575
4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616
5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706
6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849
7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045
8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296
9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator III 178 OP Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

Page 33 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator III 178 OP Non‐exempt 4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator IV, V 180 OP Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator‐in‐
Training 171 OP Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369
3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928
4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526
5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166
6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844
7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566
8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329
9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Water Plant Operator I 174 OP Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433
2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194
3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999
4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849
5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745
6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689
7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681
8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723
9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Water Plant Operator II 176 OP Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645
2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587
3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575
4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616
5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706
6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849
7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045
8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296
9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Water Plant Operator III 178 OP Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603
2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743
3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

Page 34 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Water Plant Operator III 178 OP Non‐exempt 4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184
5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490
6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851
7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273
8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755
9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Water Plant Operator IV, V 180 OP Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379
2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739
3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158
4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637
5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177
6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782
7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451
8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187
9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Z‐Not in Use 165 (blank) (blank) 1 $21.8347 $1,746.78 $3,784.69 $45,416
2 $22.3803 $1,790.43 $3,879.27 $46,551
3 $22.9400 $1,835.20 $3,976.27 $47,715
4 $23.5135 $1,881.08 $4,075.68 $48,908
5 $24.1015 $1,928.12 $4,177.60 $50,131
6 $24.7034 $1,976.28 $4,281.94 $51,383
7 $25.3217 $2,025.74 $4,389.11 $52,669
8 $25.9544 $2,076.36 $4,498.78 $53,985
9 $26.6034 $2,128.28 $4,611.28 $55,335

167 (blank) (blank) 1 $24.0707 $1,925.66 $4,172.27 $50,067
2 $24.6722 $1,973.78 $4,276.53 $51,318
3 $25.2895 $2,023.16 $4,383.52 $52,602
4 $25.9212 $2,073.70 $4,493.02 $53,916
5 $26.5693 $2,125.55 $4,605.36 $55,264
6 $27.2332 $2,178.66 $4,720.43 $56,645
7 $27.9145 $2,233.16 $4,838.52 $58,062
8 $28.6121 $2,288.97 $4,959.44 $59,513
9 $29.3270 $2,346.16 $5,083.35 $61,000

168 (blank) (blank) 1 $25.2722 $2,021.78 $4,380.53 $52,566
2 $25.9039 $2,072.32 $4,490.03 $53,880
3 $26.5510 $2,124.08 $4,602.18 $55,226
4 $27.2145 $2,177.16 $4,717.18 $56,606
5 $27.8948 $2,231.59 $4,835.12 $58,021
6 $28.5928 $2,287.43 $4,956.10 $59,473
7 $29.3073 $2,344.59 $5,079.95 $60,959
8 $30.0400 $2,403.20 $5,206.94 $62,483
9 $30.7914 $2,463.32 $5,337.20 $64,046

169 (blank) (blank) 1 $26.5337 $2,122.70 $4,599.19 $55,190
2 $27.1967 $2,175.74 $4,714.11 $56,569
3 $27.8765 $2,230.12 $4,831.93 $57,983
4 $28.5741 $2,285.93 $4,952.85 $59,434

Page 35 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Z‐Not in Use 169 (blank) (blank) 5 $29.2880 $2,343.04 $5,076.59 $60,919
6 $30.0202 $2,401.62 $5,203.51 $62,442
7 $30.7707 $2,461.66 $5,333.60 $64,003
8 $31.5400 $2,523.20 $5,466.94 $65,603
9 $32.3284 $2,586.28 $5,603.61 $67,243

189 (blank) (blank) 1 $70.3832 $5,630.66 $12,199.77 $146,397
2 $72.1433 $5,771.47 $12,504.86 $150,058
3 $73.9467 $5,915.74 $12,817.44 $153,809
4 $75.7957 $6,063.66 $13,137.93 $157,655
5 $77.6900 $6,215.20 $13,466.27 $161,595
6 $79.6323 $6,370.59 $13,802.95 $165,635
7 $81.6226 $6,529.81 $14,147.93 $169,775
8 $83.6635 $6,693.08 $14,501.68 $174,020
9 $85.7553 $6,860.43 $14,864.27 $178,371

191 (blank) (blank) 1 $77.5962 $6,207.70 $13,450.02 $161,400
2 $79.5361 $6,362.89 $13,786.27 $165,435
3 $81.5246 $6,521.97 $14,130.94 $169,571
4 $83.5621 $6,684.97 $14,484.11 $173,809
5 $85.6510 $6,852.08 $14,846.18 $178,154
6 $87.7924 $7,023.40 $15,217.37 $182,608
7 $89.9871 $7,198.97 $15,597.77 $187,173
8 $92.2371 $7,378.97 $15,987.77 $191,853
9 $94.5428 $7,563.43 $16,387.44 $196,649

196 (blank) (blank) 1 $99.0366 $7,922.93 $17,166.35 $205,996
2 $101.5121 $8,120.97 $17,595.44 $211,145
3 $104.0500 $8,324.00 $18,035.34 $216,424
4 $106.6515 $8,532.12 $18,486.26 $221,835
5 $109.3174 $8,745.40 $18,948.37 $227,380
6 $112.0505 $8,964.04 $19,422.09 $233,065
7 $114.8525 $9,188.20 $19,907.77 $238,893
8 $117.7231 $9,417.85 $20,405.35 $244,864
9 $120.6664 $9,653.32 $20,915.53 $250,986

198 (blank) (blank) 1 $109.1866 $8,734.93 $18,925.69 $227,108
2 $111.9164 $8,953.32 $19,398.86 $232,786
3 $114.7140 $9,177.12 $19,883.76 $238,605
4 $117.5818 $9,406.55 $20,380.86 $244,570
5 $120.5212 $9,641.70 $20,890.35 $250,684
6 $123.5337 $9,882.70 $21,412.52 $256,950
7 $126.6231 $10,129.85 $21,948.01 $263,376
8 $129.7880 $10,383.04 $22,496.59 $269,959
9 $133.0327 $10,642.62 $23,059.01 $276,708

200 (blank) (blank) 1 $126.1803 $10,094.43 $21,871.27 $262,455
2 $129.3351 $10,346.81 $22,418.09 $269,017
3 $132.5683 $10,605.47 $22,978.52 $275,742
4 $135.8827 $10,870.62 $23,553.01 $282,636
5 $139.2794 $11,142.36 $24,141.78 $289,701

Page 36 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Salary Matrix 

Effective February 15, 2023

Adopted February 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Z‐Not in Use 200 (blank) (blank) 6 $142.7611 $11,420.89 $24,745.27 $296,943
7 $146.3303 $11,706.43 $25,363.94 $304,367
8 $149.9890 $11,999.12 $25,998.10 $311,977
9 $153.7380 $12,299.04 $26,647.92 $319,775

Note:

1.  Incumbent Procurement Specialist I reclassified to Procurement Specialist II on 7/1/18 shall be exempt.
 

Page 37 of 37



ACTION
ITEM

2C



General Manager

Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-2-1, Authorizing IEUA to Enter into a Financial Assistance
Agreement under WaterSMART: Water Recycling and Desalination Planning

The U.S. Department of the Interior’s (Department) WaterSMART (Sustain and Manage 
America’s Resources for Tomorrow) Program provides a framework for Federal leadership and 
assistance to stretch and secure water supplies for future generations in support of the 
Department’s priorities. Through WaterSMART, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) 
leverages Federal and non-Federal funding to work cooperatively with States, Tribes, and local 
entities as they plan for and implement actions to increase water supply sustainability through 
investments in existing infrastructure and attention to local water conflicts.

IEUA will seek grant funds to offset planning and related costs for the Chino Basin Advanced 
Treated Recycled Water, Storage, and Production Project for Funding Group II for up to 
$5,000,000 for Large-Scale Projects. This opportunity is for activities that may take up to 24 
months to complete for Large-Scale projects with an anticipated total project cost greater than
$500,000,000.

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-2-1, authorizing the General Manager to enter into a financial
assistance agreement under the USBR's WaterSMART: Water Recycling and Desalination
Planning Grants Program for the Chino Basin Advanced Treated Recycled Water, Storage, and
Production Project

Chino Basin Advanced Treated Recycled Water, Storage, and Production

N/A

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

This is part of a larger effort to fund the Chino Basin Program and as such, it is in keeping with
the Agency funding priorities as well as the goal of building local resilience and lowering our
dependence on State Water Project water.

None.

1. Background
2. Resolution No. 2023-2-1

Not Applicable

23036



 
   Page 1 of 1 

  
 
 

Background 
Subject: Subject: Adoption of Resolution for the USBR WaterSMART Water Recycling and 
Desalination Planning Grants Program Funding Under Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) 
No. R23AS00076 
  
 
The U.S. Department of the Interior’s (Department) WaterSMART (Sustain and Manage America’s 
Resources for Tomorrow) Program provides a framework for Federal leadership and assistance to 
stretch and secure water supplies for future generations in support of the Department’s priorities. 
Through WaterSMART, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) leverages Federal and non-Federal 
funding to work cooperatively with States, Tribes, and local entities as they plan for and implement 
actions to increase water supply sustainability through investments in existing infrastructure and 
attention to local water conflicts. 
 
Water recycling and desalination are essential tools for stretching the limited water supplies in the 
Western United States. Water recycling projects develop and supplement urban and irrigation water 
supplies through water reuse—thereby improving efficiency, providing flexibility during water 
shortages, and diversifying the water supply. These projects provide growing communities with new 
sources of clean water which increases water management flexibility and makes our water supply more 
reliable. Desalination projects develop and supplement municipal and irrigation water supplies through 
the treatment of ocean or brackish water, thereby providing a local supply, providing flexibility during 
water shortages, and diversifying the water supply portfolio. The water recycling and desalination 
programs also provide support for priorities identified in Presidential Executive Order (E.O.) 14008: 
Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad and align with other priorities, such as those identified 
in E.O. 13985: Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved Communities Through the 
Federal Government. 
 
IEUA will apply for federal funding as part of Funding Group II: Up to $5,000,000 that will be 
available for planning, preliminary design, and environmental compliance activities for up to 24 
months to complete for projects with an anticipated total project cost greater than $500,000,000 and a 
cost share of 75% or more of total costs. IEUA will be seeking funds for planning and related costs 
for the Chino Basin Program, titled The Chino Basin Advanced Treated Recycled Water, Storage, 
and Production Project for the purposes of this grant.  
 
 



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-1 
 

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY TO PASS A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING ENTERING INTO A FUNDING AGREEMENT 
UNDER THE WATERSMART: WATER RECYCLING AND 
DESALINATION PLANNING PROGRAM WITH THE U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR - BUREAU OF RECLAMATION 
AND DESIGNATING A REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE 
THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT, AND ANY 
AMENDMENTS THERETO 

 
WHEREAS, the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation under 

the WaterSMART Water Recycling and Desalination Planning Grant Program will make funding 
available to qualifying applicants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency has identified 
projects that exemplify the objectives of the Water Recycling and Desalination Planning  Program; 
and  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency is hereby authorized to enter 
into a financial assistance agreement under the Water Recycling and Desalination Planning 
Program; and 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, the General Manager has reviewed and supports the application 

being submitted; and 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager, or his designee(s), is hereby authorized 
and designated to sign, for and on behalf of the Agency, the funding agreement for the Water 
Recycling and Desalination Planning Program and any amendments thereto; and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager, or his designee(s), is hereby authorized 
and designated to represent the Agency in carrying out the Agency’s responsibilities under the 
funding agreement, including certifying invoices and disbursement requests for Project costs on 
behalf of the Agency and compliance with applicable state and federal laws. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency is capable of providing the 
amount of funding and/or in-kind contributions specified in the grant application funding plan;   

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency will work with the Bureau 
of Reclamation to meet established deadlines for entering into a cooperative agreement, and;  



Resolution No. 2023-2-1 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
       
 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors hereby adopts Resolution No. 2023-
2-1 on this 15th day of February, 2023.   

 

 

 

      
Marco Tule 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 
and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 

ATTEST: 

      
Jasmin A. Hall,  
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire  
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors Thereof 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution No. 2023-2-1 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
       
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
      )SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  )  

 

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-2-1 was adopted at a regular meeting on 

February 15, 2023, of said Board by the following vote: 

 AYES:    
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:   
 

______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 

 (SEAL) 
 
* A Municipal Water District  
 



INFORMATION
ITEM

3A



Jason Marseilles, PE
Manager of Engineering & Construction Management

February 2023

Engineering and Construction
Management Project Updates



Project 
Location

Map

2



3

Collection System Asset Management
Project Goal: Extend Asset Life

Total Project Budget: $5.1M
Project Completion: February 2023

Condition Assessment Percent Complete: 85%

Phase
Consultant/

Contractor

Current 

Contract

Amendments/

Change Orders

Condition 

Assessment
CDM Smith $3.6 M 25%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Ignacio, Joel

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Ward, Ryan

Administrative Assistant: Olsen, Wendy

Inspector: GK & Associates

3

Sewer Bypass - Above Grade Piping



Ely Monitoring Well Capital Project
Project Goal: Improve Ground Water Quality and Compliance

Ely Basin Partial View 4

Total Project Budget: $600k
Project Completion: August 2023

Construction Percent Complete: 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Zughbi, Jamal

Assistant/Associate 

Engineer:

Gomez, Christian 

Administrative Assistant: WSP

Inspector: MWH Constructors

Phase
Consultant/

Contractor

Current 

Contract

Amendments/

Change Orders

Design GHD $140k 0%

Construction

(Current)

Yellow Jacket 

Drilling
$394k 0%



Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III
Project Goal: Extend Asset Life

5

Total Project Budget: $1.9M
Project Completion: February 2023

Construction Percent Complete: 90%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Biesiada, Josh

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Frabizio, Julianne

Administrative Assistant: Anser Advisory

Inspector: GK & Associates

Phase
Consultant/

Contractor

Current 

Contract

Amendments/

Change Orders

Design GPA $86k 0%

Construction

(Current)

Best 

Contracting 

Svc.

$1.5M 1.2%

RP-1 RAS 1 Building New Roof



INFORMATION
ITEM

3B



Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 

a Municipal Water District 

Federal Update 
January 27, 2023 

118th Congress Begins; McCarthy Elected Speaker of the House 
On January 3rd, Congress officially began the 118th Congress. Senators were sworn in and 
immediately adjourned for a two-week recess. In the House of Representatives, the swearing 
in of Members was delayed for a few days as the first action the House needed to take was to 
elect a new Speaker. After five days and fifteen votes, Rep. Kevin McCarthy (R-CA) was 
elected to be the new Speaker of the House. 

House Committee Leaders for 118th Congress 
The House of Representatives has spent the last few weeks going through organizational 
activities, which include selected new Chairs and Ranking Members of Committees. Below 
is a chart outlining the Chairs and Ranking Members for each Committee for the 118th 
Congress:   

Committee Chair Ranking Member 
Agriculture Rep. Glen Thompson (R-PA) Rep. David Scott (D-GA) 
Appropriations Rep. Kay Granger (R-TX) Rep. Rosa DeLauro (D-CT) 
Armed Services Rep. Mike Rogers (R-AL) Rep. Adam Smith (D-WA) 
Budget Rep. Jodey Arrington (R-MO) Rep. Brendan Boyle (D-PA) 
Education & Workforce Rep. Virginia Foxx (R-NC) Rep. Bobby Scott (D-VA) 
Energy & Commerce Rep. Cathy McMorris Rogers (R-WA) Rep. Frank Pallone (D-NJ) 
Ethics Rep. Michael Guest (R-MS) Rep. Susan Wild (D-PA) 
Financial Services Rep. Patrick McHenry (R-NC) Rep. Maxine Waters (D-CA) 
Foreign Affairs Rep. Michael McCaul (R-TX) Rep. Gregory Meeks (D-NY) 
Homeland Security Rep. Mark Green (R-TN) Rep. Bennie Thompson (D-MS) 
Administration Rep. Bryan Steil (R-WI) Rep. Joe Morelle (D-NY) 
Judiciary Rep. Jim Jordan (R-OH) Rep. Jerry Nadler (D-NY) 
Natural Resources Rep. Bruce Westerman (R-AR) Rep. Raul Grijalva (D-AZ) 
Oversight & Reform Rep. Jim Comer (R-KY) Rep. Jamie Raskin (D-MD) 
Rules Rep. Tom Cole (R-OK) Rep. Jim McGovern (D-MA) 
Science, Space, & 
Technology 

Rep. Frank Lucas (R-OK) Rep. Zoe Lofgren (D-CA) 

Small Business Rep. Roger Williams (R-TX) Rep. Nydia Valazquez (D-NY) 
Transportation & 
Infrastructure 

Rep. Sam Graves (R-MO) Rep. Rick Larsen (D-WA) 

Veterans’ Affairs Rep. Mike Bost (R-IL) Rep. Mark Takano (D-CA) 
Ways & Means Rep. Jason Smith (R-MO) Rep. Richard Neal (D-MA) 



 

2 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

House Appropriations Subcommittee Chairs for 118th Congress  
House Appropriations Committee Chair Kay Granger (R-TX) announced the following 
House Appropriations Subcommittee Chairs for the 118th Congress:  
 

Subcommittee Chair 
Agriculture Rep. Andy Harris (R-MD) 
Commerce, Justice, and Science  Rep. Hal Rogers (R-KY) 
Defense Rep. Ken Calvert (R-CA) 
Energy & Water Rep. Chuck Fleischmann (R-TN) 
Financial Services and General Government Rep. Steve Womack (R-AR) 
Homeland Security  Rep. David Joyce (R-OH) 
Interior and Environment Rep. Mike Simpson (R-ID) 
Labor, Health and Human Services, and Education Rep. Robert Aderholt (R-AL) 
Legislative Branch Rep. Mark Amodei (R-NV) 
Military Construction and Veterans’ Administration Rep. John Carter (R-TX) 
State and Foreign Operations Rep. Mario Diaz-Balart (R-FL) 
Transportation, Housing and Urban Development Rep. Tom Cole (R-OK) 

 

Capitol Complex Open to the Public 
The House and Senate office buildings are fully reopened to the public and Congressional 
staff are no longer required to escort guests to meetings.  
 

President Biden to Deliver State of the Union on February 7th 
During the first three months of the new year, the Speaker of the House invites the President 
to Congress to provide a State of the Union speech. Speaker Kevin McCarthy has formally 
invited President Biden to give the State of the Union address to a joint session of Congress 
on Tuesday, February 7th at 9:00 pm ET. 
 

Congressional and Federal Action Related to California Storms  
 
Federal Disaster Declaration Declared Due to California Storms. On January 14th, 
President Biden signed the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) major 
disaster declaration for California in the wake of devastating storms over the past month. 
Assistance can include grants for temporary housing and home repairs, low-cost loans to 
cover uninsured property losses, and other programs to help individuals and business 
owners recover from the effects of the disaster. Federal funding for the approved cost-share 
programs will be made available at 100 percent of the total eligible costs for debris removal 
and emergency protective measures, including direct federal assistance under the Public 
Assistance program, for 60 days from the start of the incident period. More information on 
the federal response to storm damage in California can be found HERE. 
 
IRS Announces 30 Day Extension for Federal Filings for Impacted Counties. The 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) announced that California storm victims now have until May 
15, 2023, to file various federal individual and business tax returns and make tax payments. 
The IRS is offering relief to any area designated by FEMA. This means that individuals and 
households that reside or have a business in Alameda, Colusa, Contra Costa, El Dorado, 

https://www.fema.gov/disaster/4683


 

3 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

Fresno, Glenn, Humboldt, Kings, Lake, Los Angeles, Madera, Marin, Mariposa, Mendocino, 
Merced, Mono, Monterey, Napa, Orange, Placer, Riverside, Sacramento, San Benito, San 
Bernardino, San Diego, San Francisco, San Joaquin, San Luis Obispo, San Mateo, Santa 
Barbara, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Solano, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tehama, Tulare, 
Ventura, Yolo and Yuba counties qualify for tax relief. More information can be found HERE. 
 
California Republicans Request Waiver to Pumping Restriction and Prioritization of 
Water Storage. Rep. David Valadao (R-CA) led a group of California Republicans in a letter 
to President Biden and California Governor Gavin Newsom urging them to waive 
impediments to Delta pump operations to ensure the current storm flows in California are 
utilized. The lawmakers also urged President Biden and Governor Newsom to prioritize and 
expedite water storage projects to help the state better prepare for future storm events. The 
letter can be found HERE. 
 
Rep. Costa Urges Maximum Pumping and Conservation of Surface Water. Rep. Jim Costa 
(D-CA) sent a letter to Governor Newsom, Interior Secretary Deb Haaland, and California 
Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency Wade Crowfoot to advocate for the maximum 
conservation of available surface water in the wake of recent storms, including pumping at 
the southern Delta Central Valley Project and State Water Project pumping plants. The letter 
can be found HERE. 
 

California Members Call for Public Hearings on Delta Tunnel 
Report  
California Democratic Representatives Josh Harder, Mike Thompson, Mark DeSaulnier, and 
John Garamendi sent a letter to Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) Lieutenant General Scott 
Spellman calling for a reversal of the decision not to hold public hearings on the proposed 
Delta Tunnel project and extend the public comment period by an additional 60 days. The 
current Environmental Impact Statement for the project is open for public comment until 
February 14th. The letter can be found HERE.  
 

President Biden FY24 Budget Proposal Delayed 
The President’s annual budget proposal is supposed to be due to Congress on the first 
Monday in February; however, this is a deadline that is regularly missed. At the end of 
January, the Office of Management provided guidance to the federal agencies regarding the 
upcoming release of the President’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 budget. Typically, there is about a 
six-week period between when OMB provides this guidance to the agencies and when the 
official budget document is released, setting up a potential timetable for the FY24 budget 
proposal to be out in mid-to-late March.  
 

Treasury Outlines “Extraordinary Measures” to Prevent Debt 
Default 
Department of Treasury (Treasury) Secretary Janet Yellen announced the implementation 
of “extraordinary measures” to extend the time when the United States from exceeding the 
current debt ceiling. Congress must raise the debt ceiling to prevent the United States from 
defaulting on debt payments. Secretary Yellen sent a letter to Congressional leadership 

https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/irs-california-storm-victims-qualify-for-tax-relief-april-18-deadline-other-dates-extended-to-may-15
https://valadao.house.gov/UploadedFiles/Valadao_CA_Storms_Letter.pdf
https://iqconnect.house.gov/iqextranet/iqClickTrk.aspx?&cid=CA16JC&crop=15677QQQ18703045QQQ5317505QQQ7290968&report_id=&redirect=https%3a%2f%2fcosta.house.gov%2fsites%2fevo-subsites%2fcosta.house.gov%2ffiles%2fevo-media-document%2f2023.01.11-costa-letter-on-storm-operations-final.pdf&redir_log=233712888136938
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IWcqvytZnpDkNN_YhBhZhKRiBYzw2R54/view?usp=sharing


 

4 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

outlining steps Treasury will take to push the potential for default to June and urging action 
to “protect the full faith and credit of the United States.” The letter can be found HERE. 
 

Final WOTUS Rule Officially Released  
At the end of December, the Environmental Protection Agency and the Army Corps of 
Engineers announced the pre-publication notice for the Waters of the United States 
(WOTUS) final rule. The WOTUS rule defines the scope of federal jurisdiction over waters 
and wetlands under the jurisdiction of the Clean Water Act. On January 18th, the rule was 
officially published in the Federal Register. This action means that the rule now has an 
effective date of March 20th. A link to the Federal Register posting can be found HERE.  
 

Federal Funding Opportunities/Announcements 

 
DOE Announces $50 Million Clean Energy to Communities Program. The Department of 
Energy (DOE) announced the availability of $50 million in grant funding for its new Clean 
Energy to Communities (C2C) Program. C2C will connect local governments, electric utilities, 
community-based groups, and others with the innovative modeling and testing tools 
developed at DOE’s national laboratories to further expand clean energy goals and programs 
at the local level. The application is expected to open in mid-February, and more information 
can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Availability of $100 Million in IRA EJ Grants. The Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) announced the availability of $100 million in environmental justice 
(EJ) grants through two programs:  
 
▪ Environmental Justice Collaborative Problem-Solving (EJCPS) Cooperative 

Agreement Program. This program will provide an estimated $30 million in funding 
directly to community-based nonprofit organizations and their partners, with $5 million 
reserved for small community-based nonprofit organizations with five or fewer full-time 
employees. EPA anticipates funding 50 awards of $500,000 and 30 awards of $150,000. 
More information on the program can be found HERE. 
 

▪ Environmental Justice Government-to-Government (EJG2G) Program. This program 
will provide $70 million in funding. $20 million of the total funding for this program will 
be for local government. EPA anticipates funding 70 projects of up to $1 million each for 
a 3-year project. More information on the program can be found HERE. 

 
EPA Announces Availability of $50 Million in BIL Funding for Carbon Sequestration 
and Groundwater Protection. EPA announced the availability of $50 million in Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law (BIL) grant funding to help states, tribes, and territories develop and 
implement Underground Injection Control Class VI programs. Under the Safe Drinking Water 
Act, Class VI programs ensure that groundwater resources are protected while supporting 
geologic sequestration of carbon dioxide to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Letters of 
Intent for the program are due by March 20th and more information can be found HERE. 
 
 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Debt-Limit-Letter-to-Congress-20230119-McCarthy.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2023-01-18/pdf/2022-28595.pdf
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAxMTguNzAwMDQzMzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwOi8vd3d3Lm5yZWwuZ292L2MyYyJ9.fFNNcBLcXVbpx9ArI1pmTCmef_EYTN8wQjIo_4xd4eI/s/2609458397/br/153001524924-l
https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-collaborative-problem-solving-cooperative-agreement-5
https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-government-government-program
https://www.epa.gov/uic/underground-injection-control-grants#ClassVI_grants_01-19-2023


 

5 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

Reclamation Announces $7 Million in BIL Funding for WaterSMART Program. The 
Bureau of Reclamation awarded $7 million in BIL funding to 82 small-scale water efficiency 
projects. These grants will support local community projects, including measuring water 
flow, automating water delivery, or lining canals. A list of awards can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $80 Million in BIL Funding for Environmental Water 
Resources Program. The Bureau of Reclamation announced the availability of $80 million 
for the Environmental Water Resources Program for projects that address water 
conservation, water management and restoration projects that will result in significant 
benefits to ecosystem or watershed health. Funding is available for up to $3 million per 
project and applicants must complete the project within three years. The total project cost is 
capped at $6 million, and the projects must be part of a collaborative process to increase 
water resource reliability. Applications are due March by 23rd and more information can be 
found HERE.  
 

Federal Agency Personnel/Regulatory Announcements 

 
White House Releases Unified Regulatory Agenda. The White House released the latest 
Unified Regulatory Agenda that outlines regulatory actions federal agencies are considering 
in the next six months. The Unified Regulatory Agenda which is released twice a year and 
can be found HERE. 
 
White House Announces New Deputy National Climate Advisor. The White House 
announced that Mary Frances Repko will serve as Deputy National Climate Advisor and 
Deputy Assistant to the President. Repko previously served as Majority Staff Director of the 
Senate Environment and Public Works Committee. 
 
White House Releases Strategy to Develop Statistics for Environmental-Economic 
Decisions. The White House released a 15-year strategy titled the “National Strategy to 
Develop Statistics for Environmental-Economic Decisions.” The plan will assess the value of 
natural assets like air and water alongside economic statistics like gross domestic product. 
The strategy document can be found HERE. 
 
White House Office of Domestic Climate Policy Announces New Hires. The White House 
Office of Domestic Climate Policy announced that Hannah Safford will serve as Senior Policy 
Advisor, and Heather Clark will serve as the Director of Building Emissions. Prior to joining 
the White House, Safford served as associate director for science policy at the Federation of 
American Scientists, and Clark was previously a manager in RMI’s carbon-free buildings 
program. 
 
CEQ Announces New Director for Drought and Western Resilience. The Council on 
Environmental Quality (CEQ) announced that Kristen Averyt will serve as the new Director 
for Drought and Western Resilience. Previously, Averyt served as Senior Climate Advisor for 
the State of Nevada. 
 
CEQ Publishes Guidance on GHG Consideration and Climate Change. CEQ has published 
interim guidance to assist agencies in analyzing greenhouse gas and climate change effects 

http://www.usbr.gov/watersmart/swep/
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=R23AS00089
https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/eAgendaMain
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Natural-Capital-Accounting-Strategy-final.pdf


 

6 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

of their proposed actions under the National Environmental Policy Act. Comments are due 
by March 10th and more information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Next TSCA Test Order for PFAS. EPA issued the next Toxic Substances 
Control Act (TSCA) test order requiring testing on per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances 
(PFAS) under EPA’s the National PFAS Testing Strategy. The test is part of EPA’s PFAS 
Strategic Roadmap to confront contamination from PFAS chemicals. More information can 
be found HERE.  
 
EPA Releases New PFAS Analytic Tool. EPA released a new interactive PFAS Analytic Tool 
that provides information about PFAS across the country. The PFAS Analytic Tools bring 
together multiple sources of information in one spot with mapping, charting, and filtering 
functions, allowing the public to see where testing has been done and what level of 
detections were measured. The webpage can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces New Senior Advisor for Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility. 
EPA announced that Christopher Carr will serve as the agency’s first Senior Advisor for 
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility. Carr was most recently the Chief Diversity 
Officer at the College of Engineering and Computing at George Mason University.  
 
EPA Announces Appointments to LGAC. EPA announced that fifteen new members will 
join seven returning members on the Local Government Advisory Committee (LGAC). LGAC 
provides independent policy advice to the EPA Administrator on a broad range of issues 
affecting local governments. The list of appointees can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Releases Updated Legal Guidance on Cumulative Impacts to Address EJ. EPA 
released an updated guidance document titled “Cumulative Impacts Addendum to EPA Legal 
Tools to Advance Environmental Justice (EJ Legal Tools).” The guidance is a collection of legal 
authorities to identify and address cumulative impacts through a range of actions, including 
permitting, regulations, and grants to advance EJ priorities. More information can be found 
HERE. 
 
EPA Proposes Adding EJ, Climate Change, and PFAS to National Enforcement and 
Compliance Initiatives. EPA announced it is seeking public comment on its proposal to 
address environmental justice, climate change, and PFAS contamination in its National 
Enforcement and Compliance Initiatives (NECIs). EPA proposes to continue four of the six 
current national initiatives during the FY 2024-2027 cycle and return two of the current 
national initiatives to the core enforcement and compliance program. In addition, EPA 
proposes to address environmental justice concerns in all NECIs, and to add two new NECIs 
on mitigating climate change and addressing PFAS pollution for the FY 2024-2027 cycle. 
Comments are due by March 13th and more information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Plans for Wastewater Regulations and Studies. EPA released Effluent 
Guidelines Program Plan 15 (Plan 15), which focuses on evaluating the extent and nature of 
both nutrient and PFAS discharges. Plan 15 announces EPA’s determination that revised 
effluent limitations guidelines and pretreatment standards are warranted for reducing PFAS 
in leachate discharges from landfills. EPA also announced an expansion of the ongoing study 
of PFAS discharges by textile manufacturers, a new study of publicly owned treatment works 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/01/09/2023-00158/national-environmental-policy-act-guidance-on-consideration-of-greenhouse-gas-emissions-and-climate
http://url6130.epa.mediaroom.com/ls/click?upn=-2BroytcZInNRyuFbAvAoN5br9I5GLfuqQTUSwk94Al0dcU-2B0Zgqu-2FQnY0BOuJ6Q4UYSesxIQrBJspkFVTAvB-2BWSqe8qPV4RorrTOOVKYrhoSsd-2Fq59wP8dPpKa4dN21XesO6z507Gh6yWM3CNvy9t1w-3D-3DB8Np_Lbs1MH5dIyOruUftwXbz11hDBqUOsUOuSMPQ80ZM7Z-2F681vDPkD28wEzdrTzqvXqtH0h4twmAQ51f8dlWtegSzHp2Ft25Ou7As4Kh-2Fo4SJJInEVmEezZRcO1zKa1KyblDLfikEnqs-2F011PITYvuVSLxwbfjF1VoGhsNJtboVJduBq-2Fp0OMhr-2Bh3OxonyklIL3Vk5W-2BzvpOg1AZWS4jVkaEsPxUlo4E4EYXCTKrgeQMtNkGpIcJIQdsy-2F0UFtoxFk4eDS6pbrWKql4-2FNQxwr2Jw-3D-3D
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-01/10434-01_TSCA_Test%20Order_PFAS-HFPO%29_AA_Signature_2023-01-04.pdf
http://url6130.epa.mediaroom.com/ls/click?upn=-2BroytcZInNRyuFbAvAoN5VUAxlaGknnOs6xhC3Bqo3-2Bs35-2FOZkkZ-2FuBZhW0smC-2FcAtGC_Lbs1MH5dIyOruUftwXbz11hDBqUOsUOuSMPQ80ZM7Z-2F681vDPkD28wEzdrTzqvXqtH0h4twmAQ51f8dlWtegS44aSNSpEzYmLNA-2FGYOmvnRmBGhc9loar9n2rEzuOLbeZW94v8XLMP2Cya9XRaV65A6XH5N50R-2FtrzXkveHnuWtxnGNUBYZ2SigdmJWH07C-2Fv-2F8Ch9qeLOByWwcmQc27PSWMY16VZqpM4ryjAtJlag7hDvGP2svw3VW1fZVQxf0mnU1J7cYxQlzmK9kxH2fixQ-3D-3D
https://www.epa.gov/ocir/local-government-advisory-committee-lgac
https://www.epa.gov/ogc/epa-legal-tools-advance-environmental-justice
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/01/12/2023-00500/public-comment-on-epas-national-enforcement-and-compliance-initiatives-for-fiscal-years-2024-2027


 

7 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

influents, and a new study on concentrated animal feeding operations. Plan 15 can be found 
HERE. 
 
USDA Rural Development, EPA, and HUD to Host Housing Solutions in Rural 
Recreation Communities Webinar. USDA Rural Development, EPA’s Office of Community 
Revitalization, and HUD are hosting a webinar on February 15th at 2:00 pm ET on housing 
solutions in gateway communities. The webinar will cover USDA and HUD programs for 
housing projects. Registration can be found HERE. 
 

## ## ## 

http://url6130.epa.mediaroom.com/ls/click?upn=-2BroytcZInNRyuFbAvAoN5UZylv-2F47n2ffEkpao1PRCrIYjfQwYlz-2By7t0Q3ty0iwjt3olHAT3giHKr-2BYfcjWwSOqCf0Dh76zYWJ-2FuYKBcSA-3DyfUS_Lbs1MH5dIyOruUftwXbz11hDBqUOsUOuSMPQ80ZM7Z-2F681vDPkD28wEzdrTzqvXqtH0h4twmAQ51f8dlWtegS4jw-2BSUvkw371RJRO7OCunaPEi4THpf11GB02xWiJeXOSRIdSw-2FqWTqk8RBp608qW4RcXF7GUfmxrrZRunKePy1qDJNNkwryckgkONT8dllg8T5bWUDqcM5lDhQW8U3K8o3kxQuv9BYYfKo1VgW1Of5UZJJWgAXobaFEhPY4iqF8YG5gNygOR1lDnNRPSiCN5A-3D-3D
https://www.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_0FJKcvomT7OUX0ZbusCweA


INFORMATION 
ITEM 

  

3C 



January 27, 2023 

 

To:  Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

 

From:  Michael Boccadoro 

   Beth Olhasso 

       

RE:  January Report 

 

 

Overview: 

Significant storms the first several weeks of January have dramatically shifted the water supply and 

drought situation throughout the state. The Sierra snowpack is over 200 percent of average and 

reservoirs are starting to refill after three years of drought. DWR recently announced that it will 

increase State Water Project Allocations to 30 percent and hopes to further increase allocations after 

more snow surveys in February. 

 

The State Water Resources Control Board recently released their daft workplan for 2023. They 

highlight several priority measures including prioritizing processing new water rights applications, 

holding necessary hearings and developing public benefit contracts needed to support Water Storage 

Investment Program projects.  

 

The California Air Resources Board has indicated it intends to delay the Advanced Clean Fleets rules 

for public agencies and local governments because of significant concern that the needed distribution 

infrastructure upgrades will not be made in time to support the extra demand on the grid. 

 

Members have been introducing bills at a slow rate for the past several weeks, a small preview of the 

several thousand bills we will see before the February 17 bill introduction deadline. There is already 

legislation regarding PFAS, drought monitoring, low income water rate assistance and other topics of 

interest to IEUA. Policy committee hearings will begin in late February, with significant hearings in 

March and April ahead of the late April policy committee deadline. 

 

All eyes were on the Governor’s January 10 budget release. With a projected $25 billion deficit for FY 

23-24, the Governor has decided not to tap into the over $30 billion in reserves at this time. The 

significant spending seen in the past few years has come to a halt, with many previously proposed 

programs being cut or delayed. Recently the Legislative Analyst’s Office indicated that if the economy 

continues to struggle, the state could see an additional $20-40 billion shortfall. Budget committees will 

start to meet in the coming weeks and months to discuss individual budget items. The May revise will 

be especially telling this year following a more informed fiscal situation from the first quarter of 2023.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – January 2023 

 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

January storms have drasticly improved the water situation statwide.  The statewide snowpack is sittng 

at 214 percent of average for this time of year and 128 percent of April 1 averages. While the 

mountains are staying cold and holding the snowpack, significnat rain has started to make its way into 

the state’s main storage reserviors. Lake Oroville is sitting at 110 percent of historical average and 63 

percent capacity.  San Luis Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta storage facility for the State Water 

Project, is at just 78 percent of average for this time of the year and 57 percent capacity.  The two 

reserviors combined have gained 1.62 million acre-feet of water in storage. 

 

During the peak of the storms in Northern California, the Delta pumps were operating at minimum 

capacity to accomodiate “first flush,” where water is allowed to flow out to the San Francisco Bay, to 

move sediment and create good habitat for smelt and salmon. Since Jan 25, the pumps have been 

operating at maximum capacity. 

 

On January 26, the Department of Water Resources announced an increase in State Water Project 

allocation to 30 percent. The increase is solely based on reservior levels, not on snowpack. After a 

manual snow survey that helps determine snow water content and the ariel snow survey that looks at 

higher elevations and can better predicr runoff forecast in late February, DWR expects to further 

increase the SWP allocation. The last time an allocation was above 30 percent was in 2019, and it was 

2006 when State Water Contractors received a 100 percent allocation.  

 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 



SWRCB Releases Draft Strategic Workplan for 2023 

The State Water Resources Control Board recently released their draft strategic workplan for 2023. 

This plan outlines four areas they plan to take action on in 2023: 

• Protect public health by ensuring reliable access to safe, affordable drinking water and 

sanitation. 

o Highest priority actions:  

▪ Chrom 6 

• Protest and restore watersheds, marine waters, and ecosystems. 

o Highest priority actions:  

▪ Clear Lake Hitch 

▪ Temperature management for fisheries 

• Increase statewide water resilience in the face of climate change and other threats by expanding 

and integrating California’s water supply portfolio. 

o Highest priority actions: 

▪ Implement water rights modernization efforts 

▪ TUCPs 

▪ Drinking water drought response program 

▪ Emergency urban water conservation 

▪ Direct potable reuse supply 

▪ Infrastructure funding programs 

▪ Urban water use efficiency framework 

▪ Water Storage Investment Program 

▪ Develop new water supplies (desal, recycled water, and stormwater capture) 

▪ SGMA 

▪ Process water rights permitting for underground storage 

▪ Forest health 

▪ Site specific objectives guidance for copper and zinc 

▪ Cost of municipal stormwater permit implementation 

▪ Stormwater: infiltration 

▪ Bay-Delta Plans 

▪ Delta Conveyance 

• Strengthen internal capacity and systems to accomplish the State Water Board’s mission, 

strategically, transparently, equitably, and efficiently. 

o Highest priority actions: 

▪ Modernize water rights data 

▪ Racial equity 

▪ Fi$cal 

▪ DFA process improvements 

 

Advanced Clean Fleets 

As previously reported, the CA Air Resources Board’s (CARB) Advanced Clean Fleets rule requires 

state and local governments to purchase 50 percent zero emissions vehicles (ZEVs) as part of truck 

additions they make between 2024 and 2026, and 100 percent starting in 2027. Because it is becoming 

increasingly clear that the state’s electric utilities are struggling to provide power, distribution 

infrastructure upgrades and other power supply needs across the state, CARB is proposing to ease the 

rules for local governments and expects to have a proposal for consideration in the Spring. 

 

 

 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/priorities/docs/workplan_2023.pdf


Governor Releases January Proposed FY 2023-24 Budget 

On January 10, the Governor released his 2023-24 proposed Budget.  As expected, the Administration 

is responding to a significant $22.5 billion shortfall, stemming from significant inflation, and declining 

personal income tax and capital gains tax revenues.  There is minimal new funding for climate 

programs outside of what was previously appropriated in the last few years and most items in the 

Climate Change Budget are funding delays or reductions.   

 

The Legislative Analyst Office recently testified at the Senate Budget Committee hearing outlining the 

Governor’s proposed budget, that if the economy continues to decline the deficit increase by an 

additional $20-40 billion. 

 

In the Governor’s press conference talking about the budget, he indicated that he is interested in 

talking about a potential resources bond. This could be a significant opportunity for water recycling 

and an increase for water storage funding. Interest in a bond was reiterated by Secretary Crowfoot in a 

subsequent call. Details of a bond have not yet been discussed.  

 

Over the next several weeks and months, budget sub-commitments will meet to discuss the line items 

of the budget. After the May Revise, final changes will be made and a budget will be voted on before 

the June 15 deadline.  

 

Legislative Update 

The 2023-24 Legislative session has started in earnest with Legislators back in Sacramento working on 

their bill packages ahead of the February 17 bill introduction deadline.  

 

Committee assignments for both houses are now out. There is not a strong presence of IEUA 

delegation members on any water or resources committees again this year. A full roster of committee 

assignments can be found here for the Senate and Assembly. 

  

Assembly Committee Chairs 

• Appropriations- Asm. Chris Holden (D-Pasadena) 

• Budget- Asm. Phil Ting (D-San Francisco) 

o Sub Com. on Resources and Trans. Asm. Steve Bennett (D-Santa Barbara) NEW Chair 

• Water, Parks and Wildlife- Asm. Rebecca Bauer Kahan (D-Orinda) 

• Natural Resources- Asm. Luz Rivas (D- Arleta) 

• Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials- Alex Lee (D- San Jose) NEW Chair 

• Utilities and Energy- Eduardo Garcia (D- Coachella) 

 

Senate Committee Chairs 

• Natural Resources & Water- Chair- Dave Min (D-Irvine)- NEW Chair 

• Energy & Utilities: Chair-Steve Bradford (D-Gardena)-NEW Chair 

• Environmental Quality: Chair- Ben Allen (D-Santa Monica) 

• Budget: Nancy Skinner (D-Berkeley) 

o Sub Committee on Resources: Josh Becker (D-Menlo Park)- NEW Chair 

• Appropriations: Anthony Portantino (D-La Canada Flintridge) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://ebudget.ca.gov/2023-24/pdf/BudgetSummary/FullBudgetSummary.pdf
https://sd39.senate.ca.gov/news/20230105-senate-leader-atkins-announces-committee-membership-2023-2024-legislative-session
https://www.assembly.ca.gov/committees


Legislation 

Members have been introducing legislation slowly ahead of the February 17 bill introduction deadline. 

There are already bills introduced on many topics of interest to IEUA including; PFAS, discontinuation 

of residential water service, expedited permitting for water supply projects, drought modeling, CEQA, 

and others. After the bill introduction deadline, a more comprehensive report will be provided.  

 

Policy committees will start to meet and hear bills ahead of the April 28 policy committee deadline. 

 



INFORMATION
ITEM

3D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

Public Outreach and Communication

Staff attended the Chino Education Technology event to share some of IEUA's free education
programs with educators in the Chino Valley Unified School District

Staff is starting to promote the 2023 Water is Life poster contest. The contest will be a
requirement in order for schools to participate this year's Earth Day event. The student field trip
day will be held on Wednesday, April 19th.

A community Earth Day event will be held the following day on April 20th.

During the month of February staff plans to promote World Wetlands Day, Engineers Week and
Skip the Straw Day throughout our social media channels.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

02/08/23Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

23035



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
February 

• February 2, World Wetlands Day 
• February 19-25, Engineers Week 
• February 20, Presidents’ Day 
• February 24, Skip the Straw Day 

 
Media and Outreach 

General 
• Staff continues to work with the Chino Basin Program team leads, partners, and Arellano 

Associates to develop an outreach strategy for additional program communication, 
implementing a roadshow, identifying collaboration and partnership opportunities on 
shared media, and more. 

• Staff shared water-wise reminders related to January’s rain events on Agency social 
media channels. 

• Staff continues to promote the Agency’s education programs and shared a post to 
Nextdoor and Agency social media channels in recognition of International Day of 
Education.  

• Staff attended the Chino Education Technology (ChET) Day conference on January 20, 
2023. The Agency held a vendor booth at the event to share some of IEUA’s free 
education programs with educators in the Chino Valley Unified School District.  
 

Drought Awareness Efforts 
• Staff is coordinating with Customer Agencies on messaging geared towards conservation 

and the irrigation of trees. 
• Staff is continuing to work closely with the Water-Use Efficiency team on promoting the 

turf replacement program.  
• Staff will continue to work with Customer Agencies on drought messaging and outreach. 

Staff is drafting message points and creative for outreach and will be adding these assets 
to the drought communication toolkit for customer agencies. 

• Staff continues to promote the “Time is Now” message through timely facts, video 
shorts, and water-saving tips shared to the Agency’s social media channels. 
 

Advertising/Marketing  
• An education program ad ran on January 12 in La Opinion.  
• An education program ad ran on January 21 in the Chino Champion.  
• A “Time is Now” banner ad ran in January in La Opinion.  
• A “Time is Now” ad ran in the January issue of Inland Empire Magazine. 
• An education program ad will run in the February issue of Inland Empire Magazine. 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Social Outreach and Analytics 
• The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained 48 followers since 

December, with 545 page views in the last 30 days (December 23-January 23).  
• January: 17 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 17 tweets were sent on the 

@IEUAWater Twitter handle, 17 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 10 
posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
January were:  
 1/1 New Year’s Office Closure Notice 
 1/3 IEUA Board Workshop Reminder 
 1/12 Education Program Promotion 

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
January were: 
 1/19 IEUA Board President Marco Tule at CBWCD Ribbon Cutting Event  
 1/10 Rain Collection Tip 
 1/20 Time is Now Video Short 

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
January were: 
 1/21 Time is Now Video Short  
 1/10 Rain Collection Tip  
 1/19 IEUA Board President Marco Tule at CBWCD Ribbon Cutting Event  

o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 
January were: 
 1/12 Human Resources Water Leaders Networking Event 
 1/13 New Splash Employee Feature 
 1/17 New Splash Employee Feature  

• For the month of January, there were 7,421 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area on 
Yelp and the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 425 times.  

 
Education and Outreach Updates 

• Staff is coordinating with the city of Chino to plan for this year’s in-person two-day Earth 
Day event. 

• Staff attended the Chino Education Technology (ChET) Day conference on January 20, 
2023. The Agency held a vendor booth at the event to speak and share some of IEUA’s 
free programs with the nearly 100 educators in the Chino Valley Unified School District.  

• Staff is continuing to work on closing out the last year of the Garden in Every School® 
program.  

o Randall Pepper Elementary in Fontana is finishing up the final electrical work in 
preparation for construction to begin on their garden. Chino Basin Water 
Conservation District will be completing the construction. 

o Our Loving Savior’s garden construction is completed. The school has confirmed 
that the bunny fencing will be completed in the month of January. Planting and 
the dedication will be scheduled this quarter.  

• Staff has successfully completed the final year of the GIES mini grants.  
• IEUA is now accepting entries for the Water is Life Student Art Poster Contest. The 

deadline for this year’s contest will be March 9, 2023. Staff will be promoting the contest 
through email blasts and social media.  



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 Agency-Wide Membership Updates 

• Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager and Randy Lee, Director of Operations and 
Maintenance, attended the Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works (SCAP) Clean Water SoCal Luncheon and Board Meeting on December 6. 

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Working Group (RWG) General 
Committee Meeting on December 8. 

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Quality, Climate Change, and Energy 
(ACE) Workgroup Meeting on December 13. 

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Toxics Subgroup Meeting on December 14. 

• Randy Lee, Director of Operations and Maintenance, attended the Isle Utilities PFAS 
Partnership Quarter 4 Meeting on December 14. 

• Randy Lee, Director of Operations and Maintenance, attended the Isle Utilities Climate 
Adaptation Net Zero Meeting on December 14.  

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Quality Committee Meeting on January 11. 

• Pietro Cambiaso, Acting Director of Planning & Resources and Richard Lao, Senior 
Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies (CASA) Air Quality, Climate Change, and Energy (ACE) Workgroup Meetings 
on January 18. 

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Working Group Biosolids 
Meeting on January 19. 

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Working Group Water Meeting 
on January 19. 



INFORMATION
ITEM

3E



Planning & Resources Department
Quarterly Update

Pietro Cambiaso

Manager of Compliance and Sustainability 

February 2023



• Optimum Basin Management Program Update (OBMPU)
• Chino Basin Water Bank
• Basin Monitoring Program Task Force

Topics

2



Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP)

3

2000 OBMP is a regional water resources and groundwater 
management program to improve reliability and long-term 
sustainability of the Chino Basin

• Required component of the Judgment 
• Led by Chino Basin Watermaster, in collaboration with Basin stakeholders
• Goals include enhancing basin water supplies, water quality, basin 

management, and equitably financing the OBMP 

OBMP Program Environmental Impact Report (PEIR)
• IEUA Board adopted the OBMP Program Environmental Impact Report as 

the lead agency in July 2000
• Enabled implementation of water resources programs with significant grant 

funding and low interest loans



Optimum Basin Management Program Update (OBMPU)

4

2020 Optimum Basin Management Program Update (OBMPU) is intended to 
address possible program activities and projects at a programmatic level over the 
next 30 years

• Many of the programs from the 2000 OBMP have been implemented
• Understanding of Chino Basin hydrology has improved and new challenges in water 

management have been identified
• OBMPU addresses the new challenges, protects stakeholders’ collective interests, and 

maintains water supply reliability
• OBMPU establishes an appropriate environmental baseline for both new and revised 

facilities for the near future, which is required by state and federal agencies that provide 
funding



OBMPU Project Description

5

• Project Description and exhibits have been revised and finalized 
—Projects proposed by stakeholders were added and categorized by the Program 

Element
—Compiled potential projects and associated facilities for each Program Element
—Identified specific locations where possible
—Modifications were made of to the summary of all facilities

• Chino Basin Watermaster transmittal of the Project Description to IEUA for 
consideration and approval (January 2023)



Finalize 
Project 

Description

Revise Draft 
Supplemental 
Environmental 
Impact Report 

(SEIR)

Recirculate 
SEIR 

(45-days)

Final SEIR 
Prepared

Final SEIR 
Public Hearing 

and IEUA Board 
Consideration

Sept 22 - Jan 23 Feb - March 23 April - May 23 June 23 July 23

Current Status

OBMPU CEQA Proposed Schedule

6



Chino Basin Water Bank

7

• Coordinated storage and recovery program within the Chino Basin
• Joint Powers Authority established in 2017

—City of Ontario 
—Cucamonga Valley Water District
—Monte Vista Water District
— Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

• Work accomplished to date
—Determining the feasibility of the concepts
—Identifying and evaluating alternative scenarios ranging in the size of storage, number of 

participants, and infrastructure needed to support the program
• Next Steps

—Finalizing the Water Marketing Strategy document (currently in Final Draft)
—Prepare and submit Final Report to US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) (April 2023)
—Receive final grant reimbursement



Basin Monitoring Program Task Force Background

8

• 20 Agency collaborative effort organized by SAWPA
• Formed in 2004 to address water quality issues in the Santa Ana River 

Watershed
• Monitors water quality (TDS and Nitrogen) in both surface water and groundwater 

to determine if standards are being met
• Assesses if assimilative capacity, the ability of the groundwater basin to absorb 

additional pollutants without violating water quality standards, exists in 
groundwater basin

• Wasteload allocation report for TDS and N every 5-10 years
—Provides guidance to the Regional Water Quality Control Board in establishing 

discharge permits for water recycling plants along the river



Basin Monitoring Program Task Force Update

9

• Final Groundwater Monitoring Program to the Regional Board (March 2023)
—Define wells to be monitored and responsible parties 
—Identify data gaps 
—Define actions (and timeline) to improve monitoring networks to fill data gaps 

• Initiate Ambient Water Quality Pilot Study (January 2023)
—Assess current ambient water quality methodology 
—Submit final report by October 2023



INFORMATION
ITEM

3F



Laboratory Semi-Annual Update

Sushmitha Reddy
Manager of Laboratories

February 2023



2022 Saw Significant Successes for IEUA Lab 

2

– Renewed Accreditation
• Onsite Assessment
• Annual Performance Evaluation Testing
• November 1,2022 - October 31,2024

– Southern California Coastal Water Research 
Project (SCCWRP) Toxicity split sample study

– Added Scope of testing
• PFAS
• Additional disinfection byproducts

– New National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) permit

– Reappointment of Sushmitha Reddy to 
Environmental Laboratory Technical Advisory 
Committee (ELTAC) for an additional term (2022-
2024)



NPDES Challenges Remain Consistent 

3

– Title 22 Parameters
• No accredited methods or labs for 

wastewater

– 1,2,3 Trichloropropane (1,2,3 TCP)
• 5 ng/L, difficult matrix

– Toxicity Provisions
• Alternate method: Test of Significant 

Toxicity (TST) 
• Unapproved by EPA and CA
• Sampling by 15th of each month



Laboratory Tasked with New Projects in 2022 

4

- 1,2,3 TCP Investigation
- Jar Test

• Optimize chemical usage for controlling 
sulfides for reduced solids

- South Archibald Plume TCE Plume
- Advanced Water Treatment Facility 

(AWTF) - wastewater characterization



5

Compliance Testing Increased Over Last Five Years

4,336 

11,924 

5,857 

14,120 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

Samples Analyses

Compliance Vs Process (July-Dec 2022)

Compliance Process

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Samples  workload

Compliance Process



6

Performance Indicator Goal Actual

Compliance 18 days 16

Process Control 1 day 1

Meet sample holding times 99% >99%

Quality Control Failures <1% <1%

ELAP Performance Evaluation sample repeats* 0 NA

0 3

Sample 

Turnaround Time

Lost time accidents

*Annual: Estimated time of completion October 2023

IEUA Laboratory Performance on Target 
Key Performance Indicators - 2022


Sheet1

		Performance Indicator				Goal		Actual

		Sample Turnaround Time		Compliance		18 days		16

				Process Control		1 day		1

		Meet sample holding times				99%		>99%

		Quality Control Failures				<1%		<1%

		ELAP Performance Evaluation sample repeats*				0		NA

		Lost time accidents				0		3

		`





image1.png





INFORMATION
ITEM

3G



Vicky Salazar, Sr. Associate Engineer

February 2023

RP-5 Expansion Project Update
February 2023

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 - Jan 2025 Construction
Jan 12 - Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 - Nov 7 MBR Phase1 
Dec 14 - Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 - Sep 23 Digesters
Feb 15 - Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 - Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 - Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award
Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone
Jan 11

Project Completion
Jan 10

Day 930 of 1640 = 57%

RP-5: Project Status

Role Firm Contract
This Month’s 

Payment
Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $336,854,218 $5,731,395 $196,863,194 58%

Designer Parsons $36,833,185 $201,678 $32,588,627 88%

Construction 
Management Arcadis $21,125,523 $318,345 $10,787,039 51%

2

Data date: 1/31/2022



RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff

• WML Craft:      125

• WML Project:    32

• IEUA & CM:       15

• Total:                172

3



RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station

4



RP-5: Major Activities

5

Grit Chamber Fine Screens



RP-5: Major Activities 

Main Odor Control Facility 
6



RP-5: Major Activities 

7

Aeration Low Pressure (ALP) Line



RP-5: Major Activities

Gas Phase Digesters
8



RP-5: Major Activities

9

Gas Phase Digester Building



RP-5: Major Activities

Thickening Building

10



RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building

11



RP-5: Major Activities – Centrifuge Factory Testing

12

• Centrifuge System
• Manufacturer: Centrisys
• Total 5 Units
• Capacity: 250-350 GPM 
• Hydraulic Back Drive 

(scroll)
• Total Value: $4.2M
• Arrive On-Site Value: 

$3.4M

• Factory testing
• 3 days 

programming/controls
• 3 days mechanical
• Kenosha, Wisconsin



RP-5: Major Activities – Centrifuge Factory Testing

13



Questions?

14



INFORMATION
ITEM

3H



General Manager

Budget Impact 

February 15, 2023

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended December 31, 2022 is
submitted in a format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of December 2022, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of
$497,330,760 reflects an increase of $29,494,875 compared to the total of $467,835,885
reported for November 2022. The increase is primarily attributed to property and redevelopment
tax receipts from the San Bernardino County Tax Assessor.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in December 2022 was 2.573 percent, an
increase of 0.173 percent compared to the November 2022 yield of 2.400 percent. The change in
yield is mainly attributed to market conditions and increased earnings yield in managed
investment accounts.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended December 31, 2022 is an
information item for the Board of Director's review

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On December 21, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial
Affairs for the month ended November 31, 2022.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

23031





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/




https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/






   All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in
   the Agency's Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2022-4-8) adopted by the Inland Empire
   Utilities Agency's Board of Directors during its regular meeting held on April 20, 2022.

   The funds anticipated to be available during the next six-month period are expected to be
   sufficient to meet all foreseen expenditures during the period.

* A Municipal Water District

TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

For the Month Ended December 31, 2022



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

December November Variance

$2,306,395 $2,208,473 $97,922

Investments
Agency Managed
Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $30,909,127 $14,492,950 $16,416,177
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 22,416,678 22,416,678 -                           
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 104,661,659 92,290,575 12,371,084           
Total Agency Managed Investments 157,987,464 129,200,203 $28,787,261

PFMManaged
Certificates of Deposit $1,810,000 $2,935,000 ($1,125,000)
Municipal Bonds 2,140,866 2,140,896 (30)                           
Supra-National Agency Bonds 1,669,289 1,669,253 36                            
Medium Term Notes 17,044,608 14,344,618 2,699,990              
U.S. Treasury Notes 67,976,800 66,831,320 1,145,481              
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities 23,662,433 26,422,221 (2,759,788)            
Total PFMManaged Investments 114,303,996 114,343,308 ($39,312)

Total Investments $272,291,460 $243,543,511 $28,747,949

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency $274,597,855 $245,751,984 $28,845,871

Restricted Deposits
CAMP Water Connection Reserve $25,484,066 $25,193,739 $290,327
LAIF Self Insurance Reserve 6,573,509                   6,573,509                 -                           
Bond and Note Accounts 18,665,447                19,700,486              (1,035,039)            
2020B Construction Accounts 55,450,151                55,411,171              38,980                    

87,080,965                85,547,318              1,533,647              

19,564,273                20,051,362              (487,089)               

Escrow Deposits 9,914,494 9,606,316 308,178                 

Total Restricted Deposits $222,732,905 $222,083,901 $649,004

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $497,330,760 $467,835,885 $29,494,874
**Total reported as of November 2022 (incl. adjusted beg. balances)

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account (CCRA) Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
California Employers' Retirement Benefit Trust Account - CERBT (Other Post 
       Employment Benefits - OPEB)

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

CBB Demand Account (Negative balance offset by CBB Sweep Balance) $1,634,732
CBB Payroll Account -                                            
CBB Workers' Compensation Account 40,865                                     

Subtotal Demand Deposits $1,675,597

Other Cash and Bank Accounts
Petty Cash $2,250

Subtotal Other Cash $2,250

US Bank Pre Investment Money Market Account $628,548

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,306,395

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments
Freddie Mac (FHLMC) $18,595,388
Fannie Mae (FNMA) 12,313,739                             

Subtotal CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $30,909,127

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
  LAIF Fund $22,416,678

Subtotal Local Agency Investment Fund $22,416,678

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)
  Short Term $104,661,659

Subtotal CAMP $104,661,659

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $157,987,464

Brokered Certificates of Deposit
Brokered Certificates of Deposit $1,810,000

Subtotal Brokered Certificates of Deposit $1,810,000

Supra National Agency Bonds
Inter-American Development Bank Notes $1,669,289

Subtotal Supra-National Agency Bonds $1,669,289

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds
Subtotal State and Local Municipal Bonds $2,140,866

Subtotal State and Municipal Bonds $2,140,866

Medium Term Notes

Medium Term Notes $17,044,608
Subtotal Medium Term Notes $17,044,608

U.S. Treasury Notes
Treasury Note $67,976,800

Subtotal U.S. Treasury Notes $67,976,800

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
Fannie Mae Bank $16,470,169
Freddie Mac Bank 5,179,635                               
Federal Home Loan Bank 2,012,630                               

Subtotal U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $23,662,433

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $114,303,996

Total Investments $272,291,460

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts
CAMP - Water Connection Reserves $25,484,066
LAIF - Self Insurance Fund Reserves 6,573,509                               

Subtotal Investment Pool Accounts $32,057,575

Bond and Note Accounts
2017A Debt Service Accounts $431
2020A Debt Service Accounts 1                                                
2020B Debt Service Accounts 39                                              
2020B Capitalized Interest 18,664,976                             

Subtotal Bond and Note Accounts $18,665,447

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Restricted Deposits Continued  

2020B Construction Project Accounts
LAIF Construction Project Accounts $44,747,593
CAMP Construction Project Accounts 10,702,558                             

Subtotal 2020B Construction Project Accounts $55,450,151

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies
City of Chino $13,671,507
Cucamonga Valley Water District 14,204,112                             
City of Fontana 17,760,365                             
City of Montclair 4,077,737                               
City of Ontario 30,178,756                             
City of Chino Hills 3,265,266                               
City of Upland 3,923,222                               

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies** $87,080,965

CalPERS
CERBT Account (OPEB) $19,564,273

Subtotal CalPERS Accounts $19,564,273

Escrow Deposits
W.M. Lyles Construction $9,416,458
MNR Construction, Inc. 498,036                                   

Subtotal Escrow Deposits $9,914,494

Total Restricted Deposits $222,732,905

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of December 31, 2022 $497,330,760

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of 12/31/2022 $497,330,760
Less: Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of 11/30/2022 467,835,885                          

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease) $29,494,874

**Total reported as of November 2022 (incl. adjusted beg. balances)

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Par Cost Basis Term December Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)
Demand Account $1,634,732 $1,634,732 N/A $1,634,732 N/A N/A $1,634,732
Payroll Checking 0 0 N/A 0 N/A N/A 0
Workers' Compensation Account 40,865 40,865 N/A 40,865 N/A N/A 40,865                         

Subtotal CBB Accounts $1,675,597 $1,675,597 $1,675,597 $1,675,597

US Bank (USB)
Custodial Money Market (Investment Mgmt.) $249,034 $249,034 N/A $249,034 3.65% N/A $249,034
Custodial Money Market (Debt Service) 379,514 379,514 N/A 379,514 3.65% N/A 379,514

Subtotal USB Account $628,548 $628,548 $628,548 3.65% $628,548

Petty Cash $2,250 $2,250 N/A $2,250 N/A N/A $2,250

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,306,395 $2,306,395 $2,306,395 $2,306,395

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

Freddie Mac (FHLMC) $18,595,388 $18,595,388 N/A $18,595,388 0.50% N/A $18,595,388
Fannie Mae (FNMA) 12,313,739              12,313,739              N/A 12,313,739             0.50% N/A 12,313,739

Subtotal CBB Repurchase Accounts $30,909,127 $30,909,127 $30,909,127 0.50% $30,909,127

LAIF Accounts
Non-Restricted Funds $22,416,678 $22,416,678 N/A $22,416,678 2.173% N/A $22,416,678

Subtotal LAIF Accounts $22,416,678 $22,416,678 $22,416,678 2.173% $22,416,678

CAMP Accounts  
Non-Restricted Funds $104,661,659 $104,661,659 N/A $104,661,659 4.30% N/A $104,661,659

Subtotal CAMP Accounts $104,661,659 $104,661,659 $104,661,659 4.30% $104,661,659

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $157,987,464 $157,987,464 $157,987,464 3.25% $157,987,464

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)
Credit Suisse NY $745,000 745,000$                  724 745,000$                0.59% 0.59% 03/17/23 737,808$                    
Toronto Dominion Bank NY 1,065,000                 1,065,000                 1312 1,065,000               5.47% 5.44% 10/25/24 1,064,550                  

Subtotal Brokered CDs $1,810,000 $1,810,000 $1,810,000 3.44% $1,802,358

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Par Cost Basis Term December Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)

US Treasury Note
US Treasury Note $1,260,000 $1,196,951 1630 $1,251,838 1.25% 2.44% 07/31/23 $1,235,194
US Treasury Note 650,000                    667,088                    1611 652,885                   2.88% 2.25% 09/30/23 641,672
US Treasury Note 1,875,000                 1,870,898                 877 1,873,513               0.25% 0.34% 11/15/23 1,802,930
US Treasury Note 3,450,000                 3,484,904                 1713 3,456,480               2.75% 2.52% 11/15/23 3,390,703
US Treasury Note 2,525,000                 2,479,826                 1786 2,516,577               2.13% 2.52% 11/30/23 2,466,609
US Treasury Note 990,000                    988,608                    1044 989,536                   0.13% 0.17% 12/15/23 948,234
US Treasury Note 120,000                    120,356                    1813 120,072                   2.63% 2.56% 12/31/23 117,563
US Treasury Note 810,000                    806,235                    917 808,444                   0.13% 0.31% 01/15/24 772,284
US Treasury Note 675,000                    709,778                    566 690,839                   2.38% 0.35% 02/29/24 657,387
US Treasury Note 2,345,000                 2,355,534                 1792 2,347,851               2.00% 1.90% 04/30/24 2,262,559
US Treasury Note 210,000                    208,679                    1059 209,376                   0.25% 0.47% 05/15/24 197,663
US Treasury Note 575,000                    580,930                    1824 576,775                   2.00% 1.78% 06/30/24 552,719
US Treasury Note 1,000,000                 1,016,172                 2183 1,005,133               2.13% 1.78% 07/31/24 961,875
US Treasury Note 1,310,000                 1,349,146                 1824 1,323,693               2.13% 1.50% 09/30/24 1,256,577
US Treasury Note 595,000                    614,454                    1822 602,143                   2.25% 1.57% 10/31/24 571,293
US Treasury Note 510,000                    521,814                    1789 514,616                   2.13% 1.63% 11/30/24 488,086
US Treasury Note 1,820,000                 1,876,875                 1258 1,851,602               1.50% 0.58% 11/30/24 1,721,891
US Treasury Note 1,445,000                 1,383,588                 1009 1,399,656               1.13% 2.73% 01/15/25 1,351,752
US Treasury Note 340,000                    335,232                    1475 337,152                   0.25% 0.60% 05/31/25 308,444
US Treasury Note 1,900,000                 1,866,230                 1440 1,879,340               0.25% 0.71% 05/31/25 1,723,656
US Treasury Note 2,050,000                 2,027,898                 1488 2,035,548               0.25% 0.52% 08/31/25 1,842,758
US Treasury Note 990,000                    968,228                    1463 975,073                   0.25% 0.81% 09/30/25 888,680
US Treasury Note 1,600,000                 1,573,125                 1482 1,581,811               0.25% 0.67% 09/30/25 1,436,250
US Treasury Note 435,000                    427,965                    1658 430,486                   0.38% 0.74% 11/30/25 389,053
US Treasury Note 1,910,000                 1,873,218                 1623 1,885,886               0.38% 0.82% 11/30/25 1,708,256
US Treasury Note 2,925,000                 2,845,591                 1489 2,868,256               0.38% 1.06% 11/30/25 2,616,047
US Treasury Note 815,000                    810,034                    1814 812,002                   0.38% 0.50% 12/31/25 727,897
US Treasury Note 1,780,000                 1,751,145                 1699 1,761,403               0.38% 0.73% 12/31/25 1,589,763
US Treasury Note 870,000                    820,995                    1439 831,654                   0.38% 1.86% 01/31/26 773,756
US Treasury Note 1,520,000                 1,466,087                 1486 1,479,148               0.38% 1.27% 01/31/26 1,351,850
US Treasury Note 1,540,000                 1,400,437                 1368 1,425,126               0.38% 2.95% 01/31/26 1,369,638
US Treasury Note 2,345,000                 2,248,910                 1479 2,271,844               0.38% 1.42% 01/31/26 2,085,584
US Treasury Note 2,940,000                 3,257,428                 1822 3,136,171               2.63% 0.43% 01/31/26 2,809,078
US Treasury Note 1,765,000                 1,717,428                 1850 1,729,444               0.50% 1.15% 02/28/26 1,572,229
US Treasury Note 3,110,000                 3,068,088                 1821 3,083,440               0.50% 0.78% 02/28/26 2,770,330
US Treasury N/B Note 1,360,000                 1,359,469                 1664 1,359,622               0.75% 0.76% 03/31/26 1,218,900
US Treasury N/B Note 1,464,000                 1,453,192                 1805 1,456,539               0.75% 0.90% 05/31/26 1,305,476
US Treasury N/B Note 2,120,000                 1,942,947                 1453 1,968,171               0.75% 2.99% 05/31/26 1,890,444

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Par Cost Basis Term December Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)

US Treasury N/B Note $890,000 $819,461 1637 $831,052 0.88% 2.77% 09/30/26 $790,153
US Treasury N/B Note 1,190,000                 1,086,851                 1604 1,102,028               0.88% 3.00% 09/30/26 1,056,497
US Treasury Note 1,500,000                 1,457,637                 1686 1,462,159               2.25% 2.91% 02/15/27 1,395,000
US Treasury N/B Note 2,115,000                 1,890,281                 1729 1,909,647               0.50% 2.92% 04/30/27 1,820,552
US Treasury Note 1,055,000                 936,436                    1784 945,940                   0.50% 2.99% 06/30/27 902,190
US Treasury Note 3,315,000                 3,142,905                 1804 3,154,066               2.25% 3.40% 08/15/27 3,065,857
US Treasury Note 1,965,000                 1,952,181                 1792 1,952,603               4.13% 4.27% 09/30/27 1,971,755
US Treasury Note 1,105,000                 1,120,366                 1788 1,120,160               4.13% 3.81% 10/31/27 1,108,798

Subtotal US Treasuries $69,079,000 $67,851,600 $67,976,800 1.71% $63,885,880

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
Freddie Mac Bond $20,000 $19,942 1,095 $19,991 0.25% 0.35% 06/26/23 $19,566
Fannie Mae Bond 1,875,000                 1,870,968                 1,095 1,874,301               0.25% 0.32% 07/10/23 $1,831,444
Fannie Mae Bond 645,000                    645,000                    1,092 645,000                   0.36% 0.36% 08/18/23 $627,083
Freddie Mac Bond 885,000                    884,097                    1,098 884,807                   0.25% 0.28% 08/24/23 $859,407
Fannie Mae Bond 855,000                    853,273                    1,741 854,748                   2.88% 2.92% 09/12/23 $843,317
Fannie Mae Bond 1,820,000                 1,803,274                 1,772 1,817,603               2.88% 3.08% 09/12/23 $1,795,132
Freddie Mac Bond 805,000                    804,203                    1,095 804,755                   0.25% 0.28% 12/04/23 $771,451
Federal Home Loan Bank 870,000                    895,642                    1,772 874,935                   3.38% 2.72% 12/08/23 $857,727
Federal Home Loan Bank 190,000                    189,327                    1,824 189,850                   2.50% 2.58% 02/13/24 $185,237
Fannie Mae Bond 2,055,000                 2,130,234                 1,769 2,086,344               1.63% 0.85% 01/07/25 $1,941,202
Freddie Mac Bond 1,215,000                 1,214,065                 1,825 1,214,604               1.50% 1.52% 02/12/25 $1,142,744
Federal Home Loan Bank 950,000                    945,288                    1,824 947,846                   0.50% 0.60% 04/14/25 $869,714
Fannie Mae Bond 495,000                    496,629                    1,792 495,765                   0.63% 0.56% 04/22/25 $454,119
Fannie Mae Bond 1,275,000                 1,272,374                 1,824 1,273,788               0.63% 0.67% 04/22/25 $1,169,700
Fannie Mae Bond 1,425,000                 1,432,296                 1,782 1,428,447               0.63% 0.52% 04/22/25 $1,307,312
Fannie Mae Bond 240,000                    241,126                    1,716 240,589                   0.50% 0.40% 06/17/25 $218,453
Fannie Mae Bond 995,000                    996,473                    1,693 995,781                   0.50% 0.47% 06/17/25 $905,669
Fannie Mae Bond 1,435,000                 1,441,931                 1,778 1,438,501               0.50% 0.40% 06/17/25 $1,306,166
Fannie Mae Bond 1,480,000                 1,476,936                 1,824 1,478,492               0.50% 0.54% 06/17/25 $1,347,126
Freddie Mac Bond 895,000                    890,543                    1,824 892,723                   0.38% 0.48% 07/21/25 $809,859
Fannie Mae Bond 950,000                    945,554                    1,824 947,643                   0.38% 0.47% 08/25/25 $856,685
Freddie Mac Bond 1,365,000                 1,360,891                 1,824 1,362,756               0.38% 0.44% 09/23/25 $1,226,878
Fannie Mae Bond 895,000                    891,796                    1,821 893,168                   0.50% 0.57% 11/07/25 $804,169

Subtotal U.S. Gov't Sponsored Entities $23,635,000 $23,701,862 $23,662,433 0.94% $22,150,159

Supra National Agency Bond
Inter-American Development Bank Notes $1,670,000 $1,668,764 1,096 $1,669,289 0.50% 0.52% 09/23/24 $1,556,148

Subtotal Supra-National Agency Bond $1,670,000 $1,668,764 $1,669,289 0.52% $1,556,148

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Par Cost Basis Term December Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

CA State Earthquake Authority Taxable Rev $195,000 $195,000 949 $195,000 1.48% 1.48% 07/01/23 $191,726
Maryland State GO Bond 250,000                    249,930                    1457 249,972                   0.51% 0.52% 08/01/24 235,620                      
CA State Dept of Wtr Res 100,000                    100,000                    1578 100,000                   0.56% 0.56% 12/01/24 92,458                         
Univ. of CA Revenue Bond 90,000                       90,326                       1764 90,157                     0.88% 0.81% 05/15/25 81,275                         
Univ. of CA Revenue Bond 205,000                    205,000                    1764 205,000                   0.88% 0.88% 05/15/25 185,125                      
Florida State Board of Admin. Taxable Rev 200,000                    201,414                    1749 200,737                   1.26% 1.11% 07/01/25 182,796                      
Florida State Board of Admin. Taxable Rev 520,000                    520,000                    1749 520,000                   1.26% 1.26% 07/01/25 475,270                      
Los Angeles CCD CA Taxable GO Bonds 375,000                    375,000                    1725 375,000                   0.77% 0.77% 08/01/25 340,309                      
NJ TPK Authority 205,000                    205,000                    1792 205,000                   1.05% 1.05% 01/01/26 183,752                      

Subtotal State and Local Municipal Bonds $2,140,000 $2,141,670 $2,140,866 0.99% $1,968,330

Medium Term Notes
Bank of NY Mellon $610,000 $615,588 1555 $610,420 3.50% 3.27% 04/28/23 $607,143
Apple Inc. Corp. 565,000                    563,463                    1095 564,818                   0.75% 0.84% 05/11/23 557,241                      
UnitedHealth Group Inc 720,000                    755,741                    1330 724,434                   3.50% 2.08% 06/15/23 715,591                      
Pfizer Inc 1,260,000                 1,276,393                 1807 1,263,780               2.95% 2.67% 03/15/24 1,233,701                  

    Amazon Com. Inc. 560,000                    559,182                    1096 559,629                   0.45% 0.50% 05/12/24 528,293                      
    Walmart Inc 1,425,000                 1,495,195                 1768 1,446,164               2.85% 1.78% 07/08/24 1,383,136                  
    JP Morgan Chase 570,000                    570,000                    1461 570,000                   0.65% 0.65% 09/16/24 547,702                      

Bank of America 725,000                    725,000                    1464 725,000                   0.81% 0.81% 10/24/24 695,346                      
John Deere Capital Corp 790,000                    770,045                    1037 775,760                   1.25% 2.17% 01/10/25 738,185                      

   Toyota Motor 315,000                    318,078                    1724 316,382                   1.80% 1.58% 02/13/25 296,673                      
   Toyota Motor 425,000                    429,152                    1724 426,864                   1.80% 1.58% 02/13/25 400,274                      
   Novartis Capital 1,425,000                 1,475,744                 1743 1,447,052               1.75% 0.98% 02/14/25 1,345,891                  
   JP Morgan Chase 555,000                    555,000                    1461 555,000                   0.82% 0.82% 06/01/25 517,587                      
   JP Morgan Chase 355,000                    355,000                    1460 355,000                   0.77% 0.77% 08/09/25 327,454                      
   Bristol Myers 349,000                    345,524                    1606 346,734                   0.75% 0.98% 11/13/25 313,318                      
   Bank of Americ Corp 880,000                    880,000                    1472 880,000                   3.38% 3.38% 04/02/26 839,283                      
   Microsoft Corp (Callable) 1,100,000                 1,112,199                 1625 1,109,732               2.40% 2.14% 08/08/26 1,025,598                  
   Mastercard Inc 1,705,000                 1,621,148                 1430 1,621,734               2.95% 4.33% 11/21/26 1,612,797                  
   Target Corp 150,000                    149,745                    1817 149,793                   1.95% 1.99% 01/15/27 136,058                      
   Target Corp 690,000                    689,579                    1810 689,657                   1.95% 1.96% 01/15/27 625,867                      
   Truist Financial Corp 935,000                    817,779                    2010 827,355                   1.13% 3.91% 08/03/27 789,117                      
   Amazon Inc 1,075,000                 1,079,322                 1804 1,079,300               4.55% 4.46% 12/01/27 1,072,079                  

Subtotal Medium Term Notes $17,184,000 $17,158,877 $17,044,608 2.29% $16,308,335

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $115,518,000 $114,332,773 $114,303,996 1.63% $107,671,209

Total Investments $273,505,464 $272,320,237 $272,291,460 $265,658,673
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Par Cost Basis Term December Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts
   CAMP - Water Connection Reserves $25,484,066 $25,484,066 N/A $25,484,066 4.30% N/A $25,484,066
   LAIF - Self Insurance Reserves 6,573,509                 6,573,509                 N/A 6,573,509               2.17% N/A 6,573,509                  

Total Investment Pool Accounts $32,057,575 $32,057,575 $32,057,575 3.86% $32,057,575

Bond and Note Accounts
2017A Debt Service Accounts $431 $431 N/A $431 0.00% N/A $431
2020A Debt Service Accounts 1 1 N/A 1 0.00% N/A 1
2020B Debt Service Accounts 39 39 N/A 39 0.00% N/A 39
2020B Capitalized Interest Account 18,664,976              18,664,976 N/A 18,664,976 4.30% N/A 18,664,976

Total Bond and Note Accounts $18,665,447 $18,665,447 $18,665,447 4.30% $18,665,447

2020B Construction Project Account
LAIF Construction Fund $44,747,593 $44,747,593 N/A $44,747,593 2.17% N/A $44,747,593
CAMP Construction Fund 10,702,558 10,702,558 10,702,558 4.30% N/A 10,702,558
      Subtotal 2020B Construction Fund $55,450,151 $55,450,151 $55,450,151 2.58% $55,450,151

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $55,450,151 $55,450,151 $55,450,151 2.584% $55,450,151

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies
City of Chino $13,671,507 $13,671,507 N/A $13,671,507 N/A N/A $13,671,507
City of Chino Hills 3,265,266                 3,265,266 N/A 3,265,266 N/A N/A 3,265,266
Cucamonga Valley Water District 14,204,112              14,204,112 N/A 14,204,112 N/A N/A 14,204,112
City of Fontana 17,760,365              17,760,365 N/A 17,760,365 N/A N/A 17,760,365
City of Montclair 4,077,737                 4,077,737 N/A 4,077,737 N/A N/A 4,077,737
City of Ontario 30,178,756              30,178,756 N/A 30,178,756 N/A N/A 30,178,756
City of Upland 3,923,222                 3,923,222 N/A 3,923,222 N/A N/A 3,923,222

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies** $87,080,965 $87,080,965 $87,080,965 $87,080,965
**Total reported as of November 2022 (incl. adjusted beg. balances)

CalPERS Deposits
CERBT Account (OPEB) $16,000,000 $16,000,000 N/A $19,564,273 N/A N/A $19,564,273

Subtotal CalPERS Deposits $16,000,000 $16,000,000 $19,564,273 $19,564,273
CERBT Strategy 2 Performance as of November 30.2022 based on 1 year net return was 13.78%
Escrow Deposits

   W. M. Lyles Construction $9,416,458 $9,416,458 N/A $9,416,458 N/A N/A $9,416,458
   MNR Construction, Inc 498,036 498,036 N/A 498,036 N/A N/A 498,036

Subtotal Escrow Deposits $9,914,494 $9,914,494 $9,914,494 $9,914,494

Total Restricted Deposits $219,168,632 $219,168,632 $222,732,905 $222,732,905

$494,980,491 $493,795,264 $497,330,760 $490,697,973
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits
as of December 31,2022

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

December Purchases
Par Amount Investment

No. Date Transaction Investment Security Type Purchased Yield to Maturity
1 12/8/2022 Purchase US Treasury Notes US Treasury $1,105,000 3.81%
2 12/22/2022 Purchase Mastercard Inc Corporate 1,705,000 4.33%
3 12/23/2022 Purchase Amazon Inc Corporate 1,075,000 4.46%

Total Purchases 3,885,000$

December Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales
Par Amount Investment

No. Date Transaction Investment Security Type Matured/Sold Yield to Maturity
1 12/8/2022 Sale Barclays Bank Certificate of Deposit $1,125,000 1.05%
2 12/22/2022 Sale Fannie Mac Note Fed Agency Note 1,450,000           2.83%
3 12/22/2022 Sale Fannie Mac Note Fed Agency Note 200,000 0.35%
4 12/23/2022 Sale Fannie Mac Note Fed Agency Note 1,110,000 0.35%

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 3,885,000$

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
December 31, 2022

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $30,909,127 0.500%
LAIF - Unrestricted 22,416,678 2.173%
CAMP - Unrestricted 104,661,659 4.300%
Brokered Certificates of Deposit 1,810,000 3.444%
Medium Term Notes 17,044,608 2.285%
Municipal Bonds 2,140,866 0.986%
Supra-National Bonds 1,669,289 0.520%
US Treasury Notes 67,976,800 1.707%
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities 23,662,433 0.941%

Total Investment Portfolio $272,291,460
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 2.573%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies $87,080,965 N/A
CalPERS OPEB (CERBT) Account 19,564,273 N/A
CAMP Restricted Water Connection Reserve 25,484,066 4.300%
LAIF Restricted Insurance Reserve 6,573,509 2.173%
US Bank - 2017A Debt Service Accounts 431 0.000%
US Bank - 2020A Refunding Bond Accounts 1 0.000%
US Bank - 2020B Revenue Note Accounts 18,665,015 4.300%
US Bank - Pre-Investment  Money Market Account 628,548 3.650%
LAIF Construction Account 44,747,593 2.173%
CAMP Construction Account 10,702,558 4.300%
Citizens Business Bank - Demand Account 1,634,732 N/A
Citizens Business Bank - Workers' Compensation Account 40,865 N/A
Citizens Business Bank - Payroll Account 0 N/A
Other Accounts* 2,250 N/A
Escrow Account 9,914,494 N/A

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $225,039,300
Average Yield of Other Accounts 3.274%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $497,330,760

*Petty Cash

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended December 31, 2022
Agency Investment Portfolio (Net of Escrow Accounts)

$487,416,266

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 6.34%

Restricted 
Accounts (net of 
escrow), 43.66%

LAIF -
Unrestricted, 

4.60%

Medium Term 
Notes, 3.50%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.37% Other Accounts, 

0.47%
U.S. Government 

Sponsored 
Entities, 4.85%

US Treasuries, 
13.96%

CAMP -
Unrestricted, 

21.47%

Supra-National , 
0.34%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.44%

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended December 31, 2022
Unrestricted Agency Investment Portfolio

$272,291,460

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 11.40%

Local Agency 
Investment Fund, 

8.23%
Medium Term 
Notes, 6.26%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.66%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.79%

U.S. Government 
Sponsored 

Entities, 8.69%US Treasuries, 
24.96%

Supra-National, 
0.61%

CAMP, 
38.40%

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended December 31, 2022
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities Portfolio

$23,662,433

Fannie Mae Bonds, 
69.60%

Freddie Mac 
Bonds, 21.89%

Federal Home 
Loan Bank Bonds, 

8.51%

14



$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

$160,000,000

0-30 Days 31-180 Days 181-365
Days

366-730
Days

2 to 3 Years Over 3 Yrs

LAIF+CAMP $127,078,337
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $30,909,127
GSE+CD+MTN+MUNI $0 2,664,663 18,812,049 20,631,258 34,619,641 37,576,385
Percent 58.02% 0.98% 6.91% 7.58% 12.71% 13.80%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended December 31, 2022
Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)

$272,291,460

15



0.765% 0.821%

2.400%
2.573%

-0.890%
-0.430%

1.080%

0.060%

0.234% 0.278%

2.007%
2.173%

0.333%
0.638%

4.649% 4.721%

-2.000%
-1.500%
-1.000%
-0.500%
0.000%
0.500%
1.000%
1.500%
2.000%
2.500%
3.000%
3.500%
4.000%
4.500%
5.000%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended December 31, 2022
Agency Investment Portfolio Yield Comparison

Agency Yield Merrill Lynch 1-5 US Treasury Index LAIF Yield 6 Months T-Bill

16



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4A 



S A W P A 
 
 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF AB 361, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY WITH 

THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT.  ALL VOTES TAKEN WILL BE CONDUCTED BY ORAL 
ROLL CALL. 

This meeting will be accessible as follows: 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom)*: Meeting Access Via Telephone*: 

• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/81291788004 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 812 9178 8004 • Meeting ID: 812 9178 8004 

*Participation in the meeting via the Zoom app (a free download) is strongly encouraged. 
 

 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2023 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Bruce Whitaker, Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, 
no action may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
Government Code §54954.2(b). 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by 
the Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: JANUARY 17, 2023 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 
B. TREASURER’S REPORT:  DECEMBER 2022 

Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT WITH WEST COAST ADVISORS FOR LEGISLATIVE 
AFFAIRS SERVICES (CM#2023.8) 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
Recommendation:  Authorize the General Manager to extend the West Coast Advisors’ 
(WCA) Agreement to provide state legislative affairs services for an additional period of 1 
year for an amount not to exceed $117,000. 

  

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/81291788004


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

February 7, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 

B. FYE 2024 AND 2025 BUDGET GOALS AND OBJECTIVES (CM#2023.9) 
Presenters:  Jeff Mosher | Karen Williams | David Ruhl | Rachel Gray 
Recommendation:   
(1) Review and discuss the goals and objectives that will be used in preparing the FYE 

2024 and 2025 Budget, and  
(2) Receive and file the goals and objectives. 
 

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
Recommendation:  Receive for information. 

 
A. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 

 
B. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
C. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

There were no Closed Session items anticipated at the time of the posting of this agenda. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call (951) 354-4220 
or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at www.sawpa.org, subject to 
staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
Declaration of Posting 

I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on February 2, 2023, a copy of this agenda has 
been uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 

2023 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/3/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/7/23 Commission Workshop 
2/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/7/23 Commission Workshop 
3/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/4/23 Commission Workshop 
4/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/2/23 Commission Workshop 
5/16/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/9 – 5/11/23 ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey, CA 

June 
6/6/23 Commission Workshop 
6/20/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/4/23 Commission Workshop 
7/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/1/23 Commission Workshop 
8/15/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/5/23 Commission Workshop 
9/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/3/23 Commission Workshop 
10/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/7/23 Commission Workshop 
11/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
11/28 – 11/30/23 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

December 
12/5/23 Commission Workshop 
12/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting  
 

 

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4B 



Monday, February 13, 2023
Meeting Schedule

Board of Directors - Final

February 13, 2023

9:00 AM

08:00 a.m. LC
09:00 a.m. BOD
09:30 a.m. Break
10:00 a.m. BOD Retreat

Agendas, live streaming, meeting schedules, and other board materials are available 
here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. A listen only phone line is 
available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 831 5177 2466. Members of the public 
may present their comments to the Board or a Committee on matters within their 
jurisdiction as listed on the agenda via in-person or teleconference. To participate 
via teleconference (833) 548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276.

ZOOM Online and Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Road, Temecula, CA 92592

1. Call to Order

a. Invocation: Director Nancy Sutley, City of Los Angeles

b. Pledge of Allegiance:  Director Richard Atwater, Foothill Municipal Water District

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction.  (As required by Gov. Code § 
54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-1898Report on Directors' Events Attended at Metropolitan's Expense

02132023 BOD 5A ReportAttachments:

B. 21-1899Chair's Monthly Activity Report

C. 21-1900General Manager's summary of activities

Zoom Online & Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Rd, Temecula 92592

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2998
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f042f887-cdb2-48b1-9e69-fa43e2c3f511.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2999
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3000


Board of Directors February 13, 2023

Page 2 

D. 21-1901General Counsel's summary of activities

02142023 BOD 5D ReportAttachments:

E. 21-1902Interim General Auditor's summary of activities

F. 21-1903Ethics Officer's summary of activities

02142023 BOD 5F ReportAttachments:

G. 21-1919Induction of new Director Karl Seckel of Municipal Water District of 
Orange County
(a) Receive credentials
(b) Report on credentials by General Counsel
(c) File credentials
(d) Administer Oath of Office
(e) File Oath

H. 21-1922Induction of new Director Juan Garza of Central Basin Municipal 
Water District
(a) Receive credentials
(b) Report on credentials by General Counsel
(c) File credentials
(d) Administer Oath of Office
(e) File Oath

I. 21-1904Presentation of 30-year Service Pin to Director Glen D. Peterson

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-1914Approval of the Minutes of the Special  Board of the Directors 
Meeting for January 9, 2023 and Minutes of the Board of the 
Directors Meeting for January 10, 2023 (Copies have been 
submitted to each Director, any additions, corrections, or 
omissions)

02142023 BOD 6A-1 (01092023) minutes

02142023 BOD 6A-2 (01102023) minutes

Attachments:

B. 21-1923Adopt resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings 
pursuant to the Brown Act Section 54953(e) for meetings of 
Metropolitan’s legislative bodies for a period of 30 days; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA

Zoom Online & Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Rd, Temecula 92592

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3001
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=460f1278-17ef-48c0-92be-57c35f3b4bce.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3002
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3003
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=797bfadf-9d05-42ef-bd5c-6a19266b010f.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3019
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3022
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3004
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3014
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1b4254ee-ef93-469d-a7df-323d81fe1820.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=034a5781-c8ae-471d-b87a-2b2f82d502e9.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3023


Board of Directors February 13, 2023

Page 3 

C. 21-1915Approve Committee Assignments

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

7-1 21-1906Award a $407,800.33 procurement contract to Cascade 
Consultants, LLC for a triple offset ball valve to rehabilitate Service 
Connection CB-11; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EOT)

02132023 EOT 7-1 B-L.pdfAttachments:

7-2 21-1907Adopt Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Colorado River 
Aqueduct Master Reclamation Plan for San Bernardino and 
Riverside Counties and take related CEQA actions; approve 
Master Reclamation Plan for San Bernardino and Riverside 
Counties (EOT)

02132023 BOD 7-2 B-L

02132023 EOT 7-2 - Attach 1

02132023 EOT 7-2 - Attach 2

Attachments:

7-3 21-1908Adopt resolutions to support three applications for the California 
Department of Water Resources’ 2022 Urban Community Drought 
Relief Program totaling $38 million; and authorize the General 
Manager to accept this potential funding and enter contracts with 
the California Department of Water Resources if awarded; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed actions are 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (OWS)

02132023 BOD 7-3 B-L.pdfAttachments:

7-4 21-1912Report on Baker Electric, Inc. v. Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California, et al., (Los Angeles Superior Court Case No. 
21STCV15612) regarding Metropolitan’s CRA 6.9 kV Power 
Cables Replacement Project, Contract No. 1915; authorize an 
increase in the maximum amount payable under contract with 
Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP, for legal services by $800,000 to an 
amount not-to-exceed $1,700,000; and authorize an increase in 
the maximum amount payable under contract with HKA Global, 
Inc., for consulting services by $300,000 to an amount 
not-to-exceed $400,000; the General Manager has determined the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
[Conference with legal counsel - existing litigation; to be heard in 
closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] (LC)

Zoom Online & Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Rd, Temecula 92592

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3015
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3006
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=739c23c4-42f5-45c0-ad0b-3f6aa818d8dc.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3007
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a42c271f-c027-424a-817c-22c06847b9d9.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32d18822-8a50-4f49-8cdf-fba60cdb73eb.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7bc95209-42fb-4a4d-8c19-d9ea5b1c1fe7.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3008
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a044867d-3593-446c-8dce-7c6fb361eb47.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3012


Board of Directors February 13, 2023

Page 4 

7-5 21-1913Report on American Federation of State, County & Municipal 
Employees Local 1902 v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California pending Administrative Hearing Officer Appeal and 
authorize an increase in the maximum amount payable under 
contract for legal services with Renne Public Law Group by 
$100,000 to an amount not to exceed $200,000; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA  [Conference with legal 
counsel—existing litigation; to be heard in closed session pursuant 
to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] (LC)

7-6 21-1916Update on Sierra Club et al. v. California Department of Water 
Resources, Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 
34-2020-80003517 (consolidated with 34-2020-00283112) and 
request for authorization to increase maximum amount payable 
under a contract with Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, 
PLC by $150,000 to an amount not to exceed $250,000; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA [Conference with legal 
counsel – existing litigation; to be heard in closed session pursuant 
to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] (LC)

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

Zoom Online & Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Rd, Temecula 92592

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3013
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3016


Board of Directors February 13, 2023

Page 5 

8-1 21-1933Report on litigation in San Diego County Water Authority v. 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, et al., San 
Francisco County Superior Court Case Nos. CPF-10-510830, 
CPF-12-512466, CPF-14-514004, CPF-16-515282 , 
CPF-16-515391, CGC-17-563350, and CPF-18-516389; the 
appeals of the 2010 and 2012 actions, Court of Appeal for the First 
Appellate District Case Nos. A146901, A148266, A161144, and 
A162168, and California Supreme Court Case No. S243500; the 
petition for extraordinary writ in the 2010 and 2012 actions, Court 
of Appeal for the First Appellate District Case No. A155310; the 
petition for extraordinary writ in the second 2016 action, Court of 
Appeal for the First Appellate District Case No. A154325 and 
California Supreme Court Case No. S251025; and the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California v. San Diego County Water 
Authority cross-complaints in the 2014, 2016, and 2018 actions; 
and consider San Diego County Water Authority’s proposal: (1) to 
stipulate to stay proceedings in the 2014, 2016, and 2018 actions; 
and (2) to engage in settlement negotiations prior to issuance of 
the court’s statement of decision in those actions; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA [Conference with legal counsel - 
existing litigation; to be heard in closed session pursuant to Gov. 
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] (LC)

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-1905Conservation Update Report

02142023 BOD 9-1 ReportAttachments:

9-2 21-1909Update on Water Surplus and Drought Management and Water 
Shortage Emergency Condition

02142023 BOD 9-2 ReportAttachments:

9-3 21-1910Bay-Delta Manager's Report

02142023 BOD 9-3 ReportAttachments:

9-4 21-1911Colorado River Manager's Report

10. OTHER MATTERS

NONE

Zoom Online & Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Rd, Temecula 92592

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3033
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3005
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7e348df-18cf-421a-8ce0-c0e93a2c2e67.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3009
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46a43422-2e22-4739-bbbf-a9bdca7f20f7.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3010
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42299e1a-3e51-4b99-923c-2bb5192daf6e.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3011


Board of Directors February 13, 2023

Page 6 

11. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

NONE

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE:

Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by one or 
more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors.  The committee designation 
appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g.  (E&O).  Committee agendas may be 
obtained from the Executive Secretary. 

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online & Temecula Creek Inn 44501 Rainbow Canyon Rd, Temecula 92592



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4D 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING  

11:00 a.m. – January 26, 2023 
Mr. Jim Curatalo, 2022 Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, 2022 Vice-Chair 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
INTRODUCTIONS – CALENDAR YEAR 2023 WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS 

 
Overlying (Ag) Pool    Jeff Pierson (Crops) 
Overlying (Ag) Pool    Paul Hofer (Crops) 
Overlying (Non-Ag) Pool   Bob Bowcock (CalMat Co.) 
Appropriative Pool    Manny Martinez (Monte Vista Water District) 
Appropriative Pool    Scott Burton (City of Ontario) 
Appropriative Pool    Jim Curatalo (Minor Representative) 
Municipal      Bob Kuhn (Three Valleys Municipal Water District) 
Municipal      Mike Gardner (Western Municipal Water District) 
Municipal      Steve Elie (Inland Empire Utilities Agency) 

 
I. CALENDAR YEAR 2023 OFFICERS – ACTION 

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

Chair             

Vice-Chair            

Secretary/Treasurer ____________________________ 
 
II. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Note:  All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action.  
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held November 17, 2022 (Page 1) 
2. Minutes of the Watermaster Special Board Meeting held December 5, 2022 (Page 11) 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      January 26, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 Receive and file as presented:  

1. Cash Disbursements for the month of October 2022 (Page 14) 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of October 2022 Page 26) 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022 (Page 29) 
4. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022 

(Page 32) 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022 (Page 36) 
6. Cash Disbursements for the month of November 2022 (Page 61) 
7. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of November 2022 (Page 74) 
8. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through November 30, 2022 (Page 78) 
9. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period November 1, 2022 through November 30, 

2022 (Page 81) 
10. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2022 through November 30, 2022 (Page 85) 
11. Cash Disbursements for December 2022 (Information Only) (Page 111) 
 

C. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER INVESTMENT POLICY  
Adopt Resolution 2023-01 – Resolution of the Chino Basin Watermaster, San Bernardino County, 
California, Re-Authorizing the Watermaster’s Investment Policy. (Page 121) 

 
D. LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND  

Adopt Resolution 2023-02 – Resolution Authorizing Investment of Monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF). (Page 128) 

 
E. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 45TH ANNUAL REPORT (FISCAL YEAR 2021/22)  

Adopt the 45th Annual Report, along with filing a copy with the Court, subject to any necessary non-
substantive changes. (Page 131) 
 

F. NOTICE OF INTENT TO CHANGE THE OPERATING SAFE YIELD OF THE CHINO 
GROUNDWATER BASIN (Page 134) 

 
G.  2023 HEARING OFFICER PANEL APPOINTMENT  

Appoint the recommended panel of five, to be reconsidered periodically and no less frequently than 
annually. (Page 136) 
 

H. RESOLUTION 2023-03 AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER 
BROWN ACT  
Adopt Resolution 2023-03 Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings under the Ralph M. Brown 
Act. (Page 139) 

 
III. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (OBMP) PROJECT DESCRIPTION TRANSMITTAL 
Direct the General Manager to transmit the Project Description to IEUA. (Page 145) 

 
B. OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (OBMP) IMPLEMENTATION PLAN UPDATE 

Direct the General Manager to explore Watermaster’s obligations and management actions that do 
not require hosting facilitated discussions for their implementation. (Page 150) 
 

IV. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. LEGAL COUNSEL  

1. November 18, 2022 Hearing 
2. December 16, 2022 Hearing 
3. January 20, 2023 Hearing 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      January 26, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

 
4. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080457 
6. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 
7. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 
8. Rules and Regulations Update 
9. Brown Act Open Meetings Update 

 
B. ENGINEER 

1. Measurement and Reporting of Diversions for Water Year 2022 
2. Ground-Level Monitoring Committee 
3. Safe Yield Court Order Implementation 
4. Ambient Water Quality 

 
C. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

1. FY 2022/23 Assessment Package Payments Status  
2. Upcoming FY 2022/23 Mid-Year Review  

 
D.  GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Exhibit “G” Physical Solution Transfers 
2. Calendar Year 2023 Letters of CBWM Representation    
3. December 5, 2022 Board Workshop IV 
4. 2022 Little Heart Warriors Fundraiser 
5. Other 

 
V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
VII.  CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION 

Pursuant to Article II, Section 2.6, of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may 
be held during the Watermaster Board meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action. 

 
VIII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 

 01/26/23    Thu    9:30 a.m.   Watermaster Orientation 
 01/26/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board  
 02/09/23    Thu    9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Committee 
 02/09/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 02/09/23    Thu    1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool Committee 
 02/16/23    Thu    9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee 
 02/23/23    Thu    9:30 a.m.   Watermaster Orientation 
 02/23/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4E 



SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY 

February 2, 2023    2:00 p.m. 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

All documents available for public review are on file with the Authority’s 
Secretary located at 3550 E. Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA  91761 

According to the directives from the California Department of Public Health and Executive Order N-08-21 issued 
by Governor Gavin Newsom, members of the public are invited to participate via video or teleconference 

 

To join teleconference:         

Dial-in #:  (669) 900 6833  Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101                Passcode: 380557 

To join video conference:   

Click on link:  Join Zoom Meeting 

Or copy URL:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09 

Or go to  https://zoom.us/   Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101                Passcode: 380557 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Chino 
Basin Desalter Authority; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.   
Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the CDA Board is prohibited from taking action on non-agendized matters.  
However, Board Members may respond briefly or refer the communication to staff.  The CDA Board may also 
request the Secretary to calendar an item related to your communication at a future CDA Board meeting. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require two-
thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial to be acted upon by the Board at one 
time without discussion.  If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests that an item be 
removed from the Consent Calendar, it will be moved to the first item on the Action Items 

1.  MINUTES OF JANUARY 5, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://zoom.us/


February 2, 2023 – Special Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 2 of 4 

2.  RESOLUTION 2023-02 PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE 
PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-
20, N-29-20 AND N-35-20, AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
MEETINGS UNTIL FEBRUARY 28, 2023 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

Staff Recommendation:  

1. Approve Resolution 2023-02, proclaiming a local emergency, ratifying the 
proclamation of a state of emergency by Executive Orders N-25-20, N-29-20 
and N-35-20, and authorizing remote teleconference meetings until February 
28, 2023 pursuant to Brown Act provisions 

2. Find that this item is not a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Prior to action of the CDA Board, any member of the public will have the opportunity to address the CDA Board on 
any item listed on the agenda. 

3. COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT – CDA EMPLOYEES  
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) of 7.3% for all CDA employees, 
effective Pay Period 1 of 2023; and 

2. Find that this item is not a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 

4. CONTRACT AWARD FOR CHINO I & CHINO II COATING REPAIRS PROJECT  

Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve the contract award to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder J. 
Colon Coatings, Inc. for the Chino I & Chino II Coating Repairs Project in the not-
to-exceed amount of $104,400. 

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to execute the contract and approve 
authorized expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $120,000. 

3. Find that this item is not a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 



February 2, 2023 – Special Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 3 of 4 

5. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD FOR CHINO I ION EXCHANGE MANWAYS 
PROJECT 
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve the contract award to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder T. 
E. Roberts, Inc. for the Construction of the Chino I Ion Exchange Manways 
Project in the not-to-exceed amount of $106,725. 

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to execute the contract and approve 
authorized expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $120,000; and 

3. Find that this item is not a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 

6. AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO FARWEST CORROSION CONTROL 
COMPANY FOR CHINO II DESALTER CONCENTRATE REDUCTION FACILITY 
CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM PROJECT  
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve the contract award to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder 

Farwest Corrosion Control Company for the Construction of the Chino II Desalter 

Concentrate Reduction Facility Cathodic Protection System Project in the not-to-

exceed amount of $354,735. 

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to execute the contract and approve 

authorized expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $395,000. 

3. Find that Chino Basin Desalter Authority has complied with the California 

Environmental Quality Act by filing a Notice of Exemption on January 30, 2023. 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

7. UPDATE ON EMERGENCY SERVICES TO PERFORM ELECTRICAL REPAIRS AT 
THE CHINO I DESALTER 
Report by: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 
 

8. BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR LOCAL LEGISLATIVE 
BODIES TO HOLD REMOTE PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Report By:  Allison Burns, CDA Deputy General Counsel 

 

  



February 2, 2023 – Special Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 4 of 4 

STAFF COMMENTS 

i. Deputy CDA General Counsel, Allison Burns 
ii. CDA CFO/Treasurer, Michael Chung 
iii. CDA General Manager/CEO, Thomas O’Neill 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Authority may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider litigation matters, personnel matters, or other matters 
as provided for in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Section 54950 et seq., of the Government Code). 

9. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
CONSIDERATION OF INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4) 

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

10. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 54956.9(D)(2)     

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Declaration of Posting 

I, Casey Costa, Executive Assistant to the Chino Basin Desalter Authority, hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been 
posted by 2:00 p.m. at the Chino Basin Desalter Authority’s main office, 3550 Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA on 
January 30, 2022. 
_____________________________________ 
Casey Costa, Executive Assistant  

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in this meeting or for package materials in 
an alternative format should telephone Executive Assistant Casey Costa at (909) 218-3730, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.  All accommodation requests will 
be handled swiftly and resolving all doubts in favor of access  Copies of records provided to Board Members which relate 
to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from Chino Basin Desalter Authority at 3550 
Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA 91761. 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

  4F 
 

 



1 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MONDAY, February 06, 2023 
10:00 A.M.  

(Teleconference Meeting) 

Telecon:  
www.ierca.org/calendar 

+1 415-856-9169   United States, San Francisco (Toll)

Conference ID: 285 029 257 106# 

PURSUANT TO AB 361, IERCA BOARD MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH 

TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-

19. THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON.

TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
In all efforts to prevent the spread of COVID-19, until further notice, the Inland Empire Regional 

Composting Authority will be holding all Board meetings by teleconferencing. 
The meeting will be accessible at: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 285 029 257 106# 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by calling into the number 
provided above. Public comments may also be submitted to the Recording Secretary at 
afernandez@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. Comments will be 
distributed to the Board of Directors. 

CALL TO ORDER 
OF THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

FLAG SALUTE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons wishing to 
address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete 
and submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which are available on the table in the 
Board Room.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

http://www.ierca.org/calendar
tel:+1%20415-856-9169,,2000277# 
mailto:afernandez@ieua.org


2 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

INTRODUCTIONS 
Introduction of new hires Raymond Matus and Aaron Hernandez, Compost 
Workers at IERCF. IERCA would also like to acknowledge Nelson Delgado 
on his promotion to Senior Compost Operations and Maintenance Technician. 

1. PUBLIC HEARING

A. PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02-01,
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL
COMPOSTING AUTHORITY CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Hold a Public Hearing to receive public comments for the Board to
adopt amendments to the Authority’s Conflict of Interest Code,
establishing disclosure categories specifying the types of economic
interests that must be reported by designated positions within the
Authority; and

2. After closing the Public Hearing, adopt Resolution No. 2023-02-01,
Adopting Amendments to the IERCA Conflict of Interest Code.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02-02
A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Regional
Composting Authority, making certain findings and determinations
regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference.

B. MINUTES
The Board will be asked to approve the minutes from the November 07,
2022, regular meeting.

C. INVESTMENT AND DISBURSEMENT REPORT
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve for the months of
October 2022 - December 2022:

1. Total disbursements in the amount of $3,859,533.71.



3 

2. There were no new investments during October 1, 2022 – December 31,
2022.

3. ACTION ITEMS

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS
BOARD CHAIRPERSON
BOARD VICE-CHAIRPERSON

4. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT

B. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE QUARTER 
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. DIRECTOR COMMENTS

Next regular meeting is scheduled for Monday, May 01, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. 

6. ADJOURN

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Recording Secretary (909-993-1744), 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so 
that the Authority can make reasonable arrangements.

Declaration of Posting 

I, Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority, hereby certify that a 
copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. at the Los Angeles County Sanitation District 1955 Workman Mill 
Road, Whittier, CA and at the IERCA’s Administrative Building, 12645 Sixth Street, Rancho Cucamonga, CA and at 
the IEUA’s main office, 6075 Kimball Ave., Chino, CA on Wednesday, February 01, 2023. 

________________________________________ 
Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary



   GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 
       REPORT 

    
 



JANUARY 2023 NOTES: 

 Total stormwater and dry weather flow
recharged is preliminarily estimated at 2,600
acre-feet. 

 Recycled water delivered for recharge totaled
536 acre-feet.

 Imported water recharge did not occur.
 Chino Basin Watermaster will remove 1.5% for

evaporation losses from delivered supplemental
water sources (imported water and recycled
water). 

 Considering evaporation losses, total recharge
is preliminarily estimated at 3,128 acre-feet.

Recycled Water 

Groundwater Recharge 

Recycled Water Use Agency-Wide Effluent TDS & TIN 

Full Service Imported Water Deliveries Summary 
(FY 2018/19 to 2022/23) 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT FEBRUARY 2023

Imported Water 

Imported Water TDS Summary 
(FY 2018/19 to 2022/23) 

A
cr

e 
Fe

et
 



 

 
  

Agency Highlights 

* On January 10, IEUA, CWEA, ACWA-JPIA, and CA-NV AWWA partnered to 
host a Human Resources Roundtable. This event brought human resources 
professionals together from water agencies and cities all over Southern 
California, including Metropolitan Water District, Chino Basin Watermaster, 
Cucamonga Valley Water District, Eastern Municipal Water District, Western 
Municipal Water District, LA County Sanitation District, and the Santa Ana 
Watershed Project Authority. General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh kicked off 
the event with a presentation on workplace culture and the importance of 
engagement and retention. 

* On January 11, the Human Resources Department expanded New Splash, 
the Agency’s onboarding experience, to include a tour of Agency facilities. 
This is a great opportunity for new staff to strengthen their business acumen 
while learning about our services and facilities. As part of the tour, new staff 
visited Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility, the Chino Desalter, Inland 
Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) and Regional Plant 1 to learn 
about how we create liquid gold from wastewater. The tour will be conducted 
quarterly. Thank you to all our incredible staff at Carbon Canyon, the 
Desalter, IERCF and RP-1 for making this an incredible experience for our new 
hires. 

* On January 19, IEUA President Marco Tule joined the Chino Basin Water
Conservation District (CBWCD) to attend a ribbon cutting event celebrating 
the completion of CBWCD’s Montclair Basin spillway. CBWCD’s spillway
project was one of two components included as part of IEUA’s and CBWCD’s 
partnership under the Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program funded by the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. 

* On January 19, IEUA held a reception to welcome Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California’s (MWD’s) new Chair, Adán Ortega and receive 
an update on California’s water supply. Key stakeholders throughout the 
region including Congresswoman Judy Chu; MWD’s General Manager Adel 
Hagekhalil; and IEUA’s Board President Marco Tule, Vice President Steve Elie, 
Director Michael Camacho, and General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh were in 
attendance to welcome Mr. Ortega into his new role, share their insight, and 
show their support for water initiatives throughout the region. 

Bid & Award Look Ahead Schedule 
Active Capital Improvement Project Status 
Emergency Projects 

COVID-19 Response: 
Management team and key staff members continue to meet when necessary 
to discuss Agency impacts from COVID-19.  

Engineering & Construction Management FY 2022/23 
Budget Status Update 

Grants Human Resources 

Biosolids/Compost 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/gzeul2bgu4dfggs/23038%20GM%20Report%20-%20February%202023%20-%20Attachment%201.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/ce4g8ergm67fk1o/23038%20GM%20Report%20-%20February%202023%20-%20Attachment%202.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/u6d7j2h1athrglk/23038%20GM%20Report%20-%20February%202023%20-%20Attachment%203.pdf?dl=0


  
 

 
 

  
 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 

  Project Name 

Projected  
Bid 

Opening 
Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 

 Mar-23   

1 EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements 2/9/2023 3/15/2023 

 Apr-23   

2 AM23001.00  Old VFD Replacement (Wastewater) 3/1/2023 4/19/2023 

3 AM23002.00  Old VFD Replacement (Recycled Water) 3/1/2023 4/19/2023 

4 EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1) 1/31/2023 4/19/2023 

5 RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 2) 3/5/2023 4/19/2023 

 May-23   

6 EN23124.00  1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation 4/5/2023 5/17/2023 

7 EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs 4/5/2023 5/17/2023 

 Jun-23   

8 EN21053.00  RP-1 Filter Effluent Structure #2 5/3/2023 6/21/2023 

9 EN23121.00  1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades 4/19/2023 6/21/2023 

 Jul-23   

10 EN23123.00  RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades 5/24/2023 7/19/2023 

 Sep-23   

11 EN22022.00  RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades 8/9/2023 9/20/2023 

 Oct-23   

12 EN21041.00  RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow Line 8/31/2023 10/18/2023 

13 EN21045.00  Montclair Force Main Improvements 8/11/2023 10/18/2023 

14 EN23113.00  RW/GRW Safety Work Improvements for Basin Gate Actuator Access 9/6/2023 10/18/2023 

15 EN24020.00  RP-1 Dewatering Centrate Pumps 9/3/2023 10/18/2023 

16 PA22003.01  Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station 7/30/2023 10/18/2023 

 Nov-23   

17 EN23004.00  CCWRF Aeration Basins 1-6 Drain Valve Replacements 10/4/2023 11/15/2023 

18 EN23003.00  Central Plant Cooling Tower Replacement 9/19/2023 11/15/2023 

 Dec-23   

19 EN22027.00  RP-1 Repurpose Lab 10/26/2023 12/20/2023 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



  
 

 
 

 

  

Agency-Wide 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 
EN21020.00 Oracle P6 Migration and Web Hosting Services               2,476            325,000  Behind 

Schedule 
Consultant 

Contract Award 
The Request for Proposal was placed on Planet Bids on December 12, 2022, with a deadline of February 2, 2023. The 
project will be rebaselined once the consultant contract is awarded.  

2 EN20034.03 RP5 Solids Handling Future Uses Evaluation             391,123                           -    On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

3 EN19024.00 Regional System Asset Management (Assessment Only)          3,456,509             3,919,419  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design Field assessments currently in-progress. Additional scope was added extending project completion to March 2023. 
Working on the two remaining siphons. 

4 EN22040.00 NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels               150,170                210,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

5 EN19051.00 RW Hydraulic Modeling              122,768                677,534  On-Time Pre-Design   

6 EN20038.00 Agency Wide Pavement Management Study             209,325               340,000  On-Time Design   

7 PA22003.01 Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station                  5,859                           -    On-Time Design   

8 AM23001.00 Old VFD Replacement (Wastewater)                  7,666             1,350,000  On-Time Bid & Award   
9 AM23002.00 Old VFD Replacement (Recycled Water)                    7,715             1,350,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

10 EN23043.00 HQ/Lab New Potable Water Connection                         -                   30,000  On-Time Construction   
11 FM21005.01 Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III            1,551,069                           -    On-Time Construction   

12 EN19030.00 WC Asset Management               90,403              1,087,510  On-Time Construction   

13 
FM22005.00 Agency Wide HVAC Replacement             183,266                877,306  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

14 EN22024.00 AM Cleaning Services                  7,429          15,000,000  N/A N/A   
15 EN19023.00 Asset Management Planning Document             959,360              1,196,146  N/A N/A   

16 EN19023.01 RO Assessment Project                87,331                           -    N/A N/A   

17 EN22005.00 RO Asset Management                52,973            6,450,000  N/A N/A   

75%

0%

25%

Design Schedule Performance (53)

On-Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

69%0%

31%

Construction Schedule Performance (32)

On-Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 



  
 

 
 

Agency-Wide (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

18 EN23077.00 NRW Assessment Projects                         -                    50,000  N/A N/A   
19 EN23078.00 GWR Assessment Projects                         -                    50,000  N/A N/A   
20 EN23079.00 GG Assessment Projects                         -                    50,000  N/A N/A   
21 EN22006.00 RC Asset Management                         -              51,150,000  N/A N/A   

22 EN22009.00 WC Asset Management Project                         -            54,100,000  N/A N/A   

23 EN22010.00 GG Asset Management Project                         -             6,400,000  N/A N/A   

24 EN22008.00 GWR Asset Management Project                18,896            4,500,000  N/A N/A   

25 EN23025.00 Agency Power Monitoring                        91                           -    N/A Not Started   

26 EN23099.00 CIPO Enhancements                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

27 EN22045.00 New Regional Project PDR's                         -              2,500,000  N/A Not Started   

28 EN23021.00 Agency Wide Infiltration and Inflow Study                         -                 600,000  N/A Not Started   

29 EN23034.00 Agency Wide EV Charging Stations                     609             1,100,000  N/A Not Started   

30 EN23085.00 New Regional Project PDR's FY22/23                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   
31 EN23087.00 New Recycled Water Project PDR's FY 22/23                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   
32 EN23088.00 RO On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                 12,877               500,000  N/A Not Started   
33 EN23089.00 RO Safety On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

34 EN23090.00 WC On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                 2,346               245,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        7,320,261        154,057,915        

Carbon Canyon  

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

35 
EN23005.00 CCWRF Filter Effluent Sodium Hypochlorite Modification                16,006                105,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

36 
EN23038.00 CWRF HVAC System Upgrade                   17,511                  50,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

37 
EN23035.00 CCWRF RAS Header Replacement               20,430               285,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

38 EN23074.00 CCWRF Influent Box Rehab at the Primary Clarifiers               23,092               600,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

39 EN23004.00 CCWRF Aeration Basins 1-6 Drain Valve Replacements               23,345             1,500,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

40 
EN17006.00 CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements         4,442,542          28,550,436  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Project is now out to bid. Project has been delayed due to pending approval of the addition of the ammonia control design, 
and the issuance of the AQMD Permits. The project will be rebaselined at the start of construction. 

41 
EN17006.01 CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit 

Improvements 
               71,089  1,456,614    Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Long lead times for the controllers has now delayed project by 4 months. Items are planned to arrive on 4/6/23. No 
mitigation at this point.  

    Sub Total           4,614,014          32,547,050        

Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

42 
 

None to report currently. 0 0    

    Sub Total                       -                           -          

  



  
 

 
 

Collections/NRWS 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

43 EN21058.00 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic Modeling               94,336                100,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

44 EN20064.00 NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement             966,027            4,500,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction Construction awarded in January. Project will be rebaselined. 

45 EN23015.00 Collection System Upgrades FY 22/23               25,268               500,000  On-Time Construction   

46 EN23014.00 NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 22/23                20,144               200,000  On-Time Construction   

47 
EN19025.00 Regional Force Main Improvements           1,789,558           4,800,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Mobilization planned for week of 1/9. Awaiting San Bernardino County approval to do multiple vaults at a time to mitigate 
current delay. Due to the raining season and the bypass the project will be delayed to May 2023. Approved RFD for 
completion now. 

48 EN19028.00 NRW Manhole and Pipeline Condition Assessment              826,471             1,256,000  On-Time Construction   

49 EN22059.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-NRWS              147,036                150,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

50 EN23075.00 NRWS On Call O&M Projects FY22/23                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

51 EN23086.00 New NRW Projects PDR's FY 22/23                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        3,868,841         11,506,000        

Groundwater Recharge 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

52 
EN23113.00 RW/GRW Safety Work Improvements for Basin Gate Actuator 

Access 
              22,660            1,020,000  On-Time 

Design 
  

53 EN23040.00 Turner Basin 1 Turnout Fencing                       411                   15,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

54 EN23090.01 Turner Basin 1 Turnout Modifications                 4,302               245,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

55 EN21051.00 Ely Monitoring Well             207,474               284,999  On-Time Construction   

56 
RW15003.03 Montclair Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 2)              382,516                           -    Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Bidding was delayed because additional time was needed to complete required CDWF permits 1602 which was received in 
December 2022. There is no mitigation at this point. The project will be rebaselined at the start of construction. Mitigation 
credits needed prior to start of construction. 

Th57 
RW15003.06 Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements (RMPU PID 23a)        13,247,045                           -    Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Contractor has sent updated schedule submittal and that is currently in review. Project is estimated to be extended to 
October 2023 due to pump submittal, traffic control issues and SCE delays. 

58 EN21057.00 Recharge Basin Clean-up of Illegally Dumped Materials               92,944                247,919  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction RP-3 Basin and Ely is in Construction. Permitting with Flood Control District caused delay in Design by couple months and 
now have the final permit. No mitigation at this point. 

59 EN23041.00 Ely Monitoring Well Capital Project                  4,134               600,000  On-Time Construction   

60 RW15003.05 RP-3 Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 21)          2,134,626                           -    On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

61 EN23067.00 Hickory Basin Replacement Monitoring Well                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

62 EN22049.00 GWR-RW OIT Upgrades                         -                     56,100  N/A Not Started   

63 EN22050.00 GWR Basin PLC Upgrades                         -                 900,000  N/A Not Started   

64 EN22051.00 Jurupa Basin VFD Upgrades                       117               300,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total       16,096,229            3,669,018        

Headquarters 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

65 
EN23003.00 Central Plant Cooling Tower Replacement                 19,188           2,400,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

66 EN23039.00 Lab Rooms Temperature Variation                     362               240,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

67 FM20001.00 HQ Interior Replacements             134,433               320,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

    Sub Total              153,983           2,960,000        



  
 

 
 

Lift Stations 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

68 EN23036.00 San Bernardino Ave Lift Station Reliability Improvements               22,279           2,000,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

69 EN22020.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades              245,871            2,500,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

70 EN23002.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements          1,606,226          20,977,940  On-Time Design   

71 FM21005.02 Prado Dechlor Roofing Assessment                37,012                           -    Behind 
Schedule 

Design RFQ is now released. Will not solicit until after the rainy season per management. No mitigation at this point.  

72 
EN0000000066 Preserve Lift Station Improvements              219,995                           -    Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Construction awarded in January. Project will be rebaselined. 

73 
EN22054.03 Montclair Lift Station Gate                  11,147                           -    On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

74 
EN22048.00 PLS Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization               109,915                 110,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

75 EN22057.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-SEWER               49,956                  50,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

76 EN22037.00 Prado De-Chlorination Station Inundation Protection             212,386               380,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

77 EN23066.00 Preserve Lift Station Improvements                     443             1,050,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total         2,515,229        27,067,940        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

78 EN23114.00 RP-1 Instrumentation and Control Enhancement                10,840                100,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

79 
EN23000.00 RP-1 Device Net Replacement                19,023            4,100,000  Behind 

Schedule 
Consultant 

Contract Award 
RFP's have been received and currently in review. Project delayed due to the board needing to be pushed to February. 

80 
EN23024.00 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades                 10,814            1,300,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

81 EN24020.00 RP-1 Dewatering Centrate Pumps                60,552               820,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

82 EN22022.00 RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades              158,278             4,126,316  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design Schedule will be rebaselined once charter is complete and new design schedule is received. Project is currently delayed 
due to amendment execution for additional scope items. Charter and amendment will be concurrent to mitigate time. 

83 
EN22031.00 RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Electrical improvements             329,695             9,237,147  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Additional time and resources were committed to the pre-design phase to define the scope of work. Development of the 
project charter is caused additional delays to get Leadership approval. The project charter has been approved and the 
schedule will be re-baselined; 

84 EN22027.00 RP-1 Repurpose Lab             128,829             1,847,400  On-Time Design   

85 EN23102.00 RP-1 New Parking Lot                 2,634            1,200,000  On-Time Design   

86 EN20051.00 RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab              217,302              2,546,161  On-Time Design   

87 EN21053.00 RP-1 Filter Effluent Structure #2            260,266            2,450,050  On-Time Design   

88 EN21056.00 RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building              142,947             1,085,840  Behind 
Schedule 

Design Amendment needed for the 60% design still in-progress. Project will be re-baselined when the amendment and revised 
schedule is finalized with the Consultant.  

89 
EN22044.00 RP-1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester          3,540,010       123,324,034  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Additional scope has been added to the design and further design coordination was needed to amend the consultant, 
delaying design completion 

90 
EN13016.05 SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant 

No. 1) 
         4,300,618                           -    Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Project is now out to bid and are due back on 2/21/23. No mitigation at this point. Project will be re-baselined after the 
construction contract award in April 2023. 

91 EN22041.00 RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement              153,325            2,090,941  On-Time Construction   

92 EN22021.00 RP-1 Digester Area Utility Water (UW) Line Replacement                 11,259                100,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award Project is now out to bid. No mitigation currently. Schedule will be rebaselined once contract is awarded. 

93 EN13016.06 RP-1 TP Building Water Piping Upgrades                       80                           -    On-Time Bid & Award   

94 EN23111.00 RP-1 Headworks Bar Screens Improvements               65,286           3,900,000  On-Time Bid & Award   
95 EN11039.00 RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements           3,194,721          12,997,043  On-Time Construction   

96 EN17042.00 Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs          5,763,934            9,052,843  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction Design currently in progress and no mitigation at this point. Will rebaseline once construction contract is awarded.  



  
 

 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

97 EN18006.00 RP-1 Flare Improvements          7,856,528           9,200,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction The PLC program had delays with the flare supplier, delaying project completion.  

98 EN21042.00 RP-1 East Influent Gate Replacement              190,725                 666,117  On-Time Construction   

99 
EN22034.00 RP1/RP4 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization                31,080               440,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The generator power cables were found damaged when the staff and the contractor were doing early field walks. A change 
order was approved by the Board in December 2022 to add scope, value, and time to the construction contract. No 
schedule recovery is possible. 

100 
EN17082.01 RP-1 Clarifier Level Sensor Signal Cable                  3,056                           -    On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

101 EN23022.00 RP-1 Solids Sludge Recirc Pump Upgrades                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

102 EN22030.00 Replace Anoxic Mixers with More Energy Efficient System                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

103 EN23020.00 RP-1 Solids Heat Exchanger Replacements & Upgrades                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

104 EN23076.00 RP-1 Centrate Line Improvements                         -                             -    N/A Not Started   

105 EN19009.00 RP-1 Energy Recovery                     408            4,325,000  N/A Not Started   

106 EN23116.00 RP-1 Solids Electrical Panel Upgrades                         -              1,860,000  N/A Not Started   

107 EN23117.00 RP-1 Motor Control Center 9M Upgrades                         -               1,050,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total     26,452,207       197,818,892        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

108 EN20057.00 RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II                54,697           8,300,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

109 EN23123.00 RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades                 33,011             1,700,000  On-Time Design   

110 
EN21041.00 RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well 

Passive Overflow Line 
           284,924           4,844,690  On-Time 

Design 
  

111 EN23115.00 RP-4 Headworks Utility Water Addition                 14,655                 175,000  On-Time Bid & Award   
112 EN23090.02 RW Improvements (Valves, Blow Offs)                 6,883               245,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

113 EN22039.00 RP-4 SCADA Performance Improvement                   2,741             1,012,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total           396,910        16,276,690        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

114 EN19001.00 RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd      112,420,679       245,000,000  On-Time Construction   

115 EN19006.00 RP-5 Biosolids Facility     133,496,768       205,000,000  On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total    245,917,448     450,000,000        

Recycled Water 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

116 EN23119.00 RW SCADA Migration                13,495           4,630,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

118 EN23037.01 Etiwanda Interceptor Grade-Breadk RW Relocation                  2,538                           -    Behind 
Schedule 

Consultant 
Contract Award 

Currently getting a contract with the City of Rancho to design the remaining scope items. A reimbursement agreement is 
not finalized yet. Concern that the piles will cause vibration that may cause an issue with underground utilities.  

117 
EN15002.00 1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup            348,944              1,215,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

119 EN23121.00 1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades                  6,379           2,000,000  On-Time Design   



  
 

 
 

Recycled Water (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 1/31 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

120 EN23124.00 1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation               90,739                750,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Design There was additional scope added to design extending design completion. Partially executed contract is in progress for the 
Pre-purchasing of equipment.  

121 EN21045.00 Montclair Force Main Improvements            404,249             8,714,434  On-Time Design   

122 EN22058.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-RW             139,999                140,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

    Sub Total         1,006,341        17,449,434        

    Overall Totals   308,341,463      913,352,939        

 

 

  



  
 

 
 

 

 

FY22/23 Emergency Projects 
  Project ID Contractor Task Order Description  Location TO # 

Original Not-to-
Exceed /Estimate 

Actual Cost 
thru 1/31 

Date of 
Award Status 

Agency Wide 

1 EN23019.02 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc El Prado Road 8-inch Ductile Iron Primary Sludge Leak El Prado Road  TO-007 200,000 172,407 7/19/2022 Completed 

2 EN23017.01 W.A. Rasic 42-inch RW Leak South of I-10 fwy Ontario TO-032 98,615 12,803 11/19/2022 Completed 

Sub Totals 298,615 185,210     

CCWRF 

3 EN23019.04 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. CCWRF 12-inch Backwash Water Pipeline Leak CCWRF TO-009 50,000 36,461 11/10/2022 Completed 

4 EN23019.05 Houston Harris  CCWRF CCTV Inspection Sludge Line to RP-2 CCWRF   50,000 0 12/20/2022 Completed 

Sub Totals 100,000 36,461     

RP-1 

5 EN23019.01 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. West RP-1 Main Potable Water Line Leak RP-1 TO-006 25,000 24,266 7/7/2022 Completed 

6 EN23019.03 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. 13553 San Bernardino Ave., Fontana Force Main Strike RP-1 TO-008 50,000 14,171 8/22/2022 Completed 

7 EN11039.00 Innovative construction solutions (ICS) Water leak in roadway south of Equalization Basin #3 RP-1 N/A N/A N/A 12/23/2022 Active 

Sub Totals 75,000 38,437     

        Grand Total 473,615 260,108     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December Emergency Project(s) 

Contractor Task Order Description  
Details of the Circumstances/Cause of 
Emergency Scope of Repair Location 

Date of Call 
Out 

Not-to-Exceed 
/Estimate 

Houston Harris  
CCWRF CCTV Inspection Sludge Line to RP-2 

Blockage of line carrying primary sludge from 
CCWRF to RP-2 for solids processing. 

Contractor cleaned and spot inspected the line. CCWRF 12/20/2022 
50,000 

  
  

        
  

Emergency Projects 


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Consent Item 1E
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Action Item 2C
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F
	Information Item 3G
	Information Item 3H
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4A
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4B
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4D
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4E
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4F
	General Manager's Report



